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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from, or in reliance upon, the whole or any part
of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Shenzhen Neptunus
Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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Chalrman s Statement

FRERS

Dear shareholders,

During the year ended 31 December 2011 (the “Year”), the Company and
its subsidiaries, Ascendent Bio-Technology Company Limited (“Ascendent”),
Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company Limited (”“Neptunus
Fuyao”) and Jiangsu Neptunus Bio-pharmaceutical Company Limited
(“Jiangsu Neptunus”, formerly known as Taizhou Neptunus Bio-technique
Company Limited) (collectively the “Group”) carried out expansion for
new bio-technique business of Jiangsu Neptunus, preliminary planning
for establishment of a second production base of Neptunus Fuyao, sale of
equity in Shenzhen GSK-Neptunus Biologicals Co., Ltd. (“GSK-Neptunus”)
and expansion of total share capital and re-appointment of Directors of
the Company. During the Year, Neptunus Fuyao with its subsidiaries have
achieved sustainable development in several drug categories, including
transfusion, generic drugs, herbal medicine and anti-tumor drugs, etc., while
early stage preparation for the second production base advanced steadily.
Jiangsu Neptunus'’s construction of its production base proceeded as planned
in the Year, and its phase | clinical work for the new product, recombinant
human thymosin « 1 for injection, progressed smoothly. The Company is
also engaged in the study of recombinant proteins and polypeptide drugs as
well as provision of research and development (“R&D") services, in order to
research on and develop high-end biological products through these various
cooperative modes.

Neptunus Fuyao, a subsidiary of the Company, is a modernized
pharmaceutical enterprise with the largest scale of dosage and the most
comprehensive range of Chinese and Western medicine in Fujian Province.
It is also one of the 100 Key Enterprises of Fujian Province (fB2& M BEXR
FEE ). Neptunus Fuyao, together with its subsidiaries, own more than
450 pharmaceutical production permits and 17 types of dosage medicine
covering several categories, including transfusion, generic drugs, herbal
medicine and anti-tumor drugs, etc.. The trade mark of “Neptunus Fuyao”
and “Fuzhou lJinxiang” are well-known in Fujian Province. Although prices
of raw materials used in production of domestic medicine and labour costs
have surged, Neptunus Fuyao adopted various measures to eliminate the
adverse impact of the above, through which it has kept its turnover and
profitability and provided stable sources for the Group’s operating income
and profitability. With the saturating production capacity, Neptunus Fuyao
planned to tender for an industrial land of 270 acres in the provincial
economic development zone of Lianjiang County, Fuzhou City in the
Year, intending to establish the second production and R&D base, which
would be managed and regulated in strict compliance with requirements
of the new GMP, policies and regulations on medicine of the State and
international advanced pharmaceutical production qualifications, with a view
to establishing a production and R&D base for various medicines and health
care products including modernized Chinese medicine, bio-pharmaceuticals
and basic drugs for Neptunus Fuyao, and lay a solid foundation for the
Group's future expansion and development.
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Jiangsu Neptunus, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was
established with the aim of undertaking research and development and
commercialization of recombinant proteins and polypeptide drugs (including
but not limited to recombinant human thymosin « 1 for injection). At
present, the Group plans to increase the registered capital of Jiangsu
Neptunus to RMB90,000,000. Construction of the production base of
Jiangsu Neptunus for recombinant protein and polypeptide drugs in Taizhou
has commenced in the Year and the progress was smooth. Phase | clinical
research on recombinant human thymosin « 1 for injection has also begun
and was progressing well. It is expected that Jiangsu Neptunus’s business
of recombinant proteins and polypeptide drugs will provide the Group with
new opportunity to enhance its future profits.

The Company has also been focusing on the R&D business, and provides
R&D services to Shenzhen Neptunus Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus
Pharmaceutical”), a subsidiary of Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering Co.,
Ltd. (“Neptunus Bio-engineering”). In addition to provision of R&D services
to related companies, the Company is committed to the research of its own
biological R&D projects and seeking external R&D projects of new product
type, so as to explore new directions for the Company’s future development.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) believes the business of the Group
is developing well and is confident about the business prospects of the
Group. On behalf of the Company and the Board, | would like to express my
heartfelt gratitude to all shareholders, business partners and staff for their
continuing support to and trust in the Group.

Zhang Feng
Chairman

RYIHBERBFEEDRMBRHBERLQE

N -'
N TN

Chairman’s Statement
FERE

ARBEEFARIHESTIEANEEAER
BEMZREYER(BEABTRMNEGFAEAEA
MIBRAK o 1) B BRI E 2L - ANE B B BlEH &
1L &8 T Mt & % &= A R ¥ 90,000,000
TT e RAFEEI#HETMNNEMNNEHAEARE M
LIREYEMREEEMDEMRER  TREE
ERIEF - BT AEAARRIK o 1898
BRAMELELHRE @ BRERBREL - AT
A IERBTMEASEOBEMSREYERSE
%+ AR EBR R TR T R R R

(S=)
=

R ARE—HBEINEEREXS - LE AR
B EEMTRERNERRF(EEEM D Z
MEARRYEBEEZAERAR(NEEEE R
WA B IRTS © Br T MRBIE R BR LA B RIS SN
ARBDBARARR BB LRI IR R O
RMAIMNEF KA ERNAEIRE - REARF
RREBERARONTEA -

Exg((E5g ) HEARENKERBERE
REFTHERYEAREOXBAZRBELD
AANBURRARTAREZTERRERR - EBKE
HFARZEE T —EARMAEEN SIFMNERE
RRROHREF

R
E

2011 43R

5



6

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business Review

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in various medicine
businesses such as herbal medicine, generic drugs, transfusion and anti-
tumor drugs and the research and development of modern biological
technology (the “R&D Business”). On 13 June 2011, the Company and
GlaxoSmithKline Pte Limited (“GSK”) entered into an agreement (the
“Equity Transfer Agreement”) in relation to the disposal (the “Disposal”) of
51% equity interests (the "Equity Interests”) in GSK-Neptunus, which was
completed on 20 September 2011.

Neptunus Fuyao Business

Neptunus Fuyao is a subsidiary of the Company. Neptunus Fuyao and its
subsidiaries together own more than 40 production lines for 17 types of
medications in dose form, all of which have passed the GMP qualifications
and obtained the relevant national GMP certificates. In addition, Neptunus
Fuyao and its subsidiaries together own 450 approvals in relation to the
production of drugs. China’s generic drugs market is currently growing
rapidly. During the Year, Neptunus Fuyao operated normally and recorded
an income from principal business totaling approximately RMB472,652,000
while continuing on a steady developing trend.

During the Year, prices of raw materials used in domestic pharmaceutical
production and labour costs increased drastically, and at the same time
open tender caused the price decrease in part of tender products. Neptunus
Fuyao is implementing following procedures to eliminate the negative impact
resulted from aforesaid reasons: (i) controlling related production costs; (ii)
optimizing product mix and improving the sales proportion for products
with higher gross profit margin; and (iii) increasing the sales price for scarce
products and exclusive products in the market.

As the existing production capacities of Neptunus Fuyao and its subsidiaries
are almost fully utilised, the Group intends to construct a new production
base at Lianjiang County, Fuzhou City. The Company intends to grant
proceeds from the Disposal of approximately RMB 40,000,000 as a loan
to Neptunus Fuyao for its construction of that new production base. In
addition, the Company has already used the proceeds from the Disposal
of approximately RMB130,000,000 to repay the interest-bearing financial
assistance and entrusted loans due to Neptunus Bio-engineering. It
is expected that Neptunus Bio-engineering will use approximately
RMB80,000,000 upon receipt of such repayment to grant a loan to
Neptunus Fuyao for its construction of the new production base.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As the preliminary preparation work for the construction of the new
production base, during the Year, the Group established three subsidiaries
at Lianjiang County, Fuzhou City. The first subsidiary is Neptunus Fuyao
Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang”) /&F
femERIEE (38)T) APRZAR]. Its business scope is production of chemical
medicine (BR2(tBEMBFERMRLE) with a registered capital of
RMB50,000,000, among which RMB9,500,000 and RMB500,000 was
contributed by Neptunus Fuyao and Neptunus Fuyao’s subsidiary Fuzhou
Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Neptunus
Jinxiang”) fBINE T & RPEEREEFR/AF] in cash as at 31 December 2011,
which hold 95% and 5% interests in Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang , respectively.
The second subsidiary is Neptunus lJinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical
(Lianjiang) Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Jinxiang Lianjiang”) /8 E &R &%l (&
7T) BBRAF]. Its business scope is production of chemical medicine (&1t
BRI EE B BUE) with a registered capital of RMB50,000,000, among
which RMB500,000 and RMB9,500,000 was contributed by Neptunus Fuyao
and Neptunus Jinxiang in cash as at 31 December 2011, which hold 5%
and 95% interests in Neptunus Jinxiang Lianjiang, respectively. The third
subsidiary is Lianjing Neptunus Fuyao Foods Trading Co., Ltd. (“Lianjing
Neptunus Foods”) EIHBTRERMESHBMAT]. Its business scope
is wholesale and retail of prepackaged foods (HtZEFZEEEERT)
with a registered capital of RMB500,000, among which RMB475,000 and
RMB25,000 was contributed by Neptunus Fuyao and Neptunus Jinxiang in
cash as at 31 December 2011, which hold 95% and 5% interests in Lianjing
Neptunus Foods, respectively.

On 15 August 2011, the Board of the Company resolved to increase the
registered capital of Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang to RMB112,000,000 from
RMB50,000,000, among which RMB106,400,000 and RMB5,600,000 would
be contributed by Neptunus Fuyao and Neptunus Jinxiang respectively, to
fund the construction of the new production base at Lianjiang County,
Fuzhou City. At present, the Company is tendering for construction land, and
is applying to the relevant local authorities for land to be used for the new
production base.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Recombinant Proteins and Polypeptide Drugs
Business

In 2010, the Company and Neptunus Pharmaceutical established a subsidiary
Taizhou Neptunus with a registered capital of RMB1,000,000, among which
RMB800,000 and RMB200,000 was contributed by the Company and
Neptunus Pharmaceutical, respectively, which hold 80% and 20% interests
in Taizhou Neptunus, respectively. The business scope of Taizhou Neptunus
as set out in its business license is the R&D of bio-pharmaceutical products.

On 8 June 2011, the Company acquired 20% equity interests in Taizhou
Neptunus held by Neptunus Pharmaceutical at a consideration of
RMB200,000. Following completion of the equity transaction, Taizhou
Neptunus became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
registered capital of Taizhou Neptunus was increased to RMB10,000,000
through additional capital contribution of RMB 9,000,000 by the Company
on the same date.

Taizhou Neptunus is conducting the research and development on
recombinant proteins and polypeptide drugs (including but not limited to
recombinant human thymosin a 1 for injection). In October 2011, Taizhou
Neptunus conducted phase | clinical trial on recombinant human thymosin
a 1 for injection, utilizing the "approval for recombinant human thymosin
a1 clinical research”, an intangible asset then owned by Neptunus
Pharmaceutical. Since phase | clinical trial has proceeded smoothly, the
Company planned to contribute further RMB80,000,000 into Taizhou
Neptunus to increase its registered capital to RMB90,000,000, and to
support the construction of the recombinant proteins and polypeptide drugs
production base (“Taizhou Production Base”) and planned to purchase
the related intangible assets, so as to realize the industrialization of these
products.

The Board of the Company passed a resolution in respect of the
“additional capital contribution of RMB80,000,000 to Taizhou Neptunus,
its wholly owned subsidiary” on 4 November 2011. The contribution of
RMB80,000,000 will be made in stages according to construction progress of
Taizhou Production Base and progress of foreign exchange translation of the
Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 10 January 2012, Taizhou Neptunus changed its name to Jiangsu
Neptunus Bio-pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Jiangsu Neptunus”),
with Mr. Zhang Feng as corporate legal representative and with R&D of
bio-pharmaceutical products and sale of class 1 medical equipment as its
business scope. As at the date hereof, Taizhou Production Base of Jiangsu
Neptunus is in the stage of purifying renovation, and the construction is
properly implemented according to project plan and the progress is smooth.
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R&D Business

Since January 2009, the Company has been focusing on the R&D Business
and the expansion of the R&D Business by providing R&D services to
Neptunus Bio-engineering and its subsidiaries. The R&D Business generated
a revenue of approximately RMB2,000,000 for the Company during the
Year. The Company also endeavored to seek R&D projects for new products
externally, thereby exploring a new direction for its future development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Subsequent to the end of the Year, the Company entered into a technical
cooperation agreement with School of Life Sciences, Jilin University on 1
March 2012 to cooperate in R&D of polypeptide and chemicals primarily by
microsphere technology and to explore the possibility of establishing a more
advanced platform for long term drug delivery technology. The Company is
negotiating with third parties on cooperative R&D and commercialization of
bio-technology projects.

Influenza Vaccine Business

On 9 June 2009, the Company and GSK entered into the joint venture
contract (the “JV Contract”), pursuant to which GSK-Neptunus, the jointly
controlled entity, was subsequently established on 6 August 2009.

On 13 June 2011, the Company and GSK entered into the Equity Transfer
Agreement, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Equity Transfer
Agreement, the Company agreed to sell the Equity Interests to GSK at
a consideration of USD39,000,000, which was arrived at after arm’s
length negotiations between the Company and GSK with reference to the
unaudited net asset value of GSK-Neptunus as at 31 May 2011 and the fair
value of the Equity Interests as at 31 May 2011.

The Disposal was approved at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company on 2 August 2011 and completed on 20 September 2011. Upon
completion of the Disposal, GSK-Neptunus ceased to be a jointly controlled
entity of the Company and the Company does not hold any equity interests
in GSK-Neptunus. During the fourth quarter of the Year, the Company has
received remittance of the consideration of USD39,000,000 for the Disposal.

10 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review

The Group’s turnover for the Year was approximately RMB474,652,000,
representing an increase of 1,141% from that of approximately
RMB38,256,000 in the corresponding period last year. Turnover for the Year
was mainly derived from sales income of medicine products of a subsidiary,
Neptunus Fuyao, and revenue of R&D Business. Sales income and revenue
of R&D Business accounted for 99.6%and 0.4% of the total revenue
respectively. The increase in turnover was because that Neptunus Fuyao
became a subsidiary of the Company in December 2010 and its sales income
of medicine was approximately RMB472,652,000.

The Group’s gross profit and gross profit margin for the Year were
approximately RMB164,841,000 and 35% respectively, increasing
by RMB152,461,000 and 3% respectively compared with that of the
corresponding period last year. The increase in gross profit was because that
Neptunus Fuyao, which became a subsidiary of the Company in December
2010, had a gross profit of approximately RMB164,625,000.

The Group’s other revenue and other net income for the Year was
approximately RMB32,826,000, decreasing by approximately RMB4,394,000
as compared with that of the corresponding period last year, representing
a decrease of approximately 12%. The decrease in other revenue and other
net income was mainly due to the fact that the Group sold Equity Interests in
GSK-Neptunus held by the Company during the Year, the gain of which was
slightly lower than that of last year.

The Group’s selling and distribution costs for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB63,772,000, increasing by approximately RMB56,540,000
compared with that of the corresponding period last year, representing
an increase of approximately 782%. The increase was due to the fact that
Neptunus Fuyao, which became a subsidiary of the Company in December
2010, had selling costs of approximately RMB63,772,000. Save for Neptunus
Fuyao, no other company incurred selling and distribution costs.

The Group’s administrative expenses for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB56,460,000, increasing significantly by approximately
RMB19,260,000 from approximately RMB37,200,000 in the corresponding
period last year, representing an increase of approximately 52%. The
increase in administrative expenses was because of three reasons: (i)
Neptunus Fuyao, which became a subsidiary of the Company in 2010,
had administrative expenses of approximately RMB44,278,000 this Year,
where in December 2010, it had administrative expenses of approximately
RMB5,514,000; (ii) the Group completed the issuing and allotment of
189,330,000 new H shares and received net proceeds of approximately
HK$164,252,000 in 2010, in addition, the Group completed the Disposal
this Year, receiving a consideration of USD39,000,000. Due to China
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foreign exchange control and the appreciation of Renminbi, an exchange
loss of approximately RMB4,128,000 was incurred in this Year; and (iii) the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 2 August 2011
approved the Disposal, GSK-Neptunus's operation conditions no longer
consolidated into the Group.

The Group’s other operating expenses for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB20,853,000, increasing by approximately RMB503,000
from approximately RMB20,350,000 in the corresponding period last year.
Neptunus Fuyao, which became a subsidiary of the Company in December
2010, had R&D expenses of approximately RMB9,933,000 this Year, and the
assets impairment loss of GSK-Neptunus of approximately RMB9,292,000 in
the corresponding period last year did not occur this Year.

The Group’s finance costs for the Year was approximately RMB14,084,000,
a decrease of approximately RMB1,246,000 from approximately
RMB15,330,000 in the corresponding period last year. The decrease was
primarily because of that the Company repaid the long-term loan from China
Development Bank, and it no longer had obligation to pay interests accrued
on such long-term loan.

The Group's profit/(loss) before taxation for the Year changed from loss of
approximately RMB30,512,000 in the corresponding period last year to profit
of approximately RMB42,498,000. Such change was mainly because of that
the Company acquired 80% equity interests in Neptunus Fuyao, a company
who has a steady profit, and of the completion of Disposal.

As such, profit attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately RMB21,686,000 for the Year, compared with loss of
approximately RMB30, 104,000 for the corresponding period last year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group usually finances its operating and investing activities with its
internal financial resources and bank loans. The Group’s transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi and the Group reviews its working capital
and finance requirements on a regular basis.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s total borrowings were
RMB76,000,000, of which all were short-term bank borrowings
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Banking facilities

On 23 May 2006, the Company entered into a long-term loan agreement
(the "CDB Loan Agreement”) with China Development Bank (“CDB") for
the grant by CDB of a loan of RMB130,000,000 (the “CDB Loan"”) to the
Company to finance the Company’s project on subunit vaccine of influenza
virus (the “Loan Project”). Pursuant to the CDB Loan Agreement, CDB
requires the Company, the Company’s controlling shareholder Neptunus
Bio-engineering, and Mr. Chai Xiang Dong, management shareholder of
the Company, to provide guarantee and securities (including but not limited
to the pledge of the domestic shares of the Company then held by them
to CDB) to secure the CDB Loan. In April 2011, the Company repaid all
the principal and interests under the CDB Loan Agreement to CDB, and
subsequently all guarantee and securities under the CDB Loan Agreement
were released.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group's short-term bank borrowings were
RMB76,000,000, all of which were short-term bank borrowings of Neptunus
Fuyao.

On 29 July 2011, Neptunus Fuyao was granted a short-term loan of
RMB27,000,000 from the Gushan (Fuzhou) Sub-branch of Agricultural Bank
of China (“ABC") by pledging its buildings and land use rights. This loan
is bearing an annual interest rate of 6.232% and will be repaid on 28 July
2012.

On 8 August 2011, Neptunus Fuyao was granted a short-term loan of
RMB29,000,000 from ABC, by pledging its buildings and land use rights. This
loan is bearing an annual interest rate of 6.232% and will be repaid on 7
August 2012.

Neptunus Bio-engineering provided guarantees to Neptunus Fuyao, by which
Neptunus Fuyao was granted 4 one-year short-term bank loans from ABC of
RMB10,000,000, RMB3,000,000, RMB3,000,000 and RMB4,000,000 on 8
October, 24 November, 14 December and 30 December 2011 respectively,
totaling RMB20,000,000, bearing interest rate of 6.232% per annum.
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Shareholder’s interest-bearing financial assistance

As at 31 December 2011, the Company has repaid all interest-bearing
financial assistance from Neptunus Bio-engineering, with outstanding
accrued interest thereof amounting to approximately RMB5,103,000.

Shareholder’s entrusted loans

The Company obtained a shareholder’'s entrusted loan of RMB9,000,000
from Neptunus Bio-engineering through an entrusted arrangement with
a bank. This shareholder’s entrusted loan is unsecured, bears an annual
interest of 5% and is repayable on 5 April 2009. Neptunus Bio-engineering
undertook that the repayment date of this entrusted loan be postponed to
5 April 2011. However, Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to the
Company that it would not demand repayment of the above-mentioned
shareholder’s entrusted loan unless and until: (1) the repayment of such
shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely affect the operations of
the Company and/or its business objectives as set out in the prospectus
published by the Company on 29 August 2005 (the “Prospectus”); and (2)
each of the independent non-executive Directors was of the opinion that the
repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely affect
the operations of the Company and/or the implementation of its business
objectives as set out in the Prospectus, and the Company would make an
announcement in respect of the decision of the independent non-executive
Directors made under (2); and (3) the Company had a positive cash flow and
had retained profits in the relevant financial year.

The Company obtained another shareholder's entrusted loan of
RMB39,000,000 from Neptunus Bio-engineering through an entrusted
arrangement with a bank. This shareholder’s entrusted loan is unsecured,
bears an annual interest of 5% and is repayable on 5 April 2009. However,
Neptunus Bio-engineering undertook that the repayment date of this
entrusted loan be postponed to 5 April 2011. The Company repaid such
shareholder’s entrusted loan to Neptunus Bio-engineering in November
2011.
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Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB185,448,000. Current assets comprised cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB226,675,000, bank guarantee deposits of approximately
RMB10,168,000, amounts due from related parties of approximately
RMB9,365,000, inventories of approximately RMB94,334,000, trade
and bills receivable, prepayments, deposits and other receivables of
approximately RMB68,208,000. Current liabilities comprised trade
and bills payables of approximately RMB72,373,000, taxes payable of
approximately RMB6,076,000, short-term interest-bearing bank borrowings
of approximately RMB76,000,000, receipts in advance and other payables
of approximately RMB40,553,000, amounts due to related parties of
approximately RMB19,300,000. The net current assets of the Group were
approximately RMB15,645,000 as at 31 December 2010. The significant
increase in the net current assets of the Group in the Year was mainly due to
the fact that the Company completed the Disposal in the Year and obtained
the consideration thereof of approximately USD39,000,000.

Pledge of Assets

Pursuant to the loan agreements entered into between the Company’s
subsidiary Neptunus Fuyao and ABC on 29 July 2011 and 8 August 2011
respectively, Neptunus Fuyao pledged part of its lawfully owned land use
rights and buildings to ABC.
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Foreign Currency Risk

During the Year, the Group’s operating revenue, major selling costs and
capital expenditure were denominated in Renminbi. Proceeds from the
issue of 189,330,000 new H shares were not fully translated into RMB
in accordance with national foreign exchange regulations, of which
approximately HK$31,559,000 was not translated in RMB as at 31 December
2011 and, as the consideration of the Disposal was denominated in US
dollars, approximately USD17,665,000 was not translated in RMB as at
31 December 2011. As such, the exchange rate fluctuation of Hong Kong
dollars against RMB and US dollars against RMB may adversely affect the
Group's profit for the Year. In the event of significant fluctuation in the
exchange rate of Hong Kong dollars against RMB and US dollars against RMB
in 2012, it will produce certain effect on the Group’s profit. Currently, the
Group has not adopted any financial instrument for hedging purposes.

Segment Information

Segment revenue and segment results by business and region of the Group
for the Year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has contracted commitments for future
capital expenditure of approximately RMB78,237,000. The Board believes
that such capital expenditure can be financed by the Group’s bank deposits
and bank borrowings.

Contingent Liability
As at 31 December 2011, neither the Group nor the Company had any
significant contingent liability.

Major Investment Plans

During the Year, other than developing the businesses disclosed in the
Prospectus, the aforesaid proposed new production base of Neptunus Fuyao
at Lianjiang County, Fuzhou City and Taizhou Production Base of Jiangsu
Neptunus, the Company did not make any other major investments.
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Human Resources

As at 31 December 2011, the Group employed a total of 1,183 staff (2010:
1,192). During the Year, the staff costs including directors’ remuneration
which amounted to approximately RMB48,027,000 (2010: approximately
RMB9,385,000). The salaries and fringe benefits of the Group’s employees
remained at competitive. The employees’ incentives were reviewed and
determined annually pursuant to the remuneration and bonus policies of the
Group based on the performance of the employees. The Group also provided
various other benefits to its employees.

As at 31 December 2011, the number of employees of the Group
categorized by various functions was set out as follows:
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As at 31 December

R+=A=t—8H
2011 2010
The Company FiN/NC|
R&D e 22 23
Administration THER 12 11
Neptunus Fuyao and its subsidiaries BIGERAKELR
Production & Manufacture FEBE 963 984
Sales & Marketing $HE K% 74 76
Administration THER 94 86
R&D e 9 10
Jiangsu Neptunus IEEE
Engineering Project Team TiRIEE A 9 2
Total B 1,183 1,192

Compared with 31 December 2010, the number of employees of the Group
remains at the same level in this Year.

The Group monitored closely the remuneration and fringe benefits of the
employees and rewarded employees in accordance with the Group's business
performance. In addition, training and development opportunities for the
employees were also provided by the Group.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Feng (3k$%), aged 40, has been the chairman of the Board since
June 2011. He obtained a MBA degree from University of Technology,
Sydney. Mr. Zhang studied in Géteborg University, Sweden. He is a member
of the 10th session of All-China Youth Federation and the 10th session
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee of Jilin Province, the
deputy chairman of Jilin Youth Federation, the deputy president of the 8th
session of council of Guangdong Province Youth Entrepreneurs Association
and the 5th session of council of Shenzhen City Youth Entrepreneurs
Association. Mr. Zhang served as the general manager of Shenzhen
Neptunus Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Neptunus Tongai
Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Company Ltd., the deputy general manager
and the chief marketing officer of Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering Co.,
Ltd., and a director of Shenzhen Neptunus Health Technology Development
Co., Ltd. (RYITEFHEERHEIERAEMRAT]). He is currently the deputy
chairman of the 5th session of the board of directors of Neptunus Bio-
engineering.

Mr. Chai Xiang Dong (4¢[M58), aged 51, has been appointed as the general
manager of the Company since February 2000, and is responsible for the
Company’s day-to-day management and overall activities. In April 2002,
he was appointed as director of the Company. Mr. Chai is a doctor in
chemistry jointly cultivated by Jilin University of the PRC and Super Molecule
Chemical Laboratory of College de France (ZEIFAZ3f%) of France, and
was a former deputy director and professor of Chemistry Department of
Jilin University of the PRC. Mr. Chai also obtained an EMBA degree from
Euro-China International Business College. Mr. Chai is currently a visiting
professor of Shenzhen University and member of MBA Education Committee
of Shenzhen University. He has extensive experience in listed medical
companies management and international project cooperation with domestic
companies.

Mr. Xu Yan He (#&R#F0), aged 55, graduated from Zhejiang Engineering
College, the PRC, with a bachelor degree in 1982, and has nearly 30 years
of experience in pharmaceutical manufacturing industry in China. He is
the deputy president of Fujian Pharmaceutical Profession Association (&35
HEEITERS), Fujian Pharmaceutical Association (f@i2E #&d) and
Fujian Medical Insurance Association (1&M4 BERBR I E). Mr. Xu is the
managing director of Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company
Limited and Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and
authorized representative of Fuzhou Fuyao Medical Co., Ltd.. Mr. Xu has
received a number of recognition, including Outstanding Entrepreneur in
Fujian and Outstanding Pharmacist in China.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun (BI(5%), aged 54, has been appointed as a director of
the Company since June 2011. He graduated from Nankai University, the
PRC in 1997, with a doctoral degree in Economics and a postdoctoral
degree in Management. A professor, he is a renowned expert in corporate
management and development strategies. Mr. Liu served as assistant to
the secretary and head of Research and Consulting Department of China
Development Institute in Shenzhen, China, and an independent director of
Neptunus Bio-engineering. He led and participated in a number of national
key research projects and corporate consulting programmes. Mr. Liu has
extensive experience in corporate management and capital operation. He is
currently a director of the 5th session of the board of directors and president
of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Ms. Yu Lin (F3#f), aged 55, has been appointed as a director of the
Company since February 2005. Currently, she is the director and vice
president of Neptunus Bio-engineering and is responsible for its new
products research and development. Ms. Yu graduated from Sun Yat-
Sen University of the PRC, and has more than 30 years of experience in
biochemical and pharmaceutical industries in the PRC.

Mr. Ren De Quan ({Ef&4#&), aged 67, has been appointed as a director of
the Company since November 2006. Mr. Ren has previously served as the
deputy Commissioner of National Chinese Medicine Administrative Bureau
and the deputy Commissioner of National Drugs Surveillance Administrative
Bureau, and retired in early 2005. Mr. Ren is also an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of China Shineway
Pharmaceutical Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon (£7k#), aged 54, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since August 2005.
Mr. Yick holds a bachelor degree in business administration, majoring in
accounting, from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in England. Mr. Yick has
more than 29 years of experience in auditing, direct investment, investment
banking and corporate advisory services. In addition, Mr. Yick is also an
independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee
of Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited and China
Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited, (the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). He was also an independent
non-executive director and the chairman of the audit committee of China-
Biotics, Inc., where he resigned on 23 June, 2011, and an independent non-
executive director and chairman of the audit committee of the Travelsky
Technology Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange) when he was
subject to retirement on March 16, 2010.

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung (&32F5), aged 45, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since August 2005. Mr.
Poon obtained his bachelor degree in mathematics with minor in economics
and marketing from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1989 and
was further admitted to the MBA degree by the University of Hull, United
Kingdom, in 1996. Mr. Poon has been appointed as a Honorary Institute
Fellow of the Asia-Pacific Institute of Business of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong since April 2002. He has been teaching marketing-related
subjects for the master degree in science program, MBA program and
Global Executive MBA program (OneMBA) of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Since June 2008, he has been appointed as visiting Adjunct Associate
Professor in the Department of Marketing of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong.

Mr. Huang Yao Wen (Z#X), aged 41, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since June 2011. He graduated from
Southwest University of Political Science & Law, the PRC, in 1992, and
obtained a MBA degree from Euro-China International Business College
the PRC. Mr. Huang is a member of All-China Youth Federation, Central
Government Youth Federation (FHREIZKIEREIEEE), Central State-owned
Enterprises Youth Federation (FR®ZEFHE) and Chongging Youth
Federation (EE T &%), and an adjunct professor of Law School of Central
University of Finance and Economics (R EFERE @I AER). He is an executive
partner of Kaiwen Law Firm, Beijing, an independent director of the 5th
session of the board of directors of Neptunus Bio-engineering, Sino-i
Technology Ltd.( B 2455 & & B FR 2 7)) and Nan Hai Corporation Limited.
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Supervisors

Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong (R&#EER), aged 56, has been a supervisor of the
Company since June 2008. Mr. Xiong obtained a doctorate degree in
accountancy from Xiamen University in 1992. Mr. Xiong was appointed as
an independent director of Neptunus Bio-engineering up to August 2007.
Mr. Xiong is currently the department head and professor of the Accounting
Department of School of Economics of Shenzhen University, the independent
director of Shahe Industry Company Limited, Shenzhen Laibao High-Tech
Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Feima International Supply Chain Company Limited and
Shenzhen Beauty Star Company Limited.

Mr. Wang Bin (E#), aged 52, has been a supervisor of the Company
since June 2011. He graduated from Precision Instrument Department of
Harbin Institute of Technology, the PRC, with a master degree in 1986. He
served as a teacher in Precision Instrument Department of Harbin Institute
of Technology, the deputy general manager of Shenzhen Jingshan Group
Joint-stock Company Limited (%Y R ILEEBAZH AR A ), the chief human
resources officer of Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company Limited (between
1997 and 2000) and the deputy dean of Harbin Institute of Technology
Shenzhen Graduate School.

Mr. Yu Jun (181E), aged 40, has been elected as a supervisor of the Company
since June 2002. Mr. Yu is now the manager of IT Department of the
Company.

Senior Management

Ms. Lee Mei Yi (Z23£4%), aged 44, has been appointed as a joint company
secretary of the Company since 1 December 2008. Ms. Lee is a senior
manager of Corporate Services Department of Tricor Services Limited and
an associate member of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Ms.
Lee has over 20 years of experience in the corporate secretarial area.

Mr. Huang Jian Bo (E&I#), aged 36, has been appointed as a joint
company secretary and an authorized representative of the Company since
1 December 2008. Mr. Huang graduated from College of Accounting at
Hunan University with a bachelor degree in economics. Mr. Huang has
been the secretary to the Board of the Company since 2007. Mr. Huang is
a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Ms. Xu Jing (#:%F), aged 35, has been the financial controller of the
Company since June 2007. Ms. Xu graduated from Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law with a bachelor degree in accountancy. She is a member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Board is pleased to present the report of Directors and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Principal Activities

The Company is a high and new technology enterprise incorporated in
the PRC. During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in the sale
of a variety of pharmaceuticals, such as herbal medicine, generic drugs,
transfusion and anti-tumor drugs, and the R&D Business in the PRC.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last two financial years ended 31 December 2011, and the
published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
Year is set out on pages 47 to 177.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the distribution of any dividends for the
Year (2010: Nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company during the Year are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year are set
out in note 31 to financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and Company during the
Year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2011, the Company had no distributable reserves, while its
accumulated loss, calculated in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association and relevant rules and regulations, amounted to approximately
RMB127,634,000.

Capitalized Interest
The Group has no capitalized interest during the Year.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale Or Redemption of the Listed Shares
of the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the
Company’s listed shares during the Year. The Company and its subsidiaries
also did not redeem, purchase or cancel any of their redeemable securities.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 16.75% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 5%. Purchases from the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 18% of the total purchases for
the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted
t0 7%.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors, the supervisors of
the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (who, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Company’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

Directors and Supervisors

The Directors and supervisors of the Company during the Year and their
terms of employment were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Si Min 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2008 (retired on 25 June 2011)

Mr. Zhang Feng 3 years from his appointment on 25 June

2011

Mr. Chai Xiang Dong 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2011

Mr. Xu Yan He 3 years from his appointment on 25 June
2011
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ren De Quan 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June

2011

Ms. Yu Lin 3 years from her re-appointment on 25 June
2011

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun 3 years from his appointment on 25 June
2011

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2011

3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2011

3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2008 (retired on 25 June 2011)

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung

Mr. Lu Sun

Mr. Huang Yao Wen 3 years from his appointment on 25 June

2011

Supervisors

Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June

2011

Mr. Yu Jun 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2011

Mr. Wang Bin 3 years from his appointment on 25 June
2011

The Company confirms that as at the date of this report, it has received
annual confirmations of independence from Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr.
Poon Ka Yeung, and Mr. Huang Yao Wen. The Company still considers these
three Directors to be independent pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Service Contracts of Directors and Supervisors

Each of the Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company with a term up to 24 June 2014 and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice to the other.

None of the Directors or supervisors of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration is subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Company. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 7
to the financial statements.

According to the service contracts entered into between the Company and
its supervisors, the Company shall pay the supervisors Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong,
Mr. Wang Bin and Mr. Yu Jun the remuneration of RMB30,000, RMB30,000
and RMB20,000 per annum respectively.

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees and their remuneration are set out in note 8
to the financial statements.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Contracts

Save for the service contracts of the Directors and supervisors of the
Company as disclosed above, there were no contracts of significance to
which the Company or its controlling companies was a party and in which a
Director or supervisor of the Company had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives in the Listed
Securities

As far as the Directors or supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2011, the interests and short position of the Directors, supervisors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") (including interests
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or were required, pursuant to the “required
standard of dealings” for directors as set out in Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange or had
otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares of the Company:

RARBBM 2R

Approximate

percentage of

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s

Number of all the issued

domestic domestic shares share capital

Type of shares held (s EERRAFEE

Director/supervisor Capacity interests B8 RERZ BITRAZ

2 EE g4 fEREE RNEREE BMABIHE BHAEI T

Mr. Chai Xiang Dong (Note (1)) Beneficial owner Personal 47,671,000 3.80% 2.84%
e S (M (1)) EmEB A EA

Mr. Yu Jun (Note (2)) Beneficial owner Personal 1,014,000 0.08% 0.06%
WE S (T (2)) EnEAA fEA

Notes: Wi -

(1) Executive director and general manager of the Company

(2)  Supervisor and employee of the Company.

(1) BRARRRTEERELEE

2) RARREERFEE

26 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011



Long positions in shares of associated corporations of the Company:
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RARBEBEERD ZHR

Approximate

percentage of

associated
Number of corporation’s
Name of shares in issued
associated associated share capital
Type of corporation corporation {HAEEEE
Director Capacity interests Pt BEREEE ERITREZ
BE 54 ERES EEEE ZREE BHAED
Mr. Zhang Feng (Note (a)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 532,437 0.08%
w$geE (Hiita) BEmEEA {8 A  Bio-engineering
BEEY
Mr. Liu Zhan Jun (Note (b)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 266,217 0.04%
BIEERE (HEb) BmEAA f8A  Bio-engineering
BEED
Ms. Yu Lin (Note (c)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 79,864 0.01%
Tkt (Katc) BE=EAA {8 A  Bio-engineering
BEEY
Notes: Wit -
(@) Mr. Zhang Feng, deputy chairman of the board of directors of Neptunus Bio- (a) BIAEYVESRRIETFERELEESADRIER

engineering, was interested in approximately 0.08% of the entire issued share
capital of Neptunus Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder,
which in turn was interested in approximately 70.38% of the entire issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2011.

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun, director and president of Neptunus Bio-engineering, was
interested in approximately 0.04% of the entire issued capital of Neptunus
Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn was
interested in approximately 70.38% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2011.

Ms. Yu Lin, director and vice-president of Neptunus Bio-engineering, was
interested in approximately 0.01% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus
Bio-engineering, which in turn was interested in approximately 70.38% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2011.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor their respective associates
held any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the “required standard of dealings” for
directors as set out in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Share Option Scheme, Convertible Securities and
Warrants
Up to 31 December 2011, the Company and its subsidiaries have not

adopted any share option scheme and have not granted any option,
convertible securities, warrants or other similar rights.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Share Options,
Warrants or Convertible Bonds

At any time during the Year, none of the Directors or supervisors of the
Company or their respective spouse or minor children were granted
any share options, warrants or convertible bonds of the Company, its
subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entity or associated corporation.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as the Directors and supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2011, the interests and/or short positions held by shareholders
(not being a director, a supervisor or a chief executive of the Company) in
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
entered in the register pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares of the Company:
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RARBBD 2557

Approximate

FREHE

Approximate

percentage of

Number of percentage of the Company’s
domestic all the issued
shares held domestic shares share capital
B8 1EFrE LR NN
Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity AER AERH SRITREN
FTERRER 27 ROHAE BMHABDT BMABED
Neptunus Bio-engineering Beneficial owner 1,181,000,000 94.33% 70.38%
BEEY EmEEA
Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company Interest in controlled 1,181,000,000 94.33% 70.38%
Limited (“Neptunus Group”) corporation
(Note (a)) BB XEREE S
RIEBEEEBERNOEFRAF
(DeE&EE ) (M7t @)
Ankeen Enterprises Limited (“Ankeen Interest in controlled 1,181,000,000 94.33% 70.38%
Enterprises”) (Note (b)) corporation
EREREXERLR([ERER]) HAEXENZEENER
(Hzz®)
Ms. Wang Jin Song (Note (c)) Interest in controlled 1,181,000,000 94.33% 70.38%

FShRE A (et () corporation

RAZERER N #ER
Notes: Wit -
(@) Neptunus Group was deemed to be interested in 1,181,000,000 domestic shares (a)

of the Company held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Neptunus Group was
beneficially interested in approximately 27.66% of the entire issued share capital

of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

15 Byl o

RYIHBERBFEEDRMBRHBERLQE

HRETEEESZHAETEDNE I BITHRAE
4927.66% MR ASTSEEW R BB ER
BT EYEFARARR,181,000,000 i A E K
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(b)  Ankeen Enterprises was deemed to be interested in 1,181,000,000 domestic
shares of the Company held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Ankeen Enterprises
was beneficially interested in approximately 41.90% of the entire issued
share capital of Neptunus Group, which in turn was beneficially interested
in approximately 27.66% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-
engineering.

(© Ms. Wang Jin Song (“Ms. Wang”) was deemed to be interested in
1,181,000,000 domestic shares of the Company held by Neptunus Bio-
engineering as Ms. Wang was beneficially interested in 85% of the entire issued
share capital of Ankeen Enterprises, which in turn was beneficially interested
in approximately 41.9% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Group,
which in turn was beneficially interested in approximately 27.66% of the entire
issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and supervisors of the Company are
not aware of any other persons (except the Directors, supervisors or Chief
Executives of the Company) who, as at 31 December 2011, held interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
The continuing connected transactions that are exempt from the GEM Listing
Rules during the Year are set out as follows:

(i) Trademark licensing

The Company entered into trademark licence contracts (the
“Trademark Licence Contracts”) with Neptunus Pharmaceutical on
28 December 2002 and 1 April 2004 respectively pursuant to which
Neptunus Pharmaceutical granted a non-exclusive licence to the
Company to use the trademarks owned by Neptunus Pharmaceutical
at nil consideration for the period until the term of registration of
such trademarks expires. The term of the Trademark Licence Contracts
will be extended automatically as long as the registrations of such
trademarks remain effective.

As there was no consideration payable under the Trademark Licence
Contracts for the Year, pursuant to Rule 20.33(3) of the GEM
Listing Rules, the above transaction was exempt from any reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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ERCERRABRERSIENMEENEAAR
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(ii) Property lease

Factory

On 1 January 2010, the Company and Shenzhen Neptunus
Tongai Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Company Ltd. (“Tongai
Pharmaceutical”) entered into a property lease contract pursuant to
which Tongai Pharmaceutical as landlord agreed to lease a property
with a total gross floor area of approximately 3,722 sq.m. to the
Company as tenant for factory and R&D manufacturing uses for a
period of three years commencing from 1 January 2010 and expiring
on 31 December 2012 at an annual rental of RMB267,984. The
leased property is located at portions of levels 1 and whole of level
4, Neptunus Industrial Complex, the Fifth Industrial Zone, Beihuan
Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC. Tongai Pharmaceutical has
waived the rental of RMB267,984 payable by the Company in the Year.

As the aggregate rental under the lease contracts payable to Tongai
Pharmaceutical for the Year were less than HK$1,000,000 and each of
the percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) was less than 5% on
an annual basis, pursuant to Rule 20.33(3) of the GEM Listing Rules,
the above transaction was exempt from any reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

Financial assistance

Details of the financial assistance by controlling shareholder and
management shareholder are set out in the section headed “Material
Related Party Transactions” in note 35 to the financial statements.
As the financial assistance was on normal commercial terms and
no security over the assets of the Company was granted in respect
of the financial assistance, pursuant to Rule 20.65(4) of the GEM
Listing Rules such financial assistance was exempt from any reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transaction Exempt from Independent
Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

The continuing connected transaction exempt from independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 20.34 of the GEM Listing
Rules undertaken by the Group during the Year is set out below:

Pharmaceutical R&D Service Agreement

On 24 August 2009, the Company and Neptunus Pharmaceutical entered
into the a R&D service agreement relating to the provision of services
in the research, development, animal testing, clinical trial of cytokines
therapeutic drugs and other ancillary services by the Company to Neptunus
Pharmaceutical (the “Pharmaceutical R&D Service Agreement”). The initial
term of the Pharmaceutical R&D Service Agreement is from 24 August
2009 to 31 December 2011. According to the Pharmaceutical R&D Service
Agreement, unless Neptunus Pharmaceutical terminates the Pharmaceutical
R&D Service Agreement by giving to the Company three months’ prior
written notice before the expiry of the initial term and subject to compliance
with the relevant provisions under the GEM Listing Rules, the Pharmaceutical
R&D Service Agreement will be automatically renewed (on the same terms)
for three years upon the expiry of the initial term.

The Company has made an announcement on 24 August 2009 and disclosed
that the annual cap of the above continuing connected transaction for the
period from 24 August to 31 December 2009 and the two financial years
ending 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011 would not exceed
RMB800,000, RMB2,000,000 and RMB2,100,000 respectively.

During the Year, the Company has, according to the Pharmaceutical R&D
Service Agreement, received from Neptunus Pharmaceutical aggregate
service fees of approximately RMB2,000,000. Such actual service fees
received do not exceed the annual cap as disclosed in the relevant
announcement dated 24 August 2009.
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Sale of goods agreement with Neptunus Changjian

On 4 May 2011, Neptunus Jinxiang entered into a sale of goods agreement
with Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(“Neptunus Changjian”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
Neptunus Bio-engineering, (“Changjian Sales Agreement”), pursuant to
which Neptunus Jinxiang agreed to supply self-manufactured drugs at the
prescribed prices to Neptunus Changjian for the period from 4 May 2011 to
31 December 2011. The Company has made an announcement in relation to
such continuing connected transaction on 4 May 2011 and disclosed that the
annual cap of such transaction for 2011 would not exceed RMB8,300,000.

During the Year, Neptunus Jinxiang provided self-manufactured drugs of
approximately RMB7,099,000 to Neptunus Changjian pursuant to Changjian
Sales Agreement, which did not exceed the annual cap disclosed in the
relevant announcement dated 4 May 2011 mentioned above.

Sale of goods agreement with Nepstar

On 4 May 2011, Neptunus Fuyao entered into a sale of goods agreement
with Shenzhen Nepstar Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Nepstar”)
("Nepstar Sales Agreement”), pursuant to which Neptunus Fuyao agreed to
supply self-manufactured drugs at the prescribed prices to Nepstar for the
period from 4 May 2011 to 31 December 2011. The Company has made
an announcement in relation to such continuing connected transaction on
4 May 2011 and disclosed that the annual cap of such transaction for 2011
would not exceed RMBS,200,000.

During the Year, Neptunus Fuyao provided self-manufactured drugs
of approximately RMB6,632,000 to Nepstar pursuant to Nepstar Sales
Agreement, which did not exceed the annual cap disclosed in the relevant
announcement dated 4 May 2011 mentioned above.

The Board also considers the above Pharmaceutical R&D Service Agreement,
Changjian Sales Agreement and Nepstar Sales Agreement to be material
service contracts between the Company and its fellow subsidiaries as defined
under Rule 18.27 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.
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Competing Interests

On 21 August 2005, Neptunus Bio-engineering entered into an agreement
with the Company containing undertakings relating to non-competition and
preferential rights of investments (the “Non-Competition Undertakings”),
pursuant to which Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to the
Company and its associates (among others), that as long as the securities of
the Company are listed on GEM:

(i) it will not, and will procure its associates not to, whether within or
outside the PRC, directly or indirectly (other than those indirectly
held as a result of the equity interest in any listed company or its
subsidiaries), participate in or operate any business in whatever form, or
manufacture any products (the usage of which is the same as or similar
to that of the products of the Company) which may constitute direct
or indirect competition to the business operated by the Company from
time to time; and

(i) it will not, and will procure its associates not to, hold any interest,
whether within or outside the PRC, in any company or organization
(directly or indirectly, other than those indirectly held as a result of
its equity interest in any listed company or its subsidiaries) when the
business of such company or entity will (or may) compete directly or
indirectly with the business of the Company.

Pursuant to the Non-Competition Undertakings, at a time when the
Non-Competition Undertakings are subsisting, whenever Neptunus Bio-
engineering or any its associates enters into any negotiations, within or
outside the PRC, in relation to any new investment projects which may
compete with the existing and future business of the Company, the
Company will also be entitled to the preferential rights to participate in the
investments in such new investment projects.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Staff Retirement Scheme

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Company are set out in note 5
to the financial statements.
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Auditor

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, Certified Public Accountants, was
appointed as the Company’s auditor in 2011. The financial statements has
been audited by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, who will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Due to the merger of business between CCIF CPA Limited and PCP CPA
Limited, CCIF CPA Limited resigned as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 15 June 2010. Following the resignation of CCIF CPA Limited,
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor of the
Company to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there were no change in the Company’s auditors in
the preceding three years.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited
Zhang Feng

Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
16 March 2012
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The Company strives to attain a high standard of corporate governance. The
principles of corporate governance adopted by the Company emphasize a
quality board, sound internal control transparency and accountability to all
stakeholders.

(A) Corporate Governance Practices

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices was effective for
accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2005. The
Company put strong emphasis on the superiority, steadiness and
rationality of corporate governance. The Board is of the view that the
Company has complied with the requirements set out in Appendix
15 “The Code on Corporate Governance Practices” and Appendix 16
“Corporate Governance Report” of the GEM Listing Rules throughout
the accounting period covered by the annual report.

(B) Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

During the Year, the Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exacting than the “required standard of dealings” as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they have
not conducted any transaction in respect of the Company’s securities
during the Year. The Company is not aware of any violation by the
Directors on the “required standard of dealings” and the Company’s
internal code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors.

(C©) The Board

The Board is responsible for planning and overseeing the overall
development and management of the Company with the objective
of enhancing shareholders’ value. The Board, led by the Chairman, is
responsible for the approval and monitoring of the overall strategies
and policies of the Company, approval of annual budgets and business
plans, evaluation of the Company’s performance and oversight of the
management. As at 31 December 2011, the Board comprised nine
Directors, including three executive Directors, three non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The Board
delegates day-to-day operations of the Company to executive
Directors, while reserving certain key matters for its approval. And
the management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Company under the guidance of the General Manager.
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The participation of non-executive Directors in the Board brings
independent judgement on issues relating to the Company'’s strategy,
performance, conflicts of interest and management process to ensure
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that the interests of all shareholders of the Company have been duly BEEEIARN

considered. One of the independent non-executive Directors has the
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appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and related financial CHMEEV S EREEREE - EEER
management expertise. Biographical details of the Directors are set out HE HRFISE2NHEE LS REIRE
under the Directors and Senior Management section from pages 18 to —f o

21.

Details of the attendances of the Board are as follows:

Member of the Board

BEREMHFERFBOT

Number of meetings attended

EEERE HEEBRH
Zhang Si Min (Note 1) Chairman, Executive Director 2/2
REBE (A1) FERHTTEE

Zhang Feng (Note 2) Chairman, Executive Director 2/2
SR$% (M5t 2) FIEFNTEF

Chai Xiang Dong Executive Director, General Manager 4/4
MR ITE FRAEEIE

Xu Yan He (Note 2) Executive Director, General Manager of Neptunus Fuyao 2/2
TRIAN (HT5E2) HITEFEF G T 15ZERAE

Liu Zhan Jun (Note 2) Non-executive Director 2/2
BISE (HrEt2) HPITEE

Yu Lin Non-executive Director 4/4
Tk FHPITEE

Ren De Quan Non-executive Director 4/4
(ExGr FHHITEE

Yick Wing Fat, Simon Independent Non-executive Director 4/4
FKE B TEE

Poon Ka Yeung Independent Non-executive Director 4/4
ERS HIHHTEE

Lu Sun (Note 1) Independent Non-executive Director 2/2
BEHZT) B HPTEE

Huang Yao Wen (Note 2) Independent Non-executive Director 2/2
mIBX (5t 2) B TEF
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Note 1: Due to rotation, Mr. Zhang Si Min and Mr. Lu Sun retired as Directors of
the Company on 25 June 2011. Only two board meetings of the Company
were held before 25 June 2011.

Note 2: Due to rotation, Mr. Zhang Feng, Mr. Xu Yan He, Mr. Liu Zhan Jun and Mr.
Huang Yao Wen were appointed as Directors of the Company on 25 June
2011. Only two board meetings of the Company were held subsequent to
25 June 2011.

(D) Chairman and General Manager

(E)

As the leader of the Board, the Chairman is responsible for the
approval and supervision of the overall strategies and policies of the
Company, approval of annual budgets and business plans, evaluation
of the Company’s performance and oversight of the management. The
General Manager is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Company. The Articles of the Association of the Company has set out
the role and powers of the Chairman and General Manager. The roles
of the Chairman and General Manager should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 August 2005,
comprising one executive Director and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Feng, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr.
Poon Ka Yeung. The scope of duties of the Remuneration Committee is
stated in the Corporate Governance Handbook of the Company.

The principal terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
prepared in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and include:

()  making recommendations to the Board on the Company’'s
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
the senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

(i)  the determination of the remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company and the
making of recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
the non-executive Directors; and

(iii)  the review and approval of their performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives of the Company
resolved by the Board from time to time.
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(F)

The Remuneration Committee determined the remuneration of the
Directors according to their expertise, knowledge and commitment to
the Company with reference to the Company’s profitability and the
prevailing market conditions. The Remuneration Committee should
consult the executive Director and the General Manager about its
proposals relating to the remuneration of the Senior Management.

One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the
Year.

Member of Remuneration Committee

Corporate Governance Report
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TEEIRME

FHEZEENREENEERE  MEKk
HARBNER - 2BARFNB NG
RBOTHN EXEEFH - ARESRE
EENHHEE  FTHEZBESEABANT
BEERBKE -

FMZBEENAFERRIT KRG

p=1IS

% o

Number of meetings attended

FHWEESZEE HESERE
Zhang Feng Committee Chairman, Executive Director 171
ki ZRETERHNTEE

Yick Wing Fat, Simon Independent Non-executive Director 11
FZxEE BUIHTTEE

Poon Ka Yeung Independent Non-executive Director 11
&G BUHHTTEE

Nomination of Directors

No Nomination Committee was established by the Company. Eligible
candidates were recommended to the shareholders of the Company for
consideration by the Board and the selection criteria for the additional
Director were mainly based on the assessment of their professional
qualifications and experience.
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(G) Auditor’'s Remuneration

An amount of approximately RMB1,710,000 (2010: RMB1,854,000)
was charged to the Company’s income statement for the Year as

follows:

Services rendered

(G) ZEEMEN &
RAFEEARARRESRIIBNESENR
AER#1,710,000 T (ZZT—ZTF : ARKE
1,854,0007T) * W ¢

Fee paid/payable
Approximately

FriR L0 AR A% e ENERHNLE
RMB
AR
Audit services ZE AR
(2010: approximately RMB1,300,000) (ZZ—ZF : HAKH1,300,0007T) 1,300
Other services E A AR5
(2010: approximately RMB554,000) (ZZT—Z%F : HARHE554,0007T) 410
Total: P 1,710

(H) Audit Committee

The Company had established an Audit Committee on 21 August
2005. The Audit Committee comprised one non-executive Director,
namely Ms. Yu Lin and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Poon Ka Yeung. Mr. Yick
Wing Fat, Simon was the chairman of the Audit Committee. The
scope of duties of the Audit Committee is stated in the Corporate

Governance Handbook of the Company.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i) to consider, and to make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external

auditors, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and to resolve any issues of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(i) to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the auditing process in
accordance with applicable accounting standards;

(H) BZES
—-=

RARER TRFENAZ+—HKL
ERZES BERZBEABIFNTE
= (RTHMZL) EMEBFLIFATES (D
R RBXRELERBRS L) MK » 5K
BELERERZBEIR -BRZEEN
BEHECRARBNERERTFMA
AL

ERZBENIERBWT

(i) ZEERME - BRERERINSIZEED
TREFSRMEBES - FHINE
A BT 0 3 BN S S R R - A R BR 32
ZIZBENEHE MR R E A

(i) WA REEIEXZBMNELE T
Bt MMRBEREEAETRE
REFNERIE

40 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011



Py

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(i)

s

._ ,,mq‘w

ﬂli el "

to discuss the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations with the external auditors before the auditing
commences, and to ensure co-ordination where more than one
audit firm are involved;

to review and monitor the integrity of the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements, reports and accounts of
the Company, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained therein, before submission to the Board,
focusing particularly on any changes in accounting policies
and practices, major judgmental areas, significant adjustments
resulting from the audit, etc.

to review the Company’s financial control, internal control and
risk management systems;

to discuss with the management the system of internal control
and to ensure the management has discharged its duties in
maintaining an effective internal control system;

to review the external auditors’ letter to the management
and answer any material queries raised by the auditors to
management in respect of the accounting records, financial
accounts or system of internal control;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s letter to the management;

to report to the Board on the matters set out herein and, in
particular, the matters required to be performed by the Audit
Committee under the Code on Corporate Governance Practices;

to act as the key representative body overseeing the Company’s
relationship with the external auditors; and

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and
final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to discuss (in
the absence of management where necessary).

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year to discuss
matters relating to the accounting standards and practices adopted
by the Company, internal control and financial reporting matters, etc.,
including the review of the audited consolidated financial statements
and results for the Year.
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(ii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)
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PERERWmE
Member of the Number of
Audit Committee meetings attended
EREB]ZEE HEERRH
Yick Wing Fat, Simon Committee Chairman, 4/4
ZKE Independent Non-executive Director

EERTEFEVIHNTEE

Poon Ka Yeung Independent Non-executive Director 4/4
ER=B HIHPTEE
Yu Lin Non-executive Director 4/4
T HPITEE

0)

The Audit Committee has held meetings with the external auditors of
the Company to discuss the annual consolidated financial statements
and results and the internal control system of the Company. The
General Manager and financial manager also attended the meetings to
answer questions in respect of the financial results of the Company.

The management of the Company provided all ledgers, analysis and
supporting documents as required by the Audit Committee to facilitate
their review on the financial statements and control system of the
Company to their satisfaction so that they would be able to submit
appropriate advice to the Board.

Directors’ Responsibility for Accounts

The Directors have confirmed that the preparation of the Company’s
financial statements is in compliance with the relative regulations and
applicable accounting standards. The Board has also warranted that the
Company'’s financial statements would be distributed in due course.

(
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9)

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for overseeing the system of internal control
of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. To facilitate the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations and to ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, the Company emphasizes the
importance of a sound internal control system. The Company’s system
of internal control is designed to provide reasonable assurance against
any material misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems and fulfillment of business objectives.

During the Year, the management of the Company has appointed an
external consultant to review the internal control system with focus
on risk management of the Company and has submitted the results
of the review and its recommendations and opinions for consideration
to the Audit Committee and the Board. The Audit Committee and the
Board have discussed the relevant results of the review and appropriate
modifications will be made to the management system of the Company
according to the findings and recommendations therein.

RYIHBERBFEEDRMBRHBERLQE
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To: All shareholders

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has exercised its powers
seriously to safeguard the interests of the Company and shareholders,
complied with the principle of good faith, discharged its duties
conscientiously and undertaken tasks in a diligent and proactive manner
in accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the relevant Hong Kong
laws, regulations and the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Article of
Association”).

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has reviewed in detail and
approved the audited financial statements and this report which will be
presented at the annual general meeting. Supervisors of the Company have
reviewed prudently the operation and development plans of the Company,
and carried out strict and effective supervision as regards whether major
decision-making and exact decisions by the management of the Company
are in compliance with the laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles
of Association and safeguard the interests of shareholders. Supervisors
believe that during the Year, the operating results of the Company were
sufficient to reflect its position, and all expenses and costs incurred were
reasonable. The profit sharing scheme was in the long-term interest of
shareholders and the Company. The provision for statutory surplus reserve
and public welfare fund made during the Year has complied with the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC and the Company’s Articles of
Association.

During the Year, to the best knowledge of the Supervisory Committee,
no Directors or other senior management of the Company were found to
have abused his authority or have harmed the interests of shareholders
and employees. To the best knowledge of the Supervisory Committee, no
Directors or other senior management of the Company were found to have
violated any applicable laws or regulations, the Articles of Association or the
relevant regulations of China Securities Regulatory Commission. Supervisors
believe that the Directors and other senior management of the Company
have strictly observed their respective duties and acted prudently and
exercised their powers in good faith in the best interest of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee of the Company is full of confidence in the
future of the Company and would like to take this opportunity to express its
gratitude to all shareholders, Directors and staff for their strong support to
the Supervisory Committee.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Xiong Chu Xiong
Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Shenzhen, the PRC
16 March 2012
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Independent Audltor S Report

Crowe Horwath..

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen
Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”), its
subsidiaries and its jointly controlled entity (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 47 to 177, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2011 and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited

Member Crowe Horwath Internationl

7 2 FIEE335 FE341E
34/F The Lee Gardens,

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B 2 BEN RS

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 16 March 2012

Alvin Yeung Sik Hung
Practising Certificate Number P05206
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Consdlidated Incdme Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HLFE

2011 2010
—E——fF —ZT-TF
(Restated)
(&&E5)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MIaE ARET T AREFT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HEREER
TURNOVER B 3,12 474,652 38,256
COST OF SALES SHER A (309,811) (25,876)
GROSS PROFIT ER 164,841 12,380
OTHER REVENUE H A 4 9,965 8,301
OTHER NET INCOME Hit A #58 4 1,823 185
Selling and distribution expenses SHE Ko tHRE X (63,772) (7,232)
Administrative expenses ITHAX (48,272) (22,280)
Other operating expenses HhEErx (20,772) (11,014)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS WEHRR(FE) 43,813 (19,660)
Finance costs B E R 5(a) (13,876) (15,330)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION BRBLADER(B58) 5 29,937 (34,990)
Income tax FTiSis 6(a) (13,045) 131
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM NEEF@EEE RN ()
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 16,892 (34,859)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEEK
Profit from discontinued operation B IEEB R A 13 12,561 4,478
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR REEHR,(BR) 29,453 (30,381)
Attributable to: AT PEML -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ YN 21,686 (30,104)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR FE 2 7,767 (277)
29,453 (30,381)
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF (FHE)
From continuing and discontinued BRFELCERERILER
operations
Basic and diluted EAREE 1 RMB A R# RMB AR
1.29 cents 7 (3.00) cents 7
From continuing operations BRERE
Basic and diluted HEAREE RMB AR RMB AR #&
0.54 cents & (3.44) cents 7
The notes on pages 58 to 177 form part of these financial statements. FES8EEF 177 AWK UL F B wKRE —
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Consolidated Statement of Cohprehensive Income

AEEHKER

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE-_Z——&+-_A=t+—HIEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-EF
(Restated)
(7 &751)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
Profit/(loss) for the year REERA(FR) 29,453 (30,381)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AEENHMGEEmRE (BE)
for the year
Exchange differences on translation of: METY|IHE EERE N ZRE ¢
— Financial statements of a jointly HEEH BRI S HRE
controlled entity - (4,120)
Reclassification adjustment for exchange BRI ELRZEHIER
difference relating to disposal of a EAEME N ZRRKES
jointly controlled entity I 4,155 =
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) ANEEHMEMEUWE (FiB) H5E
for the year, net of tax (BR##E) 4,155 (4,120)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AEENEZEKZEEBRBE
for the year 33,608 (34,501)
Attributable to: AT REL,
Owners of the Company RARER A 25,841 (34,224)
Non-controlling interests IEE AR R 7,767 (277)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) NEEHZERE (&E) 88
for the year 33,608 (34,501)
The notes on pages 58 to 177 form part of these financial statements. FE8EEF 177 BN BRI FMBHREN—

5 -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BARRR

As at 31 December 2011

RZE——F+_A=+—H
2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
LiEss ARBT T ARETFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB KRi&tE 14 131,045 326,897
Prepaid lease payments A EERIE 15 70,299 90,668
Intangible assets | AE 16 135,376 138,695
Deposit for acquisition of property, BEME - BEKERHESN
plant and equipment b ia 17 5,369 1,144
Deposit for acquisition of land BE+HmiRs 18 8,630 =
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 21 300 60
Deferred tax assets FEEFRIEE E 28(b) 1,548 1,898
352,567 559,362
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories wE 22 94,334 89,434
Trade and other receivables R Ui B % B EL i R LK R TR 23 77,573 84,208
Pledged bank deposit EHIRIRITIER 24 10,168 5,640
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASEEBY 25 226,675 247,056
408,750 426,338
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and other payables FEATER 3R e Eo A AT 58 26 132,226 248,847
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITEE 27 76,000 106,000
Entrusted loans from the immediate HESRAREFRER
parent company 29 9,000 48,000
Current taxation BNHARE 18 28(a) 6,076 7,846
(223,302) (410,693)
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFH 185,448 15,645
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERREEME 538,015 575,007
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBTORK

As at 31 December 2011
RZE——F+=ZA=+—H

2011 2010
—E——fF —T-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FsE ARET T AREFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITIEE 27 - 62,000
Deferred revenue FEIEW 30 11,443 16,843
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIBEE 28(b) 40,296 40,296
(51,739) (119,139)
NET ASSETS EEFE 486,276 455,868
EQUITY Ea
Equity attributable to RAREB A
owners of the Company e
Share capital [N 31 167,800 167,800
Reserves (Eei] 32 248,873 223,042
416,673 390,842
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS IR 69,603 65,026
TOTAL EQUITY FETRAAEE 486,276 455,868

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 March 2012. RZE—ZFF= AT AKEESHfE RINE

Fz -
Zhang Feng Chai Xiang Dong
%4 EIOES
Director Director
= =
The notes on pages 58 to 177 form part of these financial statements. E58EEF 177 EMM A UL S H5 K ) —
#5 -
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Statement of Finanaal Position

Br IR &

As at 31 December 2011

W—_ZE——F+=-_HF=+—H
2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR¥T T AREEFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB KRi&tE 14 18,275 21,199
Intangible assets mEE 16 19 37
Interest in subsidiaries A NIEENGILE: F 19 454,440 445,240
Interest in a jointly controlled entity LRI B B R 2 20 - 240,288
Deposit for acquisition of property, BEME BER
plant and equipment RERIRS 17 780 =
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 21 300 60
Deferred tax assets FEEFRIEE E 28(b) 969 726
474,783 707,550
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 22 = =
Trade and other receivables R Ui B % B EL i R LK R TR 23 15,682 2,809
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEFEY 25 143,333 157,372
159,015 160,181
CURRENT LIABILITIES kb=
Trade and other payables JE 1S BR 50 R L A FE A< SRR 26 13,802 119,147
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Mt SERITIEE 27 - 24,000
Entrusted loans from the immediate HBEARERLER
parent company 29 9,000 48,000
Current taxation BNHARS 18 28(a) 2,342 2,342
(25,144) (193,489)
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE (AR FHE 133,871 (33,308)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #AEERREBERE 608,654 674,242

R ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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Statement of Financial Position

BIFSIRER

As at 31 December 2011
RZE——F+=ZA=+—H

2011 2010
—E2——fF —T-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
b AR¥T R ARETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITIEE 27 - 62,000
Deferred revenue RIS 30 10,314 16,292
(10,314) (78,292)
NET ASSETS BEERE 598,340 595,950
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to RATHEB A
owners of the Company e
Share capital [N 31 167,800 167,800
Reserves G 32 430,540 428,150
TOTAL EQUITY FERAARE 598,340 595,950

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 March 2012.

Zhang Feng
i

Director

EF

The notes on pages 58 to 177 form part of these financial statements.

RIB-——F=A+ R BREFSHERRET
% -

Chai Xiang Dong
SRER
Director

EF

FE8ARFE 177 AWM BRI FR R ERA —

BB e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

As at 31 December 2011
RZZT——F+=A=+—H

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAAREARL
Statutory Non-
Share Share reserve  Exchange Capital Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium fund reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
kA BbEE EENE  EXRE EARE  ZER @t FEREE  AEs
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR AREBTR ARETR
(Note31) ~ (Note32)  (Note 32)
(W3 (WE32)  (WiE3)
t 1 January 2010 RZE-Z5-F-A 94,667 41,923 3330 (35) - (106,534) 33351 — 33,351
Change in equity for 2010 TE-BEREEY
Loss for the year rEEEE - - - - - (30104  (30,104) 277 (30.381)
Exchange difference on HREHERI
translation of financial BRAZEH
statements of a jointly EiZE
controlled entity - - - (4.120) - - (.120) - (4,120)
Total comprehensive income rEENEEEBLEE
for the year, net of tax (%) = = = (4,120) - (30,104)  (34.204) Q77)  (34,501)
Issue of new shares it 54200 390,240 - - - - 4dd0 - 444440
Non-controlling interests arising KEETREAAM
on the acquisition of EE S ERER
Neptunus Fuyao - - - - - - - 65,103 65,103
Formation of subsidary B —ERBAA - - - - = = = 200 200
Placing and subscription of RERBENHR
new H shares 18933 126312 = = = - 145245 - 145245
Share issue expenses BRipEaRY = (3,631) = = = = (3,631) = (3,631)
Deemed distribution arising on BT REAR
the acquisition of [i]: 24313
Neptunus Fuyao BRBRRTE - - = - (194339) - (194,339) - (194,339)
Transfer to other reserves ERABLE - - 4972 - - @I - - -
At 31 December 2010 R-B-BET-A=+-H 167,800 554,844 8302 (4155 (194339 (141610) 390842 65026 455,868
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

AN -
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As at 31 December 2011

W—ZE——F+=-_A=+—8H

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREE AL
Statutory Non-
Share Share  reserve Exchange  Capital Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium fund  reserve  reserve losses Total interests equity
RAe  RGEE AEAR EXRK ERRE  RiEE & FERER ars
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note31)  (Note32) (Note32)
(WE31)  (WaEs2)  (Wa33)
At 1 January 2011 R=E—%-f-H 167,800 554,844 8,302 (4,155)  (194,339)  (141,610) 390,842 65026 455,368
Change in equity for 2011 “E--FREEY
Profit for the year AER T - - - - - 21686 21,686 1767 29453
Disposal of interest in HE—F LR
a jointly controlled entity ERitn - - - 4,155 - - 4,155 = 4,155
Total comprehensive income REENREFRAR
for the year, net of tax (B#i%) - - - 4,155 - 21,686 25,841 1767 33,608
Acquisition of non-controlling WA B AN R ER
interests in subsidiary - - - - - (10) (10) (190) (200)
Dividend paid from subsidary EAFEERERNHEARRE
to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - (3,000) (3,000)
Transfer to other reserves BRHMEE - - 3,974 - - (3974 = = =
At 31 December 2011 RZ8——#+ZA=1-A 167,800 554844 12,276 - (194339) (123908) 416673 69603 486,276
The notes on pages 58 to 177 form part of these financial statements. FE58BEEE 177 BRI EEK UL F M B HREA—
o e
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Consolidatéd Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HLFE

2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B =E AR%TT ARETTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES TR
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEL AT =, (E51E)
— Continuing operations - BELE XD 29,937 (34,990)
— Discontinued operation - BRIEEB 12,561 4,478
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation e 18,569 8,367
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE TR ERIEE 1,816 598
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE 3,968 512
Impairment of trade receivables FEUBR FOR(E - 689
Impairment of other receivables E At R WGRIERE 33 88
Impairment of property, Y% - BE REERIE
plant and equipment - 11,151
Recovery of impairment on trade Wi it Bl R MK K
receivables before the acquisition NENIEEEREEAE] (1,251) =
Reversal of impairment HAb EBGRIERER
on other receivables o (572) (69)
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEMUR D - (116)
Finance costs 75 & F 14,084 15,330
Interest income FMEUA (1,141) (36)
Subsidy income released from R B IR = aI e
deferred revenue WA (8,121) (7,896)
Gain on disposal of 9% equity interest HE H o HEEHIEE 9%
in a jointly controlled entity [ B Utz - (28,674)
Gain on disposal of 51% equity interest HE R EIEFIEEES1%
in a jointly controlled entity [ ) Uitz (21,030) =
Write-down of inventories MoRIFE 435 149
Loss on disposal of property, HEWIE - E KRB
plant and equipment 18 631 1,342
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL EEESHD 49,919 (29,404)
Increase in inventories FEEm (7,579) (8,072)
Decrease in trade and PR LS R 50 e L At 8 e kT8
other receivables A 58 76,148
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FEATBR R e oAb AT 5RTB
other payables CR), /18 (91,122) 24,594
(98,643) 92,670

R ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,\\, X fﬁi/mii

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(2T ——F+-A=1+—HBItFE

2011 2010
—E——fF —T-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
b AR¥TT ARETTT
CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM & (M), EERE
OPERATIONS (48,724) 63,266
Income tax paid — PRC EMEHR - (14,465) =
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM & 5E8 (FTH) EL£ERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEE (63,189) 63,266
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Deposit for acquisition of property, BEME  BERRENES
plant and equipment (4,581) (395)
Deposit for acquisition of land BERMENES (8,630) =
Payment for purchase of property, BEME - BERRENNK
plant and equipment (51,807) (71,524)
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling BB HIE A B A FEIE AR A2 Y
interests in a subsidiary (DE: (200) =
Payment for acquisition of
available-for-sale investments Y Rg A B S E TR (240) (60)
Net cash inflow from acquisition of BB A RIMFRSRA
subsidiaries 36 - 78,480
Proceeds from disposal of 9% equity H & H R I 58 9% AriEr)
interest in a jointly controlled entity Wz - 70,846
Net cash inflow from disposal of 51% L EEHIE EE 51 % IRER
equity interest in a jointly controlled entity IR & = F5E 37 237,189 -
Payment for expenditure of intangible assets &7 & & 2 F 1 31 (649) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE - HE RRED
plant and equipment FriS5k38 76 75
Increase in pledged bank deposits B IRIR T LN (4,528) (5,640)
Interest received 2HFILE 1,141 363
Government grants received BRI A 2,721 18,000
NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING B&ETEHELBELFE
ACTIVITIES 170,492 90,145
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
TEREREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE_ZT——F+_A=1+—HILFE

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T T ARET T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES SETE
Proceeds from new bank loans FTILIRITE RS RIE 96,400 =
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (168,000) (58,000)
Repayment of entrusted loans from EBEREE& AT
the immediate parent company REER (39,000) (30,000)
Interest paid EATFE (14,084) (15,330)
Proceeds from issue of shares BTG TS RCR - 145,245
Share issue expenses AR BT = (3,631)
Dividend paid from subsidiary IRETFEIE AR R I P B R BIAR B
to non-controlling interests (3,000) -
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM E&558) (i) ELXBE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES TREE (127,684) 38,284
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND R&RESZEEY GRL), i
CASH EQUIVALENTS FE (20,381) 191,695
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HWEERESEZEY
AT | JANUARY 247,056 55,361
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=-—A=+—HBHELK
AT 31 DECEMBER ReZEY 25 226,675 247,056
The notes on pages 58 to 177 form part of these financial statements. ES8HEF 177 BRIM T B UL S B mKRA—
D o
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Notes to the Fihancial Statéments

BrEE SRR MY aE
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i 1

For the year ended 31 December 2011
E-T——F A=t —HILEE

1. Significant Accounting Policies 1. FESFTBUR

a) Statement of compliance a) HBEEH
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all R GHRERTIBEESSTMASEMRD
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which A E R EBY SRS ER ([ FE %R
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial £ ) (e RERNERNE ST RS
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and R BAGEN(EBGHER ) R
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public ZE) AR AREFTRARES A BEA
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted W BRE - AMBRRIDETFTEBHES
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong RSB R A AR ZERES TR E
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the R#EFEGE - ARA - B AR KEF
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of THIEE(GE [ AEE ) FIRANEES
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of STBCRBEZH T AT ©
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company, its subsidiaries and its jointly controlled entity
(together referred to as the “Group”) is set out below.
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs which are first EAet A BhE THal R&IEET
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting BEMBREER  HEXEKXB TR
period of the Group and the Company. Note 2 provides information on ARASEERARXG RN E IS8R o K
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of FE2 IR BN E A S 2R M S R AT R
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group FREHNER - EZFEREEZEHN
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial BIRERAPTRMAE BN B AT R LRI
statements. B -

b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements b) REEMBERNWELE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and its jointly
controlled entity.

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group
are measured using the currency that best reflects the economic
substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the
entity. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"),
and it is also the functional currency of the Company. All amounts are
rounded to the nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statement is the historical cost basis.

BE-—T——F+-A=T—ALEEN
GAMBHRRBEAAT  AHBATR
HREHIER -

BERNAEESERNFBHRRANER
DERRERRETREENEFLEBER
MEEBEENERE - ZEMBH/RTD
NARE(TARE D25 MARE TS
ARABZNEER - KA FEAN - FE
ERONIBAAT XA EEREA T
2 o

R BRREFEANEREEARS
AR -
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)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with
a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 40.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken
into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

R ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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b)

)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI L

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE_ZT——F+_A=1+—HILFE

TESTBR (&)
mRMBERHERE (H)
REREEMBRSEANRARY B RE
B EEEAFLAZERRERALE
E - Aff - WARAXSENHE - G5
RBRR - ZE et REERKRIDERES
RELEERBERBELECEREGENH
ERMEL  MESRTEKAEGEHEE
ENBEREEMNEE  MZEFEREZX
HEMKRER - BERAERAEEZEMN
MR -

ZEMFRBERRGBRFEEET AR
A o B EFH AT MER R EZIRA -
AIFRERINMET M BMHER - X
eI 22 B Al ke A& B3R - RIRMERT
HAfE K F 1R HRRE RERR o

o

EREERRFEFHAAHMBHREREEATE
MBS REEELNFE - URE
BEHERABRNERNRAR DG TR M
40T ©

ol PNGIDSE 2
MBAREAEEZEHNER ZAEH
BFEER —HXEBNM B REEHRNAE
HERB T RSN R FEES - Y
EHIREITRE(AES - AR K B AR T EAE
HEREFHE -

R—RKT B R R AR E i 7% 4% b 4 5 46 19
FHEEZHEK LABGaNGEHK
BR - EERERERXZARAEERR
25 P EE A O ) 1) K B8 5% s 1) 2 00 s SR A
BMBHRERFZEME - ARBERRXZAH
EENAERBERERERBENNER T
AT UAMEE - AW BB ENERE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P E

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

1.

(9]

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance (effective from 1 January 2010 onwards). Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Mn‘. L‘ 1”
*ﬁm .

,f:r
U Ladd
L Y

[}

(9]

/

*E&ﬁ (nﬁ

MTE’AT&?H“’“H%Eé(%E
FEERERERNNBAREED AL IEAR
REEERSAFEREENED > MAKEL

B B TSR A AR E TR
R BEAEEEERZ TR AIER
EMBABERNENEE -

FEREESRNEAVHRARNERS
5 BB RARBIHEE ABEES - R®
AEEREANFERESERSRER
NaRe 2 mE R A AR F sl e 18 R AR
FEFERESRAARBEAAZEHNE
E SRR D B FI 3R o BI(E S G BRI
REABEREL WEARZEKRAR
BINEBREARAEE ARIFZEBRER (R
“T-TFE-F-HZRER) o KA FE
BESHAANERREZEFREANHE
MmENEE RIABUHERES MR
NKREJRHBRARE -
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(9]

d)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain
or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)), unless
the investment is classified as held for sale.

Jointly controlled entity

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a
contractual arrangement between the Group or the Company and
another party or parties, where the contractual arrangement establishes
that the Group or the Company and one or more of the other party or
parties share joint control over the economic activity of the entity.

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements on a proportionate consolidation
basis. Under this method, the Group combines its proportionate share
of a jointly controlled entity’s turnover and expenses with each major
turnover and expense caption of the Group’s income statement and
combines its proportionate share of the jointly controlled entity’s
assets and liabilities with each major asset and liability caption of the
Group's statement of financial position, from the date that joint control
commences until the date that joint control ceases.

R ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BT ——F+_A=+—HILFE

HER = H-I_I-E& (n\a
)= NS E 2L )
AREERBE BN E L AR EEEZE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

d)

e)

(2T ——F+-A=1+—HBItFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Jointly controlled entity (Continued)

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised gains arising
from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised profits and losses arising
from transactions with a jointly controlled entity is eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss. When the Group disposed of the interests in jointly controlled
entity partially without loss of control, the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interest in a jointly
controlled entity is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)),
unless classified as held for sale.

Investments in equity securities

Available-for-sale equity securities are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair
value reserve except foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of monetary items such as debt securities
which are recognised directly in profit or loss. When these investments
are derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale equity securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses (see note 1(j)) at the end of the
reporting period.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group and/
or the Company commits to purchase/sell the investments or when they
expire.
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f)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 1())).

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value of 10% on
cost, using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

—  buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the date
of completion;

—  other fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

5 to 10 years
5 years
5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity
of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net proceeds on disposal and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and machinery and
equipment under construction and equipment pending installation,
which is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when substantially all of the activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are completed.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are available for use.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised
from the date they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

Technical know-how 10 years
Computer software 5 to 10 years
Trademarks 10 years
Customer list 10 years

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from the development
(or from the development phase) of an internal project is recognised if,

and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sales;

e theintention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the
period when the asset is derecognised.

Other intangible assets arising from business combinations
Anesthetic drug production & selling right, trade name and customer
list acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. The anesthetic drug production & selling right
and trade name has indefinite useful life and are carried at cost less
impairment losses. The useful life of the anesthetic drug production &
selling right and trade name are considered by the management of the
Group as indefinitely because the Anesthetic drug production & selling
right, and trade name are expected to contribute to the Group’s net
cash inflows indefinitely. The customer list has a finite useful life of 10
years and is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over the useful life.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

i)

ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following
exception:

Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases,
the amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments of such
assets are included in property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely that the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 1(f). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 1(j). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.
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1.

h)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

iii)

iv)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land

Interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Impairment of assets

i) Impairment of investment in equity securities and other
receivables
Investment in equity securities and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or
are classified as available-for-sale equity securities are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 1. FESFTBER (E)
j)  Impairment of assets (Continued) ) EEREE
i) Impairment of investment in equity securities and other i) RAZBFREREMEWKIERE
receivables (Continued) (%)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and M EFEERIZERE - AR EESE
recognised as follows: BRI T EE KR :

HRMBARMNKREMS  BE

—  For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment loss is =

measured by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount in accordance with note
1(j)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note 1(j)ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities are not
reversed.

For trade receivables and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
j)  Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

ii)

Impairment of investment in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

—  prepaid lease payments;

intangible assets; and

interest in subsidiaries.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 1. FESFTBER (E)
j)  Impairment of assets (Continued) ) EEREE
ii)  Impairment of other assets (Continued) i) BEmEERE (&)
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If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that are
not yet available for use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.

A ESENETE

- Calculation of recoverable amount =

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying amount of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
j)  Impairment of assets (Continued)

ii)

iii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
the Group is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see note 1(j)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill and available-for-sale equity securities carried at cost
are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.
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k)

m)

n)

B+ -A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment losses for doubtful debts, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses for doubtful debts (see note 1(j)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid investments readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

d ;,.w—l r':if-"ﬁ' 4

k)

m)

n)

FTESTBER (&)

et B K B Lt P L R

FEM SRR « Bt UK T W) F R A FE
R HRERERNE DR EHEHK

RBRZROREEBBRBEDR - HEHZEF

EM IR RGE THREALTNREERNE

EREEERMREFRZERMTIRE

FERIBRIN o FEUBERT » BKRFKIBTIIEK

RBAERMERE (RHEE1() FI8R -

B SAE K

Mt BAER T NFHE R FER R Z KA
SRR - RYIERERIR - M BB FIREH 5
RAGIRR - WERERF ST - ERR
BRGNP ERIAERTERNEEZME
MERERERTAMNERENERRE
mARPHER

FE A5 BR R B HL o FE A FRIR

FERSRIB R E M BN RIBTI VIR AFE
R HRIZGEIEA AR - BRIFTER
TER/MTRE BRI TARKAT
BE o

RERBRESEEY

RekAeEEMERRTEAFRLRA
T RITMEMSBREBAERER &
BEREABRA-FCNBSBREMEE
ZHEML TN BEBAR-—KR=EH
RHAIMNERSRELRE - BEe
Ren8RMs NTEERARKEERE
BEYREKRNEERSEE —HOHR
TEX  ERASRRSEEYN &S -

74 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011



1.

o)

p)

. g

g

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to central
pension scheme
The Group participates in the central pension scheme (the “CPS")
operated by the local government authority of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") for all of its employees. The Group
is required to contribute a certain percentage on its payroll to the
CPS to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the CPS is to pay the ongoing required contributions
under the CPS. Contributions under the CPS are recognised in
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the CPS.

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
central pension scheme and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

i)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having
a detailed formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amount of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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p)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided that those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods,
in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of each reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end
of reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the payment of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or the Company
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group or the
Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities

i)

ii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations
Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination which
are present obligations at the date of acquisition are initially
recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation where
appropriate, and the amount that would be determined in
accordance with note 1(qg)(ii). Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination that cannot be reliably fair valued or were
not present obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed in
accordance with note 1(q)(ii).

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of an outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts and
returns.

i) Research and development service income
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the
services are rendered.

iii)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

iv) Government grants and subsidies

Government grants and subsidies are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants and subsidies that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants and subsidies that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit and loss over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a
foreign operation which are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e., a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e., partial disposals of associates that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

i) has control or joint control over the Group;
i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 1. FESFTBER (E)
u) Related parties (Continued) u) BIEAL(HE)
(b)  (Continued) (b)y (&)
iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other v) —EEBA—EAF=FH—MHE
entity is an associate of the third entity. B ME—EBEBRZE=A

B —fEEE AT

v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit v) #ZEBR-IEEKRENGE
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Z FTEITIERARE .1E/\jz75’5215
Group. SEEEIN—EEENESR
T'J
vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person vi) FREREX (a)ERPTRERM A TIEG
identified in (a). Sk R
vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the vii) R (a)(i) RFTER A A TE 2 B 88
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of BERTENIZANLTRZER
the entity (or of a parent of the entity). (KZBBEHNE AR NEEEE
AB
Close members of the family of a person are those family —BATHEAHATENAZE (X
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, ZATRZERBANR S E0Z
that person in their dealings with the entity. EREKE °
v) Segment reporting v) ZSDEBR
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported ISR RIBEI AL E D 3 RS @5 HPAHIE
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information MBBEHETHREIFAESEZENTE
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management BENEERD B R G AEB LB EK
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the HIRIR RIIBALE 2 BTSSR R RETE ©
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for HUBERMNE - RIEDDEERUNL
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic BERNEREERRRBUE FEIFH
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products & REHEANER - BIED R E MK
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of RGN T EREERBEN ML S HEE
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide P BTRHZSEEREEBITETE
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating & o (@5 3E§7{E’J,€i§ DE MEFAE L
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they MAEDIRE - AIA[EITEE -

share a majority of these criteria.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Government grants and subsidies

Government grants and subsidies are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grants and subsidies will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grants and subsidies relates to an expense item, they are recognised
as income or net off against directly related borrowing costs (see note
1(t)), over the periods necessary to match the grants and subsidies on
a systematic basis to the costs that they are intended to compensate.
Where the grants and subsidies relate to an asset, they are presented
as deferred revenue and are released to the income statement over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business,
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale, if
earlier. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is
presented on the face of the income statement, which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and
—  the post-tax gain/loss recognised on the measurement to fair

value less costs to sell, or on the disposal of the assets or disposal
group constituting the discontinued operation.

R ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA

w)

x)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P E

For the year ended 31 December 2011
E-T——F A=t —HILEE

2.

Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010
HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) Related Party Disclosures

Amendments to HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)
—Int14

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material effect on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior
accounting periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these financial
statements.

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as revised in 2009)

HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a related party. As a
result, the Group has re-assessed the identification of related parties
and concluded that the revised definition does not have any material
impact on the Group’s related party disclosures in the current and
previous period. HKAS 24 (revised 2009) also introduces modified
disclosure requirements for government-related entities. This does not
impact the Group because no entity within the Group is a government-
related entity.

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010 omnibus standard introduces
a number of amendments to the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
7 Financial instruments: Disclosures. The disclosures about the
Group's and the Company’s financial instruments in note 34 have
been conformed to the amended disclosure requirements. These
amendments do not have any material impact on the classification,
recognition and measurements of the amounts recognised in the
financial statements in the current and previous periods.
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Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the research and development
("R&D") of modern biological technology and the provision of R&D
services, production and sales of medicines in the PRC.

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold net of value-
added tax, after allowances for returns and trade discounts and net
invoiced value of R&D services provided net of sales tax.

Notes to the Financial Statements

AR ARI

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_ZT——F+-A=+—HItFE

3. B
AEENETEXEBRERRETRAE
)RR FE BB B ([ FT 8% )) - IR LT B AR
7% EEMIEEEEY) o

LEEBRCEEMNBERFE(NKREER
NRENE S NBE) RIREE RS
BRFE(NREETFR) -

2011 2010

=F——F -t

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFT

Sales of medicines BEOIHERE 472,652 35,608
R & D service income B RIS WA 2,000 2,648
474,652 38,256
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HILLFE

e

4. Other Revenue and Other Net Income 4. HWARHEMU A FEE
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
b7 BRILER At
201 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
“g--§ -F-%F - -R-FE  E--F 3-%F
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&=31) (& &5) (&5
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
liF3 AR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETx
Other revenue EftA
Interest income from bank deposits ST SAA 1133 304 8 60 1,141 364
Total interest income on financial  W3ERRERHATESE
assetsnotatfairvalue through ~ £REENFIEMALE
profit or loss 1,133 304 8 60 1,141 364
Subsidyincome released from  ERAERMEHBARA
deferred revenue 30(a) 8,121 7.8% - - 8,121 7,89
Others =) m 101 - - Al 101
9,965 8301 8 60 9973 8,301
Other net income Eﬂﬂl&)\%ﬁ
Gain on partial disposal of 9%~ HAHELRHES
equity interest of a jointly 9%H%’§E’]”&m
controlled entity - - - 28,674 - 28,674
Gain on disposal of 51% HEXREHER
equity interest of a jointly 51%HRER
controlled entity - - 21,030 = 21,030 =
Recovery of impairment IR R R A
on trade receivables g} {E)
before the acquisition 1,251 - - - 1,251 -
Reversal of impairment Hit YA
on other receivables K&E 512 69 - - 51 69
Reversal of write-down of FEMAEE
inventories - 116 - - - 116
1823 185 21,030 28674 22,853 28,859
86 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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5. Profit/(Loss) before Taxation

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging the following:

b

-.J

H.«

Notes to the Financial Statements
BTSRRI 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE—_E——&+-_A=1+—HIEE

5. BRBIADEF](E1R)
BRBIATEF (B5R) TSI A T &7 -

1

Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
KELE £33 &f
2011 2010 2011 2010 201 2010
“3--f %% - %% ZB--F  C2-%F
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(& E5) (& =5) (& E5)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTn  ARETx
a)  Finance costs a) B%ER:
Interest on bank loans whlly repayable RENERRRRENETNTE
within five years 7,532 6,913 208 - 7,740 6913
Interest on financial assistance from BESARBKENNHE
the immediate parent company 4,586 4711 - - 4,586 4711
Interest on entrusted loans from ERBARZTERNTIE
the immediate parent company 1,758 3,706 - - 1,758 3,706
Totalinterest expense on financial liabiltes TEBRARATER
not at fair value through profit or loss SHERNHEHLE 13,876 15,330 208 - 14,084 15,330
b)  Staff costs (including directors’ b) BIAK(BHEESHE):
remuneration)
Contributions to defined contribution TREFRINENE
retirement plan 9,586 1,005 251 4 9837 1,746
Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥4 TEREMRA 38,441 8380 2405 8657 40,846 17,037
48,027 9,385 2,656 9,398 50,683 18,783
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BT ——F+_A=+—HILLFE

5. Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (Continued) 5. BRBADEF,(BE) (&)
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Consolidated
g g At
2011 2010 201 2010 2011 2010
2—-% -"T-Z¥ 8- _T-Tf ZB--F _E-%f
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(@ E5)) (=5 (i&=3])

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ABMTR  ARETT  ARRfR  ARBTR ARBfR ARBTR

¢  Otheritems o EfER:

Amortsation 23

~ prepaid lease payments -BRRERE 1,570 130 26 468 1816 598

- intangible assets * -EVEE 3,968 512 - - 3968 512
Depreciation e

-~ assets held for own use under -REEERERFERNEE

operating leases 3,032 246 1,750 3,047 4,782 3,293

- other assets -HfpAE 13,03 4163 764 9 13,787 5,074
Impairment of e

- trade receivables * ~JeliRE - 689 - - - 689

- other receivables * - HhresE 3 8 - = 33 88

~ property, plant and equipment * -W% - FE Rkl - 1,859 - 9292 - 11,151
Write down of inventories * HiRGE: 435 149 - - 435 149
Net foreign exchange loss ERERTE 4,039 229 89 636 4128 2926
Loss on disposal of property, WENE « BERRENEE

plant and equipment * 631 1,298 - 44 631 1,342
Auditor's remuneration 2 Gl

- audit senvices ~Eithk 1300 1,300 - - 1300 1,300

-~ other services — K ftifeis 410 554 - - 40 554
Operating lease charges: minimum lease payment TSR : BEHS 526 338 - - 526 338
Cost of inventories RERA 305,034 19,549 - - 305,034 19,549
R&D costs * ES 13,275 6,141 - - 13,275 6,141
*  These amounts of continuing operations are included in “Other * REREBELENSEARERER

operating expenses” on the face of the consolidated income B [ H A& A o
statement.

88 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011



A

_r3

6.

Income tax in the Consolidated Income
Statement

a)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:

Notes to the Financial Statements

AR ARI

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_ZT——F+-A=+—HItFE

6. MNEFEEWIEKRIIHBFER

a) RERBRERIILMPTEHE -

2011 2010
—2——fF —T-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FisE AR%TT ARETTT
Current tax BT IR
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B ZEFTISEL 12,695 =
Over provision for PRC Enterprise 5t/ Bl {2 FT/5 71 O R BB B 5
income tax - (366)
Deferred tax EERE
Origination and reversal of B EREROTE KB E
temporary differences 28(b) 350 235
13,045 (131)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group has no

income assessable to Hong Kong Profits Tax. (2010: Nil)

The PRC enterprise income tax rate (the “EIT”) for the year ended

31 December 2011 is 25% (2010: 25%).

HRAREL BBHANETENEHRL
FERTLUA - B BT IR BB NGB
BRE(CEZTF:F)-

BE_Z——S+_A=+—HL#F

ERHRECEMESHRRE([REME
1) A25% (ZF—F4F : 25%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. Income tax in the Consolidated Income 6.

Statement (Continued)
b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit/(loss) at
the applicable tax rates:

e

RERE WE RS H A RER

(&)

by MEXHEREREMRAENSE

i,/ (BE) AR

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREETTT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BrARATE 1R
— Continuing operation — BB ET 29,937 (34,990)
— Discontinued operation —BARIEE 12,561 4,478
Notional tax on profit/(loss) IR IEABRARE TS B A R A T
before taxation, calculated AR ETERBALET, (BE) 8
at the rates applicable HENIA
to profits in the tax
jurisdictions concerned 10,628 (7,627)
Tax effect of non-deductible AR A B R E
expenses 1,389 5,537
Tax effect of non-taxable income /BRI A BT B2 (5,258) (7,325)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERR AT ARIBEENT G E
not recognised 6,286 9,284
Actual tax expenses BERHEY T 13,045 (131)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HLFE

EEM=
BE-T——F+-A=t+—ALEEE
WS RIEEE D A IEDIE 161 RN

7. Directors’ Remuneration 7.

Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2011
disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance are as follows: N
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2011
fees in kind contributions Total
e 2R BIRGHE —E-——f
ik REWFRZE R st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT ARBTR ARBT T
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Zhang Si Min REREE(RZT—F
(Resigned on 25/6/2011) ANBZTRBET) 49 - - 49
Mr. Chai Xiang Dong Lemm ks 51 553 26 630
Mr. Zhang Feng REESE(RNZT——F
(Appointed on 25/6/2011) NAZTRBZEAE) - - - -
Mr. Xu Yan He REMEE (RZE—F
(Appointed on 25/6/2011) NAZTRBZEE) - 330 17 347
Non-executive directors FBITES
Ms. Yu Lin T+ 49 - - 49
Mr. Ren De Quan EEExE 200 - - 200
Mr. Liu Zhan Jun BEBEE(R=ZT—F
(Appointed on 25/6/2011) NAZTRBRM) - - - -
Independent non-executive directors B FEHTES
Mr. Lu Sun BELE(RZZ—F
(Resigned on 25/6/2011) NAZTRAEHT) 51 - - 51
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SKEERE 212 - - 212
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung ERBEE 106 - - 106
Mr. Huang Yao Wen ERNEE(RZE——F
(Appointed on 25/6/2011) ANAZTRBEZME) 51 - - 51
769 883 43 1,695
B EREEEYMRMROERART  2011FFR 91
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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7.
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Directors’ Remuneration (Continued) 7. EEME (&)
Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2010 BT ZF+_-_A=+—HItFE=
disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies EMEREBEFB L BEHIE 161 1§ E M
Ordinance are as follows: s 8
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2010
fees inkind  contributions Total
£ A= RIREHE —T-TF
EE0E REDF = H st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Zhang Si Min RERELAE 100 - - 100
Mr. Chai Xiang Dong SRt 167 505 23 695
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. Yu Lin T+ 167 - - 167
Mr. Ren De Quan EEERE 200 - - 200
Independent non-executive directors B FHITES
Mr. Lu Sun BELE 106 - - 106
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SKEFE 212 - - 212
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung ERBEE 106 - - 106
1,058 505 23 1,586
During both years, no remuneration was paid or payable by the Group REEFEE - NEEWEEEBRLES AT

to any of the directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals set out
in note 8 as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
both years. No bonus was paid or payable to directors which are
discretionary or are based on the Group’s performance.

ThAHEEHEEINME  (FRMAX
SEIMALEE R ZBHIERRER A
B NMEFE YEEERERXFREN
REANSHZH - BERNBEIREAS
BRBMESC KB °
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE-_ZT——F+-A=+—HItFE
Individuals with Highest Emoluments 8. meIMES
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, RAFERAESERERFTNEEBRE
two (2010: one) are directors of the Company whose emoluments are MAH(ZE—ZTF : —Z)AQFEF H
included in the disclosures in note 7. The emoluments of the remaining B RE7 - HBp=R (T —TF :
three (2010: four) individuals are as follows: WE) = iiE S ME BT
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETT AREETIT
Salaries and other benefits e REMF 5 1,866 2,298
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 117 112
1,983 2,410
Their emoluments are all within the band HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 _T——i)}_? ZEF+=-A=+—H
(equivalent to approximately RMB842,000) for years ended 31 SFMNEENFHERN TEETE
December 2011 and 2010. ,%%1 ,000,0007T (HHERA) AR #842,000
JL) °
Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company 9. RNAFEE AEGERR
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company includes AREEBAEGEERNBIEERAR
the profit of approximately RMB2,390,000 (2010: loss of approximately AMBREAAREENEHNNARE
RMB17,750,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements 2,390,000 T (ZZE—ZF : FERHARE
of the Company. 17,750,000 7T) °
Dividends 10. IR
The directors do not propose the payment of any dividend for the year EEVTEZRENER EE——$+ —A
ended 31 December 2011 (2010: nil). =+ —ALEFEFRMARE(ZZT—TF:
=) o
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HE_Z——F+_-_A=+—HLHFE
11. Earnings/(Loss) per Share 1. ERER,(FE)
a) For continuing and discontinued operation a) BEEKERERILEEBMmMS
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the FREABF (R HREAAREES
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately A FE1h % R 49 AR # 21,686,000 ( =&
RMB21,686,000 (2010: loss of approximately RMB30,104,000) and the —ZF : ARME5184930,104,0007T) + HA
weighted average number of 1,678,000,000 ordinary shares (2010: RARFEEARNDRITE BRSO MEEFHED
1,004,002,000 ordinary shares) issued during the year. 1,678,000 ix (== —=Z4 : 1,004,002,000

fREmAR)ETE o
i)  Weighted average number of ordinary shares D) BB INEFGE

Weighted average number
of ordinary shares

TE R 1D IR 3 &
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-EF
‘000 ‘000
T FA%
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January /A—H—HBE#7E @A 1,678,000 946,670
Effect of issue of new shares B BITHR DM E
by placement - 30,604
Effect of issue of new shares WEEMT B A B B TRT R (D B o2
for the acquisition of subsidiaries - 26,728
Weighted average number of R+ A=+—BERBRINETHH
ordinary shares at 31 December 1,678,000 1,004,002
b) For continuing operation b) REEKEEBEMS
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the BREARF (ER) DRAQREE A
profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company of approximately LA (B18) $9 AR # 9,125,000 7T
RMB9,125,000 (2010: loss of approximately RMB34,582,000) and 2T F : BHELH AR 34,582,000
the denominators used are same on those detailed above for basic TL)RTERER 2 & ThE XA #
earnings/(loss) per share from continuing and discontinued operations. BN EREELENERERRAT (&

#B) MR -
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d)

12.

Earnings/(Loss) per Share (Continued)

For discontinued operation

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operation is RMBO0.75 per
share (2010: RMBO0.44 cents per share) which is based on the profit
from the discontinued operation of approximately RMB12,561,000
(2010: RMB4,478,000) and the denominators used are same as those
detailed above for basic earnings/(loss) per share from continuing and
discontinued operations.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share equals to basic earnings/(loss) per share
as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for both
years presented.

Segment Reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised by
a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and geography.
In @ manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s executive director for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

i) Manufacturing and selling of medicine products

ii)  Provision of R&D services of modern biological technology
Currently all the Group’s activities above are carried out in the
PRC. No reportable operating segment has been aggregated.
The medical products segment derives its revenue from the

manufacture and sale of medical products.

The R&D services segment derives its revenue from the provision
of R&D services.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI L

11.

)

12.

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-2——FI-A=t—ALEE

SRER,(E5E) (E)
MERILEEBTS
IEFBERENERELABFIAARE
0.75T(ZZE—ZF: R ARK044
D)TDEBEHEFELCERBREMNABAR
#12,561,000c( —E—ZFF: ARK
4,478,000 ) st ERFIERA 2 H T E
NHFMERBEREFRECEEENERE
REF|(EE)HER o

SRBFRA(FR)
HRMEREHRMEL BB TEEE ST
B B EREERN (BB ENE
REREF,(ER) -

pal-iiE 4

AEERDBEBREER - DA RMIKE
Big (Emk k) B IEE MmAL -
ZEEMAAKRENRITESIERNRS
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12. Segment Reporting (Continued)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group'’s executive director monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and current assets
with the exception of deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade and other payables attributable to the
activities of the individual segments and bank borrowings managed
directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segments profit is “adjusted EBITDA”
i.e. "adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisaiton”, where “interest” is regarded as including investment
income and “depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on non-current assets. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA
the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as directors’ and auditors’
remuneration and other head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning adjusted
EBITDA, management is provided with segment information concerning
revenue (including inter-segment sales), interest income and expense
from cash balances and borrowings managed directly by the segments,
depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments in their operations. Inter-
segment sales are priced with reference to prices charged to external
parties for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided to
the Group's executive directors for the purposes of resources allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the year ended 31
December 2011 and 2010 is set out below.

The operation in a jointly controlled entity was discontinued in the
current year. The segment information reported on the followings does
not include any amounts for the discontinued operation.
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12. Segment Reporting (Continued)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

il

Notes to the Financial Statements

B H5 R MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BT ——F+_A=+—HILFE

12. 7 2B E (&)
a) SBEM - RERSME(H)

Continuing operations

BELEXH
Manufacturing and
selling of medicine
products R & D services Total
EENHERR i @t
201 2010 201 2010 201 2010
For the year ended - -2-%TF ZB--§ "E-TF B--f _"2-IFF
31 December (Restated) (Restated)
HEZt-A=t-AH (ms51) (m=51)
JI2:3:54 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Segment revenue AERA
Revenue from external customers IREFIRA 472,652 35,608 2,000 2,648 474,652 38,256
Inter-segment revenue AEEUA - - - - - -
Reportable segment EEE 1 ON 472,652 35,608 2,000 2,648 474,652 38,256
Reportable segment profit/(loss)  WERRAHEE (BRHA)
before taxation 67,546 (1,419) (10,618) (16,611) 56,928 (18,030)
Interest income from bank deposits SR T7F A BHA 922 208 211 96 1,133 304
Interest expenses MERZ 6,136 463 7,740 14,867 13,876 15,330
Depreciation and amortisation RERES
— Property, plant and equipment 0% BEREE 12,922 1,032 3133 3377 16,055 4,409
— Prepaid lease payments —BRHEETE 1,570 130 - - 1,570 130
- Intangible assets -BWEE 3,950 3N 18 140 3,968 512
Written down/(reversal of written iR/ (BE)EE
down) of inventories 435 149 - (116) 435 33
Impairment of property, % - BERXERE
plant and equipment - - - 1,859 - 1,859
(Recovery)/impairment of (Yl /fmifd
~ trade receivables — R - 689 - - - 689
— other receivables —Hi IR (126) 14 (413) 5 (539) 19
Recovery of impairment on trade W B A PR SR
receivables before acquisition g} (1,251) = - = (1,251) =
Income tax expense FiEHE 13,288 (131) (243) = 13,045 (131)
Reportable segment assets TRRABEE 584,667 564,240 174,850 182,409 759,517 746,649
Additions to non-current assets FRBEEREFRDEERE
(other than financial instrument (FafEemIA
and deferred tax assets) RERHEEE) 12,341 1,595 1,590 764 13,931 2,359
Reportable segment liabilities TRHRIHEE 196,594 206,281 32,123 269,439 228,117 475,720
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12. Segment Reporting (Continued)

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
The Group’s customer base is diversified and there is no customer with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue.

b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss,

5

12. D ERIRE ()

a) ZHEE BERAEEE)

AEBEBFHZ UL ERWEEZFEA
FIVHR S ASEBEKRAR 10% ©

b) AHRHSBUA - Bm - EEREEHNS

assets and liabilities BR
2011 2010
=F——F —TFF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
(Restated)
(#&=%))
AR¥TT ARETFT
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue AT ER R FULA 474,652 38,256
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 5 ZBEU AL 4 = =
Consolidated turnover e EER 474,652 38,256
Profit/(loss) =L (E8R)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) A ERRD T (EE) 56,928 (18,030)
Elimination of inter-segment profit pan=i bl — =
Reportable segment profit/(loss) derived 3 B £ B SNk F H) AT B2 3R
from the Group’ s external customers 2 #B%F, (&518) 56,928 (18,030)
Other revenue and other net income  E-AthUg A K2 Ug AJF 58 11,788 8,486
Depreciation and amortisation s M5 (21,593) (5,051)
Finance costs B 75 A (13,876) (15,330)
Impairment losses on non-current assets #13 - i MR RERE = (1,859)
Unallocated head office and ROBBRERRAAIFAL
corporate expense (3.310) (3,206)
Consolidated profit/(loss) BrERTAR & m ], (E51E)
before taxation 29,937 (34,990)
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b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss,
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLEFE

2. bR (48)

b) WHHESHBYA B - EEREBEHY

assets and liabilities (Continued) BR (&)
2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
(Restated)
(&E5)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR D HBEE 759,517 746,649
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 530 i & S R IE K £ (48) (324)
759,469 746,325

Assets relating to R&D services BABHEL G THERS

for GSK-Neptunus (R=T——F&1k)

(Discontinued in 2011) HEE - 237,417
Unallocated head office and RAOMBHER R RAREE

corporate assets 300 60
Deferred tax assets BETIREE 1,548 1,898
Consolidated total assets e BEMRE 761,317 985,700
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities AR D HBEE 228,717 475,720
Elimination of inter-segment payables 430 FE{~ FRIE K £ (48) (324)

228,669 475,396

Tax payable IR IR 6,076 7,846
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEE E 40,296 40,296
Liabilities relating to R&D services BHEEMEL =8 THERSE

for GSK-Neptunus (R=ZE——F8&b)

(Discontinued in 2011) EON=Er - 6,294
Unallocated head office and AOBL@MERERARAGE

corporate liabilities - -
Consolidated total liabilities e BEEs 275,041 529,832
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12.

)

13.

Segment Reporting (Continued)

Geographic Information

The Group’s turnover and results from operations mainly derived from
activities in the PRC. The principal assets of the Group were located
in the PRC during the year. Accordingly, no analysis by geographical
segment is provided.

Discontinued Operation

On 13 June 2011, the Company and GlaxoSmithKline Pte Limited
("GSK") entered into an agreement pursuant to which the Company
agreed to sell its 51% equity interest in GSK-Neptunus to GSK at a
consideration of US$39,000,000, subject to the terms and conditions
of the agreement. All necessary internal approvals and procedures of
the Company and GSK respectively for the disposal, including without
limitation the approval by the board of directors and the shareholders
meeting of the Company and the approval by the board of directors
of the Company’s holding company, Neptunus Bio-engineering, have
been duly obtained and completed. On 2 August 2011, the transaction
was approved by the shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting.
On 20 September 2011, the transaction was completed and GSK-
Neptunus ceased to be a jointly controlled entity of the Company.

The results of the discontinued operation included in the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and consolidated statement of cash flows are set out below. The
comparative profit and cash flows from discontinued operation have
been re-presented to include those operations classified as discontinued
in the current year.

d ;,.w—l r':if-"ﬁ' 4

12.

()

13.

D EPERE ()

32 R
AEENEEEREERETERETE
MEBED - £ ARENEEAER
RARE o I - BRI D HAH -

RZZE——FXA+=H' AAAH
GlaxoSmithKline Pte Limited ([GSK])&]
Vi BARBRERGSKHEER
EWMELRBEZ2E2E51%RE KE
#339,000,0003 7T ¥ X 1 &% &9 1§ 3K A0
RERR o ZAME RFTHAR A K GSK
SRBEBEHESE AV ERAZHE
iR BRE(ETRMESTE2HER
VNN ' (V) /N B /N s
TEYrESSHE - RZE—FNA
ZH  ZX5BEBRERBRERFRIAE L
EeRZE—FNAZF+H XHEK
FEFELREBETERARAR ZHF

EH|ERE o

=

ERLEEBZREHNATHRA KSR
HErERaREEARERERN - B
SEREEB AL BEMNERERE
NENTBRRAFRIBELLEREHTZ
AN REERE
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13. Discontinued Operation (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI E

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE_ZT——F+_A=1+—HILFE

13. BRI (8)

2011 2010
—E2——F —E—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Turnover R = =
Cost of sales SHE AR = =
Gross profit EF - -
Other revenue E A A 8 60
Other net income E AU A 21,030 28,674
Selling and distribution expenses HERHHEFX = -
Administrative expenses ITREERY (8,188) (14,920)
Other operating expenses HhEEr (81) (9,336)
Profit from operations KRR 12,769 4,478
Finance costs BhE AR (208) =
Profit before taxation BRBE AR R 12,561 4,478
Income tax Fris i - -
Profit for the year from REEFEQSEEBER
discontinued operation 12,561 4,478
Attributable to: T 5L :
Owners of the Company RARER A 12,561 4,478
Cash flows from discontinued operation: ERIEEBFBREERE
2011 2010
—E——F —EEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Net cash used in operation activities KEEBMAR ST (30,605) (31,422)
Net cash used in investing activities WEXEBMAR T8 (25,748) (134,230)
Net cash generated from financing activities Bl & /EB)FTFIR & /F58 40,000 117,989
Net cash outflows HEeEmEFHE (16,353) (47,663)
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BHE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

a)

14. 9% - BERRE

The Group a) &K
Furniture,
Plant fixtures
and Motor and  Construction-
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment  in-progress Total
HE %8
BF HBERRE RE PES ] EEIR wit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR  ARMTr ARETRT  AR¥TRT < AR®TR
Cost REAR
At 1 January 2011 WZ-Z——%—-f—H 135,267 118,527 3,209 8,397 95,465 360,865
Additions AE 2,250 8,689 379 1,969 38,520 51,807
Disposals L& - (4313) (339) (152) 3) (4,807)
Disposal of a jointly HELREHEE
controlled entity (84,454) (43,515) (266) (3,452) (115,027) (246,714)
Transfer in/(out) BA/(H) 9,691 7,063 = = (16,754) =
At 31 December 2011 R-ZT—%F+-A=+-H 62,754 86,451 2,983 6,762 2,201 161,151
Accumulated depreciation RAMERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2011 W-Z——%—-f—H (3.321) (16,796) (942) (2,063) (10,846) (33,968)
Charged for the year REER (4,782) (12,000) (489) (1,298) - (18,569)
Transfer in/{out) A/ (i) (76) 76 - - - -
Disposal of a jointly LERA R B
controlled entity 4,826 2,579 m 803 10,012 18,331
Written back on disposals HERE - 3,646 322 132 - 4,100
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——F+ZA=1—H (3,353) (22,495) (998) (2,426) (834) (30,106)
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2011 R=Z——F+-fA=1+—H 59,401 63,956 1,985 4,336 1,367 131,045
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. 1% - BEREE (&)
a) The Group (Continued) a) AE&KEHE(#E)
Furniture,
Plant fixtures
and Motor and  Construction-
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment in-progress Total
HE £
BF  BER#Z HE Rk ERTR et

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL AREBTR ARETL ARETR ARETL ARET:H

Cost ERAE

At 1 January 2010 WZZ2-ZF-A—H 85,785 71,504 1,452 4342 40,528 203,611
Additions RE = 1,235 267 1,398 72,726 75,626
Additions upon acquisition RERBARENARE

of subsidiaries 60,000 47,060 1,735 3,055 = 111,850
Disposals HE (4,744) (148) (1) = (5,003)
Partial disposal of a jointly HHHEEHERE

controlled entity (10,518) (983) 97) (287) (13,334) (25,219)
Transfer in/(out) #A/(it) - 4,455 - - (4,455) =
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF+=A=+—H 135,267 118,527 3,209 8,397 95,465 360,865

Accumulated depreciation ~ RiHTERAE
and Impairment

At 1 January 2010 RZE-ZF-f—A (225) (14,426) (792) (1,324) (1,800) (18,567)
Charge for the year TEEZH (3,293) (4,155) (184) (735) = (8,367)
Partial disposal of a jointly BHERREHEE
controlled entity 197 36 7 21 270 531
Impairment (note ii) B (EEi) = (1,771) = (64) (9,316) (11,151)
Written back on disposals HEDE = 3,520 27 39 = 3,586
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZF+=A=+—H (3,321) (16,796) (942) (2,063) (10,846) (33,968)
Carrying amount EHEE
At 31 December 2010 RZE-2E+-A=1—H 131,946 101,731 2,267 6,334 84,619 326,897
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b Zs —
4= —=

—Ft+ZA=tT—HILFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
a) The Group (Continued)

i)

ii)

iii)

Property, plant and equipment with a total fair value RMB
111,850,000 were acquired on 14 December 2010 through the
acquisition of Neptunus Fuyao. The fair values of these property,
plant and equipment were assessed based on depreciated
replacement cost method and the market data approach
by reference to a valuation performed by an independent
professional valuer — Ascent Partners Transaction Service Limited,
who has among their staff, fellow members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with experience in the valuation of similar
assets in the relevant industry.

A number of construction projects were replaced by new
construction projects and new plant and equipment during the
year 2010. The Group assessed the recoverable amount of these
assets and, as a result, the carrying amount of the property,
plant and equipment was written down by RMB11,151,000.
The Group assessed the recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment based on depreciated replacement cost method
and the market data approach by reference to a valuation
performed by an independent professional valuer — Ascent
Partners Transactions Service Limited, who has among their staff,
fellow members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and
with experience in the valuation of similar assets in the relevant
industry.

As at 31 December 2011, certain of the Group’s buildings with
a total carrying amount of approximately RMB59,401,000 were
pledged to secure the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings
of RMB76,000,000 (Note 27).

14. Y13 ~ BERFR R (&)
a) @ ()

i)

iii)

N ELREASARE111,850,000
THME BERIXBE IR _-Z —
TE+ AT HAABKEETRE
BEM#WEA-ME  BEREBH
NEETIA— BB B EGER —
Ascent Partners Transaction Service
Limited TETHINEZEE KN AER
MG A BEZE - Ascent  Partners
Transaction Service Limited B T &
REEBAEMBEeNERSE B
hEREEE X AR (AERLUEE

RZT—TF - BTEEBREURK
B REEBETEEEB U KR E K&
REDR c AEEREZEEER
AE e #BR - WE  BEERR
1 1 BR T & MO A K %5 11,151,000
T ASEBENGME BERR
HEHR SR BAl e £ EH
ATEDA 2B L EEMGAERM -
Ascent Partners Transaction Service
Limited TETHINEZTEXN AN ER
MISEE L BEAE - Ascent  Partners
Transaction Service Limited ®8 L&
FEEBAEMBENERSEBZ
hERMEMERE AR (B LUEE

R-—E——F+=-A=+—1 Bi&
HEREERELA /AR 59,401,000
THETAEEET  DURBAREE
RITE KB E A R%76,000,0007T
(fsE27) °
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. ¥)3% ~ BENEME (&)
b) The Company b) ZA&A2AF
Furniture,
Plant fixtures
and Motor and Construction-
machinery vehicles  equipment  in-progress Total
HE %8
BERHZE hai:d PET] HRIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARBTz AR®TR ARETT AR%TR
Cost BRAE
At 1 January 2011 RZZ——F—-A—H 34,516 942 2,026 834 38,318
Additions nE 15 - 215 - 230
Disposals & (91) = (20) = (111)
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——F+-A=1-H 34,440 942 2,221 834 38,437
Accumulated depreciation RIHHERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2011 RZZ—%—-A—H (13,948) (839) (1,498) (834) (17,119
Charge for the year KEEZH (2.862) () (199) - (3.069)
Written back on disposals B 18 - 8 - 26
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——F+=RA=1—H (16,792) (847) (1,689) (834) (20,162)
Carrying amount BHEE
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——%+-A=1-H 17,648 95 532 - 18,275
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
b) The Company (Continued)

e

14. Y13 ~ BERFR R (&)
b) AAT (M)

Furniture,
Plant fixtures
and Motor and  Construction-
machinery vehicles equipment in-progress Total
e kB
ETES e B FEIR #zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTT
Cost RRAE
At 1 January 2010 RZZE-ZF—-F—H 34,804 942 2,102 4,825 42,673
Additions R 2 - 32 463 497
Disposals HE (4,744) = (108) = (4,852)
Transfer in/(out) ZA/(i) 4,454 - - (4,454) =
At 31 December 2010 RZ2-24+-A=1+—-H 34,516 942 2,026 834 38318
Accumulated depreciation RIHRERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2010 RZE-ZF-F—-A (14,379) (785) (1,305) - (16,469)
Charge for the year TEERH (3,089) (54) (235) - (3,378)
Written back on disposals HE 3,520 - 4 = 3,562
Impairment BE - - - (834) (834)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF+-A=+-H (13,948) (839) (1,498) (834) (17,119)
Carrying amount FHEE
At 31 December 2010 RZZ2-Z24+-A=1+—-H 20,568 103 528 - 21,199

i) A number of construction projects ceased during the year 2010.
The Company assessed the recoverable amount of those assets
and, as a result, the carrying amount of the construction-in-
progress was written down by RMB834,000.

) RZE—ZTFREFEILATEEE
B ARaBazEEENTTKRE
TR AR EEIEMNREENB
AFR# 834,000 7T °
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

(9]

15.

The analysis of carrying amount of leasehold properties is as

follows:
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BTSRRI L

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE—Z——F+_-A

=t+—HIFE

14. Y% ~ BERFRE (&)
O HEMENEAESFMT :

2011 2010
—B——fF —T-TF
Note RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Bt ARET R ARETFT
Outside Hong Kong EBEH
Medium-term leases PHITRE 129,700 222,614
Representing &
Buildings carried at cost TR ABRRET 59,401 131,946
Interest in leasehold land held for REEHE T HIEER
own use under operating leases TAE TR 15 70,299 90,668
Medium-term leases FHIRE 129,700 222,614
Prepaid Lease Payments 15. RN HEERIE
The Group REE
2011 2010
—E——F —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARETFT
Cost R AE
At 1 January Hn—A—H 91,269 23,018
Additions upon acquisition of subsidiaries ~ FAUREEHE A RIRE - 72,000
Disposal of a jointly controlled entity & HEFESIE S (19,269) =
Partial disposal of a jointly B S A I E A
controlled entity - (3,749)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 72,000 91,269
Accumulated depreciation REHTER#H
and amortisation
At 1 January A—H—H (601) (32)
Charge for the year $¢F§ﬁ (1,816) (598)
Partial disposal of a jointly 7 R E A
controlled entity - 29
Disposal of a jointly controlled entity &S AT E 5 716 =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 (1,701) (601)
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 70,299 90,668

R ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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15. Prepaid Lease Payments (Continued)
All the prepaid lease payments represent interest in land situated in the
PRC under medium term leases which were amortised over the lease
term of 50 years on a straight-line basis.

ii)

Prepaid lease payments with a total fair value of RMB72,000,000
were acquired on 14 December 2010 through the acquisition of
Neptunus Fuyao. The fair value of the prepaid lease payments
was assessed based on direct comparison approach by reference
to a valuation performed by an independent professional valuer
— Ascent Partners Transaction Service Limited, who have among
their staff, fellow members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors and with experience in the valuation of similar assets in
the relevant industry.

At 31 December 2011, all of the Group’s prepaid lease payments
was pledged to secure the Group’s bank loan of RMB76,000,000
(Note 27).

15. BAHEER

e

K18 ()

FERMNEEFREREPHEELR S
BHEE tis  RFRNEERRR

K50 FHEEMMIZERERH -

ENAERB(ATFEREAARE
72,000,0007C) PR =B —TE+ =
H‘I’E H @385 T 18 2 A W B8 M 1 8

c BRMERBHAARBETIA—
%5%&%%13@%—Ascent Partners
Transaction Service Limited FriE7THY
BHEEABEYE - Ascent  Partners
Transaction Service Limited#98 T &
PEEBIEMEBEeNERSE A%
HERMERBEEE T GEREUEE

RZE——F+ZA=+—H"'E
REAEBMAEBENHEERE N
NEAEEFETERREARE
76,000,000 T (KisE27) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLEFE

16. Intangible Assets 16. B EE
a) The Group a) AEE
Anesthetic
drug Internally
production developed
Computer and selling Trade  Customer technical
software Trademarks rights name list  know-how Total

AR
Bk R WBEESE RBER  EFEE  BAAR £
RVB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR AREBTR ARRTL ARBTL ARETL ARETR

Cost B
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-Z5-A-H 356 75 - - - - 431
Additions upon acquisiton KB BARRAE
of subsidiaries - - 53,143 46,483 39,502 - 139,128
At 31 December 2010 W=Z—-%%+-A=1+-H
and 1 January 2011 k=Z—%—-F—H 356 75 53,143 46,483 39,502 = 139,559
Additions WNE - - - - - 649 649
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+=A=1+—H 356 75 53,143 46,483 39,502 649 140,208
Accumulated amortisation 2iH##REE
and impairment
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-F5-A-H (310) 42) - - - = (352)
Charge for the year AEETH (34) 8) - - (470) = (512)
At 31 December 2010 W=Z-F%+-A=1-H
and 1 January 2011 k=Z—%—fA—H (344) (50) - - (470) = (864)
Charge for the year REEZH (12) (6) - - (3,950) - (3,968)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+=A=1+—H (356) (56) = = (4,420) = (4.832)
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2011 WZE——%+=-A=1+—H = 19 53,143 46,483 35,082 649 135,376
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE-F&+-A=1—H 12 25 53,143 46,483 39,032 = 138,695
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16. Intangible Assets (Continued) 16. B &= (&)
b) The Company b) ZA&AF
Computer
software Trademarks Total
B4 EE st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT ARBTFT
Cost 2%
At 31 December 2010, 1 January RZE—FF+-_A=+—H
2011 and 31 December 2011 W_E—5%—H—HB-
Ek+=ZA=+—H 356 75 431
Accumulated amortisation ZHEHERRE
and impairment
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZFF—H—H (310) (42) (352)
Charge for the year REEZ W (34) (8 (42)
At 31 December 2010 RZE—TF+_A=1+—0H "
and 1 January 2011 r=—F——F—H—H (344) (50) (394)
Charge for the year REFEZH (12) (6) (18)
At 31 December 2011 RZB——F+-"A=+—8H (356) (56) (412)
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-A=+—81 - 19 19
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZF+=-A=+—H 12 25 37
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “other operating REFHEET HAT AGRERERA [EME

expenses” in the consolidated income statement.
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16. Intangible Assets (Continued)

(9]

Intangible assets arising from business combination

The Anesthetic drug production & selling right, trade name and
customer list are intangible assets acquired on 30 November 2010
through the acquisition of Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Phamaticals Co.,
Ltd (“Neptunus Fuyao”). The fair values of these intangible assets were
assessed by reference to a valuation carried out by Ascent Partners,
an independent qualified professional valuer, not connected with
the Group and with appropriate qualification and experience in the
valuation of similar assets in the relevant industry.

Anesthetic drug production & selling right represents the fair value of
the rights in respect of the production and selling specific anesthetic
drug in PRC.

The fair value of Anesthetic drug production & selling right as at the
acquisition date was determined under the income approach using the
financial projection with a discount rate of 21%. The anesthetic drug
production & selling right has indefinite useful life.

The fair value of the trade name at the date of business combination
was measured using a royalty rate of 5% on sales. The trade name has
indefinite useful life.

The Anesthetic drug production & selling right, and trade name is
considered by the management of the Group as having an indefinite
useful life because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows to the
Group indefinitely, It is tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may have been impaired.

RYIHBERBFEEYEMBRHOBRIT  2011FFR 11

Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI E

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-2——Ft-A=t—ALEE

16. BLEE (/&)

)

EBEHELENEREE

MRBrSEEHE  EBBBREFLPBE TR
—E-ZTHE+-A=+HBEBRWERNE
FrRe AR AR ([EEREE]) i
WEREE ZEBVEAENAFEARH
—HEAEEEFEBVSEAREEMEE
Bl — Ascent Partners#77{H{B + HZ{HER
BEERBTERUEEETHENLER

I BEESHE R E M B EEE B
B8 SR IR 46 1 T B AR E % 3 6 B B ) A
B AFHE

RUEE B B B B E SH R O R P E TR IR
WABEBEELERRITAXRR21% M5
BRHARETE - P SEHERARER
HARR -

REBAHABRNEBEWAFEIER
RIHEBES% MR ERTE - KB4
T ERETE MERIIR -

AEEEEBRDME HEHEARED
HEOERFHE TR - RE T M5
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Intangible Assets (Continued)

Anesthetic drug production & selling right and trade name

As at 31 December 2011, the fair value of the Anesthetic drug
production & selling right and trade name was approximately
RMB64,031,000 and approximately RMB58,749,000 respectively,
which were assessed by reference to a valuation carried out by Ascent
Partners, an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group and with appropriate qualification and experience in
the valuation of similar assets in the relevant industry. In the opinion
of the Company’s directors, no impairment to the carrying amount
of the Anesthetic drug production & selling right and trade name as
at 31 December 2011 is required since its fair value as at the date
of the report is higher than its carrying amount of approximately
RMB53,143,000 and approximately RMB46,483,000 respectively.

The recoverable amount of the Anesthetic drug production &
selling right is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budget
approved by management covering a four-year period. Cash flow
beyond four-year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 1.19% which is consistent with the forecasts.
The growth rates used do not exceed the long-term average growth
rates for the medical industries. The cash flow are discounted using a
discount rate of 24%. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

The fair value of trade name was measured using a royalty rate of 5%
on sales. The trade name has indefinite useful life.

16.
d)

)

mEEE (&)
REXRBBARESHNNMBEEHEER
REKEE
MN-Z——F+-"F=+—H MBEEE
HENREBABOATFESAOAR
& 64,031,000 7T &2 A R #5 58,749,000 7T
D2BANAASEEERENEBLEXGHE
B Ascent Partners (E#EA S iERETT 58 M
BEETHENERRER) ERN-HER
TG - X"RRIEZRE - B i B 22
EHEUAREBRBRHREIHNATE
DR EBRmMEL AR S53,143,000 7T &
AR ¥ 46,483,000 T A @ EBHRER
—E——F+ - A=+ —HNEmEET
AR °

i B R S A DA R TS 2 AR Ay P U Bl < KB
DIREERAEBENSESEMETE - %%
STE T A A S B B B 2 U A HR R R
BEAEENR G REANME - BAN
FHZREREBEA1.19% A E5HINEF
B R R (BRI — B0 #TTER - £/
MIERETESHBABRENRAMELER
E o BHEeMEMIMEERR24% ° AL
WEAHAMRE - WRERA RS BH R
ERK -

EBRBRFETIERARHERS% W
B EXRE - R R WERTERERA Y
fR o
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16. Intangible Assets (Continued)

e)

f)

Customer list

The customer list has a finite useful life and is amortised on a
straight-line basis over 10 years. The useful life of the customer list is
determined with reference to the estimated future revenue from the
customer list which is based on historical information. The management
is of the view that the future economic benefits that can be derived
from the customer list beyond the 10-year period are insignificant.

The fair value of the customer list at the date of business combination
was measured using a form of the excess earnings method under
the income approach. This calculation is based on the present value
of the incremental after-tax cash flows attributable to the customer
list and a discount rate of 21%. The annual cash flow is calculated
by reference to the latest applicable annual revenue from existing
customers and has been extrapolated using an averaged 14% growth
rate. The averaged 14% growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth and management forecasts and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. At the date of the
business combination, the fair value of the customer list amounted to
RMB39,502,000.

Internally developed technical know-how

The internally developed technical know-how is the product of
Recombinant Human Thymosin A1. The product is under the first stage
of the clinical testing. The amount represented the testing fee for the
product. The useful life of the product is 10 years which is estimated
by the management and based on the professional experience. No
amortization for the product during the year since the product is on the
clinical testing stage and no revenue is generated during the year.

R ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-2——FI-A=t—ALEE

16. BLEE (/&)

e)

f)

EFRE

EFAEAREAEMBFRIAELER
10FREHE - TRPRENAERFRDIZ
ZREBEELENMSLEETFBENMG
FPRRNEmMERE - BERERR - 10558
FiBR  RETPREMNRREBERETD
BEX -

REBAHAENTSZEQNFETILE
BABMENBRAFRGTE - ZAtETUE
FZEREEEERFKEESRERER
Q0% FHREAEE - FERESRENZ
ERBEFROHEAFE RSB E
FA14% - 5 3 = 5 1 #E B 0 14% F 15 3%
RRNDERBBTEREREEEENER
W ARBBABITEZ FHRPERER - N
EBAHBHENEFREATEAARK
39,502,000 7T ©

A BB BA B A R i
MEPFHEBEARMEAANIRATHE MR
ZEMERNEBRAANE —EER - &8
THEZERNAAER - ZEMNERH
BRATF  DHEEERBEELRM
S H o B RZEE dn B2 1 R FRORI BB B R
FALEBEEE ARG BRERRFA
I A AR5 o
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17.

18.

Deposit for Acquisition of Property, Plant and
Equipment

Jiangsu Neptunus Bio-pharmaceutical Company Limited (Jiangsu
Neptunus) is conducting the research and development on recombinant
proteins and polypeptide dugs (including but not limited to human
thyroxin and o 1 for injection).

The amount represents deposit of approximately RMB5,369,000
(2010: approximately RMB1,144,000) to acquire property, plant and
equipment in Taizhou for research and development. The above
property, plant and equipment will be delivered to Jiangsu Neptunus
during the year 2012, and reclassified as property, plant and equipment
after the completion of installment and testing.

Deposit for Acquisition of Land

During the year 2011, the Group is applying to the relevant local
authorities in relation to the acquisition of land use right for the new
production base in Lianjing through the auction for which a deposit of
RMB8,630,000 was paid.

The deposit is refundable if the transaction is not completed provided
that the Group participated in the auction and the bid price meets the
minimum requirement.

The total bid price for the land use right is estimated to be
approximately RMB36,000,000.

b
U Ladd
L Y

17.

18.

BEYE  BERRENESE

TEHEBTEMHREFERDR OIFHET) 1
FEHERRENZHEDER (BFETR
POESTREE AR o 1) KR -

ZoBERE—LHEENEENTMN
WY BERSENRSSBOAR
#5369,000L( —T—TF: HARK
1,144,00070) « ity % - BE &&EH
RIEBE——FEXMNTIEETE IR THRE

EERBIREER D EAYE - BRE K& -

BE+piRe
MNoT——& . AEEREEY R
EEBNEREN N E TR R
WtiERAE EFE SN REARE
8,630,000 T °

2 X B AR » ZRETARE -
SE2EAFTABRETEHERE -

HEAR

o% 3L {55 A 7 RO 48 55
36,000,000 7T ©

SIRERFROARE
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19. Interest in Subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements

AR ARI

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_ZT——F+-A=+—HItFE

19. R B AR fE RS

The Company
N

2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETFT
Unlisted shares at cost EETMRRG - A 455,480 446,280
Less: impairment loss B OREEE (1,040) (1,040)
454,440 445,240

During the previous years, a subsidiary became dormant and it is
expected that no further business activities will be conducted to
generate sufficient income to fully repay the outstanding balance
due to the Company. The investment cost of R\MB1,040,000 and the
amount due from the subsidiary of approximately RMB311,000 were
assessed to be fully impaired. After considering the poor operating
performance of the subsidiary, the directors of the Company are of
opinion that the impairment loss should not be reversed.

RBEFE  ZMBRARATEE W&
Mg —PREEBUEERHBA
FHEERNARARMNKREESRR KA
AR AR 1,040,000 7T K E UK 5% B BB /A 7]
H&E AR 311,000 2 iHME AR
B EEBEMBRATENKEELER
RAREERBTERERERSE -
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19. Interest in Subsidiaries (Continued) 19. R EB A BRI (&)
The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of the AEEBETHBARNGFBEIET - B
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. SEHAEI - FAFEHRD AL BER -

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of REREELA
Place of authorised/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective Held by Held by
Name of company and operation paid up capital interest the Company  subsidiaries Principal activity
MR &R /EROR FEEN A L)

NAER EXuy BRRARE B BE BB TEEK

Ascendent Bio-Technology Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% - Dormant
Company Limited BE 15T gmes

R ERHERAR

Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao PRC RMB30,000,000 80% 80% - Production and sales
Pharmaceutical Company Limited H AR 30,000,0007C of medicine
("Neptunus Fuyao”)* EEREEEN

BT RENEERAR
E=4 )

Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang PRC RMB10,000,000 76% - 95% Production and sales
Chinese Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd A AR10,000,0007 of medicine
(*Neptunus Jinxiang")* HERHERY

BMBE R ERILE
ARAA(IGZER])*

Fuzhou Fuyao Medical Co., Ltd PRC RMB30,000,000 80% - 100% Production and sales
("Fuzhou Fuyao")* H AR#30,000,0007 of medicine

BNBEREERAR EERHERY
(TarEE) *

Jiangsu Neptunus Bio-pharmaceutical Company ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - Research and
Limited (“Jiangsu Neptunus”)* (Note , i i AR 10,000,000 development of
TEBTENHEERAR biopharmaceutical

(II&EE ) * (ki Rii) products

MRENBEER
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19. Interest in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI oL

For the year ended 31 December 2011
E-F——4F A=+ —HILEE

19. RTB A B R (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of BRRERLY
Place of authorised/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective Held by Held by
Name of company and operation paid up capital interest the Company  subsidiaries Principal activity
EMEILR RE/BROR KEEH A i)

NAER EXud BRRAZE BREL BE &R TEXE

Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical PRC RMB50,000,000/ 79.8% - 100% Production of
(Lianjiang) Co., Ltd (“Neptunus HE RMB10,000,000 chemical medicine
Fuyao Lianjiang")* (Note ii) ARE50,000,0007T,/ HE(BEY

BIRERE(ET)ARAA AR%10,000,0007T
(DEEREET )« (WaTii)

Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese PRC RMB50,000,000/ 76.21% - 100% Production of chemical
Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) Company Limited HE RMB10,000,000 medicine
("Neptunus Jinxiang Lianjiang”)* (Note iv) AE#50,000,0007T,/ ELEEY

BISRPERE(ET)ERAR AR 10,000,000 7T
(IBTeKET ) (Mt

Lianjing Neptunus Fuyao Foods PRC RMB500,000 79.80% - 100% Wholesale and retail of
Trading Co., Ltd. (“Lianjing Neptunus HE AR500,0007C packaging materials and
Foods")* (Note v) pre-packaged food

BRI RERMEHERDT BERTEBRMER
(FBT8TRA])(Mity) BEXRM

Notes: Ft5E

i) On 8 June 2011, the Company acquired 20% equity interest in Jiangsu ) RZZE——FXANB - AREKEEE

Neptunus held by Neptunus Pharmaceutical at a consideration of
RMB200,000. Following completion of the equity transaction, Jiangsu
Neptunus became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was increased to RMB10,000,000
through additional capital contribution of RMB9,000,000 by the Company
on the same date.

On 4 November 2011, the board of the directors of the Company
passed a resolution in respect of the “additional capital contribution of
RMB80,000,000 to Jiangsu Neptunus. Up to the date of the financial
statements, the formalities for the increase of registered capital is still in
progress.

B TR ST 20% HRE - REAR
#200,0007T ° FETERRER 5% - TEE
TRAEARARZENBAR - RAGRE
H¥HI#E T18E AR 9,000,000t * 8l
LERS Tt A= AR 10,000,000
= 4

R-ZZE——F+—AWA ARFREEE
BIENIERE TFINEE AR 80,000,000
L BB —IRER - BEMISREAH -
BINFEINE RN IE N FE MR -
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
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19. Interest in Subsidiaries (Continued) 19. RMTEB ARV (1)
i) On 21 March 2011, Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang was newly formed with a i)y RZE——F=RA=+—H BEEEE

registered capital of RMB50,000,000 of which RMB10,000,000 was paid
up during the year. According to the articles of association, the remaining
registered capital of RMB40,000,000 should be paid on or before 9
March 2013. On 15 August 2011, the board of directors of the Company
resolved to increase the registered capital of Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang
from RMB50,000,000 to RMB112,000,000 of which RMB106,400,000
and RMB5,600,000 will be contributed by Neptunus Fuyao and Neptunus
Jinxiang respectively. Up to the date of financial statements, the formalities
for the increase of registered capital is still in progress.

On 24 June 2011, Neptunus Jinxiang Lianjing was formed with a registered
capital of RMB50,000,000 of which RMB10,000,000 was paid up during
the year. According to the articles of association, the remaining registered
capital of RMB40,000,000 should be paid on or before 15 June 2013.

JLETAG AL ¢ AR A B A R ¥ 50,000,000
T HARE R F R AR 10,000,0007T E
St MEERMAA - B TAMBRAAR
# 40,000,000 TER-_ZT—=4=AhH
K2Rt e R=T——FN\NA+HA -
ARRAEFGRBFEET B TIHEM
A% A i A R # 50,000,000 T A1 E A R#
112,000,000 7T + EH A AR ¥ 106,400,000
TR AR 5,600,000 7T #5595l i /5 F 12 5%
RBTELRIE BHEVKHRRAE 1
INEEINE ADEEST o

R-ZB——FEXNA-1+THWE - BEL5E
IR - R A A A R # 50,000,000
JC 0 AR RE R AR 10,000,000 T E X
o BIEERAA - SR TAMBREARE

40,000,000 TER-—ZE—=%FA+HH
N2 e

v)  On 30 May 2011, Lianjing Neptunus Foods was formed with a registered vy RZZE——FRA=+H EIBEXTRM
capital of RMB500,000. PR AR AR AN A A R85 500,000 7T ©

*

ZEQRARBTHEEARERAEREER

@ These companies are registered under the laws of the PRC as

limited liability companies. 7l
20. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity 20. MR HIERNER
The Company
AAF
2011 2010
=F——F —BFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
Unlisted shares at cost IE TR - B - 259,806
Less: impairment loss B ORERE - (19,518)

= 240,288
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Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity
(Continued)

Notes:

i)

ii)

iii)

On 9 June 2009, the Company and Glaxosmithkline Pte Limited (“GSK")
entered into a joint venture contract for the establishment of GSK-
Neptunus, a sino-foreign equity joint venture company. GSK-Neptunus was
incorporated in the PRC on 6 August 2009 with its equity capital owned as
to 60% by the Company and 40% by GSK.

Pursuant to the articles of association of GSK-Neptunus, the board of
directors of GSK-Neptunus shall initially consist of six directors, of whom
three shall be nominated by the Company and three shall be nominated
by GSK, both parties having equal voting rights in the management and
control of the GSK-Neptunus. As such, the GSK-Neptunus is considered as
a jointly controlled entity of the Group.

The registered capital of the GSK-Neptunus is US$78,330,000
(approximately RMB535,000,000). In 2009, the Company contributed
assets with an agreed value of US$45,530,000 (approximately
RMB311,000,000) and made a cash contribution of US$1,470,000
(approximately RMB10,000,000) to GSK-Neptunus in return for a
60% interest in GSK-Neptunus. GSK Pte had contributed cash of
US$13,820,000 (approximately RMB94,710,000), with a remaining
balance of US$17,510,000 (approximately RMB120,000,000) to be
contributed in cash in return for a 40% interest in GSK-Neptunus.

During the year 2010, GSK made further cash contribution of
US$17,510,000(approximately RMB120,000,000) to GSK-Neptunus and
completed the cash contribution.

RYIHBERBFEEYRMROBRAT  2011F 55, 119
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
2T ——F+_A=+—HLFE

EIJ*._\/ (n‘ﬁ

) RZ=ZFEFEAFEFNANLA AQRH
Glaxosmithkline Pte Limited ([ GSK ) BLAX
VHIIEEEERAEHELR BT E]
EEER - BERELRBEIR_ZTTNF
NARBRFEXY - ERADFRIBEAR
8]} GSK#EH 60% & 40% ©

i) MREEBEZITREINAKERMAA - B
MELRBTESESRYVABEFA
K ARFIRGSKEDRIRE=RESE -
EHHERELRATITNEERIEHAS
AENERERE - At ERELRETH
R AN B A LR I e

i)y BEELREEHZMELRETS,330,000
E (4 A R #535,000,0007T) ° B =
TZTNF  ARAIRNEBELR ST X
AW E & E 545,530,000k T (4 AR
#311,000,0007T ) K E E W E & T &
1,470,000% T (¥ AR #10,000,0007T) °
NBRREMEL ST 60%HER - GSK
Pte B HHE IR £ 13,820,000k T (AR
94,710,0007T) * #3X 17,510,000 3T (4
AR #120,000,00070) i AR S EA © A
HEEEEL AT 40% H4ES o

NR-T—TFFE GKEEHELREFE
EHE—FH LT & 17,510,000 7T (HA
R#120,000,0007T) * WEFEKREEEE °
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20. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity

(Continued)

20. RAREFIERAER (&)

Notes: (Continued) Mt : (8&)
i)  (Continued) i) (#&)
The movement in the allowance for impairment losses during the year was RERFREBENEHENESOT
as follows:
2011 2010
—B——F —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Balance brought forward ERPIAERR 19,518 7,000
Impairment loss REEE = 13,568
Partial disposal of a o E —EHEREG E
jointly controlled entity - (1,050)
Disposal of a jointly controlled entity & —fIHERIZEH|EEE (19,518) =
Balance carried forward BreiEs - 19,518
iv) By the 5th anniversary of the establishment date, upon GSK Pte’s request, iv) PR BHIMFERERESH - EGSK Pte Z

the Company and GSK Pte shall negotiate with and the Company for the
acquisition of the Company’s equity interest of GSK-Neptunus to GSK Pte
in such percentage as necessary for GSK Pte’s equity interests to reach
a minimun of fifty-one percent and a maximum of sixty percent of the
registered capital of GSK-Neptunus. When GSK-Neptunus has sold on
an accumulative basis three million doses of pre-pandemic flu vaccines it
has produced, or has sold, in any one fiscal year, ten million doses of all
seasonal flu vaccines it has produced, GSK Pte and the Company shall
immediately discuss and agree for GSK to further purchase from the
Company the equity interests of GSK-Neptunus. The equity interests of
GSK-Neptunus to be transferred under these circumstances shall be priced
at the fair market value. Any failure on the part of the Company to comply
with the provisions in relation to GSK Pte’s right to purchase further equity
interests of GSK-Neptunus from the Company will constitute an event of
default under the JV Contract and will allow GSK Pte to terminate the JV
contract and claim damages of US$2,000,000 from the Company.

I » ZNAF)ZBE GSK Pte Bt GSK Pte U B 7R

ARIREFEL 7S T 2R AR ETTE
&+ 478 GSK Pte MR AN 2E m%%%i
ZETHEMERANES L EFRIED Z
£+—6Mm§%%§92ﬁ+wmmoﬁ
ERELRBTIEEEHAENBREKN
RONAREBRBEIN ="AEAN &

RER—EAFTREEEEBEHLEENTE
MRREEER —TEBAM  BJGSK Pte &

AR A)ZE S BN A 3 15 E GSK AR A |l 3
—THEREBRLRETHRARR -
BEZEBEIK THEHRNERZLRET
RAERBZAFTETEE - WARAXR
REESTHRIGSK PteBEMARRE—F
BEEFNEXLREEIRAEDE &
BRAEEEGHNT 2 —HENSH  E8R
FFGSK Pte & IFEEAH - WRAIAAREBAR
2,000,000 ETTHEEES ©
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20. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity 20. RERIEHERNER (8)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) M« (8)
v)  On 12 August 2010, the Company has sold and GSK has purchased a 9% v) RZZE—ZFNA+=H' ' ARRERE
equity interests of GSK-Neptunus pursuant to the joint venture contract at AU AR ERGKEBREEREL RS
a cash consideration of USD10,574,550 which was equivalent to 150% THI9% i#E - e RKEA10,574,550 %
of the original par value of the GSK-Neptunus' equity interest as at 31 T HEEREREEREIR_ZTTN
December 2009. FH-A=+—REEREEN150% °
On 13 June 2011, GSK entered into an agreement pursuant to which R-ZZT——FNXA+=H" GSKFT X%
the Company agreed to sell the 51% equity interest of GSK-Neptunus o OBUARARERGKEEERE
to GSK at the consideration of US$39,000,000, subject to the terms MELREEZ2E2HS1%KRE REAR
and conditions of the agreement. All necessary internal approvals and 39,000,000 7T + 3 5 1 3 #9 15 5K A0 5
procedures of the Company and GSK respectively for the disposal, 38R o ZREF KT AR A R GSKSH
including without limitation the approval by the board of directors and the BEBHESTHEZIA L EN N IBRHER
shareholders meeting of the Company and the approval by the board of B BRE(ETRR)ESTG2HER
directors of the Company’s holding company, Neptunus Bio-engineering, RATRREGH - UAREARARERRAFE
having been duly obtained and completed. On 2 August 2011, the FEYzESTSHE RZZE——FN\A
transaction was approved by the shareholders in the extraordinary general Z+=ZH ZRIEBRERRABRFEFRARE
meeting. FHE - REREHEFEE  EWELR
BERTBERARRRZ ERZEEE -
On 20 September 2011, the transaction was completed and GSK- R-ZE——FALA-+H RFEXEE
Neptunus ceased to be a jointly controlled entity of the Company. BELRETTIBRALRAT 2 LREH
BB
21. Available-For-Sale Investments 21. A HERE
The Group and the Company
AEERERQT
2011 2010
—E——F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Unlisted securities I EMES
— Equity securities in the PRC, at cost ~ — BRI AE S @ AR 300 60
As at 31 December 2011, the Group and the Company held 5% RZZE——F+ZA=+—H x5EK
equity interest in ZRIITHAEEE R AEMEER AR AR (the “Shenzhen AAERFERYIMAESEEBEMRRER
Company”) (2010: 5%) which is a company incorporated in the PRC. ARTRINAR D BS%BRE(ZE—F
The Company contributed RMB240,000 to the Shenzhen Company F :5%) 0 AaElA—ERF B A MK
during the year because the paid-in capital of the Shenzhen Company YHATF c ARFRINARNEHBRALEA
increased from RMB1,200,000 to RMB6,000,000. The securities does R 1,200,000 7T # = A K # 6,000,000
not have a quoted price in an active market and therefore which fair T ARARREARRRINR A ERBIARKE
value cannot be reliably measured. 240,000 7T ° 8 H R E BT 5 LI &

RE - WERTEREASESE -
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22. Inventories 22. FE
The Group The Company
XEH O
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E—-F —T-TF —E——-f —Z-TF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARET T ARETT
Raw materials R 42,560 38,418 = =
Work-in-progress T8 14,025 12,799 = =
Finished goods S m 37,749 38,217 = =
94,334 89,434 = =

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and

ERBAX LT ABRNTFESE DL

included in profit or loss is as follows: T:
The Group The Company
bS] A UN
Note 2011 2010 2011 2010
Bzt —E--F —E-ZF 2% —T-TF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
AR®T AREFTL ARET T ARETT

Carrying amount of inventories sold BERERELE 304,599 19,516 - =

Write-down of inventories WREE (i) 435 149 - =

Reversal of write-down of inventories  HiUs 7 & &l (ii) - (116) = (116)

305,034 19,549 - (116)

Notes: FtsE -

i) During the year, obsolete inventories of approximately RMB435,000 (2010: ) FAREFEEXNARE 435000 (=ZF—
RMB149,000) were identified and recognised in the consolidated income THE ARM149,0007T) ERRAWER
statement. MR R R ©

i)  During the vyear, inventories with a previous carrying amount of i) REFERN FEHOARBZT(ZZT-F
approximately RMBNil (2010: RMB116,000) and which were fully impaired &£ AE#116,00070) NEFERAZEEER
were reversed because of the re-use of these inventories. il T AR E o
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23. Trade and Other Receivables 23. FEW AR K H i FE W SR 18
The Group The Company
PN ] A UNC|
Note 2011 2010 2011 2010
Bzt —Z—-% —E-TF —E—-F% “E-TF
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARET ARETT
Trade and bill receivables N E YA ET 61,780 58,307 308 308
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REREE (982) (982) (308) (308)
60,798 57,325 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries KB A IR (i) - - 12,047 67
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries N EZH B AIZE (),35(e) 4,097 1,396 2,897 1,363
Amount due from a jointly A R IR B SR
controlled entity (i),35(e) - 296 - 604
Amounts due from related companies  FEMEEE L AIFUE (i),35(e) 3,107 546 - =
Amount due from immediate EREBERRFE
parent company (i),35(e) 2,161 10,254 - -
Other receivables Hith IR 2,922 9,300 336 341
Loans and receivables BN MR 73,085 79,117 15,280 2,375
Prepayments and deposits BEFERES 4,488 5,091 402 434

71,573 84,208 15,682 2,809
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23. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 23. BEWBR R R H A EURFRIE (48 )
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered TE,HEFﬁﬁﬁﬁ”ﬂlﬁ@m&ﬁ@%ﬂ&mlﬁﬂ%—
within one year. FAMm -

Note: s -
i) The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year. i) JEFIE AEEE - REURAER—FR
B3 -

a) Ageing analysis a) MRS

An ageing analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful RERPERE - ZFEREER(EMNKR

debts of approximately RMB982,000 (2010: RMB982,000) as at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

REEBEBELHARK 82,000 (=5 —
F: AR¥982,0007T)) MEREEOMTAAT

The Group The Company
AEME PN

2011 2010 2011 2010

B —T-TF B "—T-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTRE ARBTRT AR®BTR ARBTT

Within 3 months AR 42,065 43,204 = =
More than 3 months but less &3 1E A8 H121E A

than 12 months 18,449 13,315 - -

Over 12 months wHBiE121E A 284 806 - -

60,798 57,325 - -

Trade receivables are due within 90 days from the date of billing.
Further details on the Group’s credit policy is set out in note 34(a).

JEWBR R — MR EZEZHHE BRFTI0ER
BT - AEBEEBRNE —PFEB
KM EE34(@a) ©
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23. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI L

For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
HE-2——Ft-A=t—ALEE

23. BRI R H A B SRR (48)

Impairment of trade receivables b) EWERFEE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using FEN AR R BB B 1B Ty A R BR ie 8% - 1
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of AEEBEEREZFEMNTTEERE &£
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off BB T - BB PR URAR SR s R E B 1R
against trade receivables directly (see note). (RHsE) -
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts RIZBEREZ S
The Group The Company
PN ] N
Note 2011 2010 2011 2010
(i3 —E2—-f —T-TF % ZT-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TTT ARETT ARET R ARETFT
At 1 January “—A—H 982 308 308 308
Impairment loss recognised ERRRERE (i) - 689 - =
Uncollectible amounts written off bk N e (i - (15) = =
At 31 December R+ZA=t—H 982 982 308 308
Notes: B EE

i) As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables of the Group amounting to
RMBNil (2009: RMB689,000) were individually determined to be impaired
and allowance had been made. These individually impaired receivables
were outstanding for over 1 year as at the end of the reporting period or
were due from companies with financial difficulties.

ii) RMBNil (2010: RMB15,000) of the trade receivables previously considered
as impaired and provided for was written off in 2011. The amount
represented the long-outstanding trade receivables which were not
collectable.

iii)  The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

RYIHBERBFEEYRMROBRAT  2011F 55, 125

) RZE——F+_A=+—H AEEH
EURRAAREZIL(ZE—FF : ARK
689,000 7T ) A RIEERE - WaTHRIMIE
ZEERRERKERN2BBEREE
AR FoE AN BRAH DR

i) PARRAEREREENRKERAR
BEL(ZT—FF : AR¥150007T)2
RZT—— M - ZRBEERERE R

REHREEBUIR -
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23. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 23. BRBRF N H A B RRIE (88)
¢) Trade receivables that are not impaired c) IR (E K EUER TR
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither individually nor 37 45 {18 71 3K 5 BE AR A RUME B JE I AR AR AR
collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: RO
The Group The Company
EE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010

—g——& -—T-TF =®—-&% —FT IF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMTR ARMTLE ARMFE ARMTR

Neither past due nor impaired 74 HI kR {E 51,858 46,370 - =
Past due but not impaired f B{E MR (E
1 to 3 months past due BHA3 =61 A 6,652 6,941 = =
Over 3 months past due B ARERA 1 21E A 2,288 4,014 - =
60,798 57,325 - -
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide I 45 780 5 5l Rk 18 A9 e U SRR B % A 3 A
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. HAR RRAC ey % P AR R o
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of ERHEERENREKAEZZERR
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. FRENAEETSHEE  REATL
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment B BEEMRE BREEXKTEERE
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not ) - MARDER A ARSI E - HEA
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still UL F AR ERERE - REE W E
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral FERFHAEMERm -

over these balances.
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24. Pledged Bank Deposits

The pledged bank deposits are bank deposits pledged to a bank to
secure credit facilities granted to the Group. The bank deposits that
have been pledged represent margin deposits to secure bills and other
trade finance facilities granted to the Group from time to time and are
therefore classified as current assets.

The interest rates on the deposits ranged from 2.75% to 3.5% (2010:
2.25% to 2.5%) per annum.

-
b |

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI L

For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
BE—T—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

24. WARRITERK
WIRRITERARAIEEREEERER
HFRITHRITER - EEENRITER
EASETKAERZEREMESHE
EERNRES  AMREARBEE -

n

FERAMENFEE2.75% 23.5% 2B (=

T—FF :225%E2.5%) °

25. Cash and Cash Equivalents 25. BERAEEEY
The Group The Company
KEE PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
=B——F T2 ZB-—H “—T-ITF
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTRT AREBTR ARETET
Bank deposits with original [RIGEARR & =18 A WIaR1T7E 5K
maturities within three months - 7,000 - 7,000
Cash at bank and on hand RITFER RS 226,675 240,056 143,333 150,372
Cash and cash equivalents RERE MBIRAR RiEE
in the consolidated statement  IR&REXRNIRE &
of financial position and the ReFEED
consolidated statement
of cash flows 226,675 247,056 143,333 157,372

In 2011, deposits with banks carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.36% t0 3.5% (2010: 0.36% to 2.25%) per annum.

R ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA

RZE——F ROGRWEEMHH =X
N F036%E3.5% 2 B(=ZF— Ei-
0.36% & 2.25%) °
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26. Trade and Other Payables 26. BT BRF R H A B FRIE
The Group The Company
rEE RAF
Note 2011 2010 2011 2010
Ptk —B—-f —2-TF —B—-f —2-%F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETFTT ARETT AREFT
Trade payables FERERR 72,373 57,524 667 667
Receipts in advances EUEIR 5,497 10,750 1,705 1,705
Other payables and accruals HAtERFIE R BT B 35,056 40,396 4,438 7,369
Amount due to subsidiaries FERHB A RFE - - 1,353 -
Amount due to a related company e —EE AR (i), 35(e) - 4,201 - =
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries R ZNBARFE (i), 35(e) 867 59 536 536
Amount due to the immediate EREBSRAFE
parent company (if) & 35(e) 18,433 135,380 5,103 108,870
Financial liabilities measured RE SR G ER
at amortised cost BEaE 132,226 248,847
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26. Trade and Other Payables (Continued)

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

An ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

-l

Notes to the Financial Statements

AR ARI

For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
BE_ZT——F+-A=+—HItFE

26. FEY BRFN I H B (Y FRIR (AR

FEHEETA&,HJMEH RIEFRHN —FAX
NRERBBRASREREE -

REBPERFGIZERAHFTENENR
HEFRE AT

The Group The Company
REE RATF
2011 2010 2011 2010
=25 -T2 —B-—-F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®ETT ARETR ARETr
Within 3 months 3EAR 50,830 49,798 = =
4 to 6 months 4%6fE A 10,923 2,737 = =
7 to 12 months 72121@H 7,577 1,298 = =
Over 1 year 1A E 3,043 3,691 667 667
72,373 57,524 667 667
Note: FIEE -

i) The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable within one year.

ii) The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable within one year
(2010: interest bearing from 5.31% to 5.81%).

R EREFEENRMBRHOBRAT 20114553 129
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27. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 27. MERITEE
The Group The Company
Effective 158 L
Note interestrate  Maturity 2011 2010 2011 2010
fi BERZE ¥R -3--F -3-3F -3--F —3-%%
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TRE ARETT ARMTR ARETL
Short-term bank loan - secured SRR -H R @ 6.23% 2012 76000 82,000 - -
Current portion of; R -
Long-term bank loan - secured RESTER-FER (o) - - 24,000 24,000
Non-current portion of: g -
Long-term bank loan - secured RESTER-FER (o) - - - 62000 - 62,000
76,000 168,000 - 86,000
The Group The Company
TEE PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —ZE-TF ZB-—-—-F —ZT-ITF
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR AREBTT AR%STRT AREBTT
Within 1 year or on demand RSB E KR 76,000 106,000 - 24,000
After 1 year but within 2 years A 1EEER2FER - 26,000 - 26,000
After 2 years but within 5 years R2E&{BR5FER - 36,000 - 36,000
- 62,000 - 62,000
76,000 168,000 - 86,000
The interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost. None of Mt B8 & TR B H A AR B AR o TR HAME A 3E
the non-current interest-bearing borrowings is expected to be settled MBI EEE#RN —FRIM - NEBA
within one year. All of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in BEEHUARELHE -
RMB.
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27. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings (Continued)

a)

During the year 2011, Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering
Co., Ltd. (”"Neptunus Bio-engineering”), the immediate
parent company, provided guarantees RMB20,000,000 and
RMB12,000,000 for the Group’'s short-term bank loan of
RMB20,000,000 and bills payable and short-term bank loan of
RMB 10,000,000 respectively (2010: RMB111,000,000).

At 31 December 2011, the banking facilities of the Group of
RMB27,000,000 and RMB29,000,000 were secured by mortgages
over its buildings and prepaid lease payments with a total carrying
value of approximately RMB59,401,000 and RMB70,299,000
respectively. The facilities were utilised to the extent of
approximately RMB90,600,000 (2010: RMB82,000,000) and the
Group has available un-utilised banking facilities of approximately
RMB1,135,000 (2010: RMB29,000,000).

The bills payable facilities of approximately RMB5,735,000
were secured by the pledged bank deposit of approximately
RMB10,168,000.

In 2010, the Group's bank loans of RMB86,000,000 utilised were
secured by:

i) the pledge of 639,000,000 domestic shares of the Company
held by Neptunus Bio-engineering (Note 35(b) (xix)), the
immediate parent Company;

i)  the pledge of 47,671,000 domestic shares of the Company
held by Mr. Chai Xiang Dong, a former executive director of
the Company (Note 35(b) (xix));

iy the pledge of the right to revenue derived from subunit
vaccine of influenza virus; and

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBRLDE

Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI E

For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
BE—_T——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

27. B RITIEE (&)

a)

b)

N_ZTE——%F  BEESQARFIHE
TEMIRBROBRAR(EEE
1)) iRt AR # 20,000,000 T XA R
# 12,000,000 TR R1EBANE B G H
RITE R AR 20,000,000 T AR
K FE S R ¥R 52 HRER 4T B 30 10,000,000
TL(ZZE—ZF : AR 111,000,000
TL) BOHELR o

RZZE——F+-A=+—H ' ' &%
R R 775 B A R # 27,000,000
M AR 29,000,000 THEAKREE
2 Al 4 A R #59,401,000T & A R
#70,299,000 7T W) 5 [£ 12 #5 & T8 1+
HEMZEER - EEEBHRHAR
#90,600,000 T( T —FF: AR
#82,000,0007T) KA S B RE A
BEAHARYE1,135,000 L (—E—=
& AR#29,000,0007T) °

R EREREE A ARKS,735,0007T
I IRITFERLHARE 10,168,000
TCYE AR -

RZZE—TF  AEB AT AR
AEEARITE R AR 86,000,000
TCIREFER

) EHESRAIESTEWIREEE
#639,000,000 P& /& 2 AN & %
(Pt 3E 35(b)(xix))

i) ANARAIMITERLEMEBELER
AT A 47,671,000 iR AN A 7]
W& R (BT 5E 35(b) (xix)) + &

iy EARUEBEMRERERE W
VBRI o
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27. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings (Continued) 27. fMESRITEE (&)
b) In 2010, the Group's bank loans of RMB86,000,000 utilised were by RZZE—ZTF AEETIUTFAFHX
secured by: (Continued) ABEEAREITER AR 86,000,000
TTRMEER - (B)
iv) the Company’s immediate parent company and Neptunus v) ARENEBEARKEIEER
Group has given corporate guarantees for the above bank Bt FERIER RAER-
loans. (Note 35(b)(xix)). (BF5E 35(b)(xix)) ©
During the year 2011, the Company repaid the short-term RZZE——F  ARAENEE
loan, the pledge of shares and the corporate guarantees B MEBTEMHRG RAF
from Neptunus Bio-engineering were released. ERAOERE AR -
28. Income Tax in the Statement of Financial 28. BB ARRTRAN TSR
Position
a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial a) HAEPFBAARKANPRIERE

position represents:

The Group The Company
AEE RN
2011 2010 2011 2010

—F——F —T-TF =B——F C"T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TT AR®TRE AREBTL

Provision for the year EEERE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Bl EEFTIS R 3,734 (366) - =
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries & YK B A FEA - 5,870 = =

Balance of PRC Enterprise Income BRI FE A A
Tax provision relating to prior year HR BT ZEFTISHL
R 2,342 2,342 2,342 2,342

6,076 7,846 2,342 2,342
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28. BB RABI TSR (&)

28. Income Tax in the Statement of Financial
Position (Continued)

b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b) BEHAREREZEEKRBE:
The Group EE

ERERE MBI R ER AR IR
(BE) BERKTEFERNEZHMT :

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year as follows:

Fair value
change of
non-current
assets Others Total
FRBEE
DR
EEZ Hit et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T
Deferred tax arising from E e R 2 E A RIRERIA ¢
At 1 January 2010 RZE—ZTF—H—H = (726) (726)
Arising from acquisition AU B A REA
of subsidiaries 40,296 (1,407) 38,889
Credited to profit or loss T ABERR - 235 235
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZEF+=A=+—H
and 1 January 2011 r—ZF——F—HF—H 40,296 (1,898) 38,398
Credited to profit or loss T ABEER = 350 350
At 31 December 2011 RZE—FF+=—A=+—H 40,296 (1,548) 38,748
RYTEE TSR E MR MERAT  2011FF R 133
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28. Income Tax in the Statement of Financial B RTRAMES (B)
Position (Continued)
b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (Continued) b) EBREEMBEEERER: (&)
The Group EEH
2011 2010
=F——% —FFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Net deferred tax assets recognised AR BTSN R IR A
on the consolidated statement %EL%RIEQE
of financial position (1,548) (1,898)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised B4R A EAFSI N R FERAH]
on the consolidated statement FIRERIEE &
of financial position 40,296 40,296
At 31 December 2011 R-_E——F+-_HA=+—H 38,748 38,398
The Company N
Others
Hit
RMB’000
ARET T
Deferred tax arising from EERREETRIE
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZTF—H—H (726)
Credited to profit or loss ST AB=RR -
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZTF+-A=+—H
and 1 January 2011 ;k=F——F—H—H (726)
Credited to profit or loss FFABIRER (243)
At 31 December 2011 R—BE—F+=-_A=+—H (969)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI L

For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
HE-2——Ft-A=t—ALEE

28. Income Tax in the Statement of Financial 28. B RTRANETEH (8)

Position (Continued)

¢)  Deferred tax assets not recognised 0 WARBERHELERIEEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax RERALERE - NREEB R AR
losses of RMB86,441,000 (2010: RMB93,850,000) available for HEE B ARKS86,441,000 L (==
offset against future profits that may be carried forward for five —Z 4 : AR®93,850,0007T) * A
years for PRC Enterprise Income tax purposes. No deferred tax FA DASE 85 2R A0 M) Sz AT gt A B 4 3 A
asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the SHEERF - BREETER AR EF
unpredictability of future profit streams. mE - MR IEE B ERIELER

HEE o
29. Entrusted Loans from the Immediate Parent 29. HE B QA RIEFEER

Company

The Group and the Company AEBRAAT

The entrusted loans from the immediate parent company of which BEOGRRAELZAEREEERRE  5F 95

RMB48,000,000 and RMB30,000,000 were repayable on 5 April 2009 NES5.00ERTATE(ZE—ZTF : FEA

and 26 March 2009 respectively were unsecured and bore interest at 5.00E&7.47[E) - Ep AR 48,000,000

5.00% and 7.47% per annum (2010: 5.00% and 7.47% per annum). TN AR ¥ 30,000,000 THRIR=—ZEZ

On 2 December 2008, the immediate parent company agreed to FUNARRAR-_ZTETAF=A=-F+/, HE

extend the repayment date of the entrusted loans for at least one B -RZZEZENF+-_A=H EBEAQ

year or no earlier than the date of the 15th working day after the AREBEEREZATEREERRL —FHE

completion of the placing of new H shares by the Company (whichever TERAEEEARREEHRTZXREZE TR

is earlier). BALIER (UREERLE) -

On 18 March 2010, the immediate parent company further agreed RZE—ZEF=A+N B EBSA

that the repayment dates of the entrusted loans in the amount of RIEE—TREERZATERARE

RMB48,000,000 and RMB30,000,000 were to be extended to 5 April 48,000,000t & A K % 30,000,000 7T #J

2011 and 26 March 2011 respectively. BEMASHIZ_TE——FOARAR=-ZE

——&H=HA=+H-
On 13 October 2010 the Company repaid the entrusted loan in the RZZE—ZF+A+=H ARARIEEE
amount of RMB30,000,000. ZFEEHR AR 30,000,000 7T °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P E

For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
E-T——4F A=t —HILEE

29. Entrusted Loans from the Immediate Parent

Company (Continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

On 5 April 2011, the immediate parent company further agreed
to extend the repayment date of the entrusted loan in the amount
of RMB9,000,000 as Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to
the Company that it would not demand repayment of the above-
mentioned shareholder’s entrusted loan unless and until: (1) the
repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely
affect the operations of the Company and/or its business objectives
as set out in the prospectus published by the Company on 29 August
2005 (the “Prospectus”); and (2) each of the independent non-
executive directors was of the opinion that the repayment of such
shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely affect the operations
of the Company and/or the implementation of its business objectives
as set out in the Prospectus, and the Company would make an
announcement in respect of the decision of the independent non-
executive directors made under (2); and (3) the Company had a positive
cash flow and had retained profits in the relevant financial year.

The interest of RMB450,000 attributable to the entrusted loan in the
amount of RMB9,000,000 was waived by Neptunus Bio-engineering.

On 25 November 2011, the Company repaid the entrusted loans in the
amount of RMB39,000,000.

The carrying amount of the Group’s entrusted loans from the
immediate parent company approximates their fair value.

29.

EBERAREEER(E)

AEERAAT (E)
R-ZT——ENAHE EBEARE—
FRBLERZMEKAR9,000,00075T
WEEH LERESTEYERARR R
A BB T EREE FNREZE
o BRIEREAE  (NEERZKRRETRE
RETEHHEAARARAR _EZTHENA
ZHNABHENBRER(ERER]D A
RAREER,SHEEBZEKTHE
2 RQEBUINTESHRBEEZ
BRRZTZERETISHIERBRERNHR
REIEBR/HEEBEBENETRRT
FEE  BARRBRBIIERITESER
FBQEMEAEELASE  RG)AARAR
M BFEESRBIERS R RREHEF -

B ARE 9,000,000 TTH EETFIB A
R 450,000 LEB T EWE R -

R-ZB——F+—A=-+HB ' AATHE
BZEDR AR 39,000,0007T ©

AEENEESARERNERRIEREER
FEAEE -
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30. Deferred Revenue

a) The Group

Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR R M 5T
For The Year Ended 31 December 2011

E—E——F+—A=+—RAILEE

30. IEIE R &=
AEE

a)

Subsidy A Subsidy B Subsidy C Subsidy D Subsidy E Subsidy F Subsidy G Subsidy H Subsidy| SubsidyJ Subsidy K
WK Efmy &

HEA

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

a8

il

)

HBE

B

e

B H

Ll

L

Other

subsidy ~ Total

RMB'000

ARETT ARBTL ARMTR ARBTT ARRT L ARBTT ARRTR ARMTR ARBTL ARRT R ARBTT ARKT R ARBTR

(Note) (Noteb) (Notec) (Noted) (Notee) (Notef) (Noteg) (Noteh) (Notei) (Note) (Notek)  (Notel)
(Wea)  (HEb) (Mo (WEd) (e (WD (o) (Wh) (W) (M) (W) (&)
Cost A
At 1 January 2010 R-Z-FF-f-H 500 500 3,000 400 300 3,000 - - - - - - 7,700
Additions hE - - - - - - 18,000 - - - - - 18,000
Addtion upon acquisition REEHELARE
of subsidiaries HE - - - - - - - - 450 370 100 - 920
At 31 December 2010 RZ5-%%
and January 2011 t=R=1-R
k=5—%
—A-H 500 500 3,000 400 300 3,000 18,000 - 450 370 100 - 26620
Additions WE - - - - - - - 400 - - - 231 211
At 31 December 2011 RoE——F
+-f=1-H 500 500 3,000 400 300 3,000 18,000 400 450 370 100 2321 29341
Accumulated amortisation 23t
At 1 January 2010 R-E-SF-f-H 250 - 1,398 233 - - - - - - - - 1,881
Released to income BAREER
statement for the year &R 50 - 364 - 300 1,054 5758 - - 370 - - 7,8%
At 31 December 2010 RZ5-%%
and 1 January 2011 t=R=1-R
RAZE——£&
—A-H 300 - 1,762 233 300 1,054 5,758 - - 370 - - 9777
Released to income BAREERY
statement for the year Wak 50 - 287 - - 382 5299 360 450 - 100 1,193 8121
At 31 December 2011 RE—-F
+-f=1-H 350 - 2,049 233 300 1436 11,057 360 450 370 100 1193 17,898
Carrying Amount EE
At 31 Decerber 2011 RZE-——F
+-B=1-H 150 500 951 167 - 1,564 6,943 40 - - - 1128 11443
At 31 December 2010 RZ5-%%
T-A=1-A 200 500 1,238 167 - 1946 1224 - 450 - 100 - 16843
RINTEEESEEYEMRBERLAT  2011F 53R 137
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P E

For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
 E—E——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

e

30. Deferred Revenue (Continued) 30. IEFEUN S (48 )
b) The Company b) Z&AF
Subsidy A Subsidy B Subsidy C Subsidy D  Subsidy E  Subsidy F Subsidy G Subsidy H Total
®HA  WHB  WEC  BBD  WHE  WHF  BEG  HEH @it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Notea) ~ (Noteb) ~ (Notec)  (Noted)  (Notee)  (Notef)  (Noteg)  (Noteh)
(Wa)  (aEb) (o (HaEd)  (HiEe) (MR (Mg  (Mh)
Cost RE
At 1 January 2010 RZE-F4-F-H 500 500 3,000 400 300 3,000 - - 7,700
Additions ME - - - - 18,000 - 18,000
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-FE+-A=1-H
and 1 January 2011 k=Z—%-F-H 500 500 3,000 400 300 3,000 18,000 - 25,700
Additions HE - - - - - - - 400 400
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%+-A=+-H 500 500 3,000 400 300 3,000 18,000 400 26,100
Accumulated amortisation it
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-FE-f—H 250 - 1,398 233 - - - - 1,881
Released to income BAREEA bR
statement for the year 50 - 364 - 300 1,054 5,759 - 7527
At 31 December 2010 Z-ZE+-A=1-H
and 1 January 2011 & f——i A-B 300 = 1,762 233 300 1,054 5759 - 9,408
Released to income BAREEA bR
statement for the year 50 - 287 - - 382 5299 360 6,378
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%+-A=+-H 350 - 2,049 233 300 1,436 11,058 360 15,786
Carrying Amount KEE
At 31 December 2011 W-E-FE+-A=1+—H 150 500 951 167 - 1,564 6,942 40 10,314
At 31 December 2010 RZB-ZE+ZA=1-A 200 500 1,238 167 - 1946 12,41 - 1629
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30. Deferred Revenue (Continued)

Notes:

a)

e)

In June 2003, a subsidy of RMB500,000 was jointly granted by the
Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and the Shenzhen Bureau of
Finance to the Company for the acquisition of certain plant and machinery
for the production of interferon spray. The amount of RMB50,000 (2010:
RMB50,000) was recognised as income over the useful life of the related
plant and machinery.

In July 2003, another subsidy of RMB500,000 was jointly granted by
the Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and the Shenzhen
Bureau of Finance for assisting the Company in performing research
and development of interferon ointment. The subsidy is not required to
be repaid to the Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and the
Shenzhen Bureau of Finance only if the project is subsequently approved
and certified by Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and
Shenzhen Bureau of Finance upon its completion. Since the Company
has not yet obtained the approval for the project, the subsidy was not
recognised as income for 2011 and 2010.

In December 2004, a subsidy of RMB2,000,000 was jointly granted by
the Shenzhen Bureau of Science, Technology and Information and the
Shenzhen Development and Reform Bureau as a science and technology
fund to subsidise the acquisition of certain plant and machinery. A
further subsidy of RMB1,000,000 for the same purpose was granted in
July 2005. These subsidies are not required to be repaid and the amount
of approximately RMB287,000 (2010: RMB364,000) was recognised as
income over the useful life of the related plant and machinery.

In December 2005, a subsidy of RMB400,000 was granted by the
Shenzhen Bureau of Finance for financing the research and development
of interferon vaginal effervescent tablet. The subsidy is not required
to be repaid to the Shenzhen Bureau of Finance only if the project is
subsequently approved and certified by the Shenzhen Bureau of Science,
Technology and Information upon its completion. The subsidy was not
recognised as income for 2011 and 2010.

In June 2008, a subsidy of RMB300,000 was granted by the Shenzhen
Bureau of Science and Technology Branch for financing the research and
development of inactivated split influence vaccine. The subsidy is not
required to be repaid to the Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology
Branch. The amount of RMB 300,000 was recognised as income in 2010 as
the project was completed.

R ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA

PR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
=+ NN

ISR R M 5T

For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
BE—_ZE——F+-_A=1+—HIFE

30. JESE W 3 (48)
FifgE -

A

a) RIZZTT=FxA FImEERMEE
FITMHBEREAEERBERBEBRELN
ETHRERKES  HRABRFARAARE
500,000 JTHI#E) - AR¥ 50,0007t (=%
—Z4E . ARMES50,0007T)EREBHER
HE B2 R B] i B F IR IER AU ©

b) REZZTZT=F+A FImEEFiHaE
YT BB B H R F AR 500,000 T8
e ARBAARAEERAERERTL
BRERE - REHEEBETKE  BEE
YT B B3R T B RO T B R B K5
FRBRT @ LEFBHBEEETREI
TRBEMBEFRYTHEE - BRAR
Al ARRBZIEE X RIEAR =T
——ER T -TERERLEFHBBRA -

o R-ZZEEMFE+=—A FIWEERNE
BERERNTERREMNXERBERAET AR
¥ 2,000,000 TR E) © (ERTIE KT E
S UHBKBETHRE RS - RZF
THELA  AEERBHEIMGPHARE
1,000,0007% - {EAERB AR - ILE/HE
BEERE MY AR 287,000 (=ZF—
T AR¥364,0007T) ERERBERE X
HEER R B] (R F IR IER AN ©

d R=EZEZTRF+=A FITHBEBETF
AR # 400,000 TH B - (EATREER
BHEZOERORE - AEEEE TA
% BRRYITRERENE S B ERR
BOBRAT  WHEBHHHBBEEE - WE
R-E——ER-_T—TFEHERMIBR
BRA o

e) RIZZTTNEXA - FYMBERMGS B
BT ARK300,000THIME - 1EARIFZRE
HABTRTHERERSHBELENRE - %
WHBEEETFRYMBERNS B - A
RZEB B R ' MARK300,000THE
BRAZT—ZFHERBUEA -

20114 7R 139



Notes to the Financial Statements

P E

For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
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30. Deferred Revenue (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

f)

9)

In December 2009, a subsidy of RMB3,000,000 was granted by Shenzhen
Bureau of Science, Technology and Information Council for financing a
project to carry out the research and development of HINI. The subsidy is
not required to be repaid to Shenzhen Bureau of Science, Technology and
Information Council. The amount of RMB382,000 (2010: RMB1,054,000)
was recognised as income to match with the research and development
expense of HIN1 incurred during the year.

In June 2010, a subsidy of RMB18,000,000 was granted by the People’s
Government of Shenzhen Municipality pursuant to the preferential
treatments given to biological industry under the policies of the People’s
Government of Shenzhen Municipality for the purpose of supporting
the research and development. The amount of RMB5,299,000 (2010:
RMB5,758,000) was recognised as income to match with the research and
development expense incurred during the year.

In April 2011, a subsidy of RMB400,000 was granted by Science, Industry,
Trade and Information Technology Commission of Shenzhen Municipality
for financing the research and development of FEIHINTREHESZEHE.
The subsidy is not required to be repaid to the authorities. The amount of
RMB360,000 was recognised as income to match with the research and
development expenses.

In December 2008, a subsidy of RMB450,000 was granted by f&/iH
BEXEMERMF and @INTHEUS for financing the research and
development of KYMBE SRS, The subsidy is not required to be
repaid to the authorities. The amount of RMB450,000 was recognised as
income to match with the research and development expenses.

In December 2008, a subsidy of RMB370,000 was granted by 4@} &f
BB and f@MMEIEEAMTS for financing the research and development
of KR FRHEIZEK 5 7. The subsidy is not required to be repaid to the
authorities as the Group obtained the approval for the project. The amount
of RMB 370,000 was recognised as income to match with the research and
development expenses incurred during the year 2010.

In September 2009, a subsidy of RMB100,000 was granted by &/ &
ZEBIERIB for financing the research and development of FHEf .
The subsidy is not required to be repaid to the authorities. The amount of
RMB100,000 was recognised as income to match with the research and
development expenses.

During the year 2011, the Group obtained several subsidies with an
approximate total amount of RMB2,321,000 from government authorities
for financing, its research and development projects. These subsidies are
not required to be repaid to the authorities. The amount of RMB1,193,000
was recognised as income to match with research and development
expenses.
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f)

h)

RZZETNF+ZA  FYWmRHEIEM
EE{tZEE’K T ARK 3,000,000 LA
BY) - EREITHIEHINIENIBEBE - %
BEEEE T RIMERIENEE(SR
B€ - AR#382,000L(ZFE—T4F : A
R#1,054,00070) & 3B EERAKA
RUABERFREERHIN L -

RZF—ZTFEXA FITARBFR
BHEHUEMEXENEERERETARE
18,000,000 LI/ B - YERETFAFT R &
B S o ARM5,299,000t( -8 —F
&£ : AR#¥5,758,000) B4 5 2 RN EANFT
HRBRANRENFERNEENTFERAS

RZZT——FWA - FYERE Tl g
Z EERMZEEE T ARK400,000
T VE 7 1 B DA 35 3 B HINLAE B R &5 %
HeZMPEFTEETERKE ARK
360,000 H) £ 5 B ERR AU AR & i 3
X o

RZZENE+_A BINTERERE
Bt BEEMN T BB HE T AR 450,000
TR FAMERAERKDPBEESR
PRARE - ZHHEFTEETEBE
% o AR¥450,0000 S5 CEERARA
AR AR -

RZZTZENFE+=A @MNTHEREER
M RIE B F AR 370,000 TH)
B ERMIE RBZCKDIARE B
BIMEE - LB B EEETHBEE -
BEAEBERESZEENIEX AR
370,000 CH & FEE EHER BRAUE AR
T -TEEENFERAS -

RZZEZhENLA BNTERERER
T B1% T AR B 100,000897B8) « {EAE
LFAZERANME - XM BAEET
BRAKIE - ARB100,0000 & 50 ERER
BRANR SRS -

R-ZT——F  AEERZERFBPIR
BSHEEHARE2,321,000 TR ZIERE) -
EARMERAZREENRE - ZHBHHBA
BEFEHKE BAEECIGZEE
HH#t X o AR 1,193,000 TS 50 ERE
RABAAE SRS -
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30. Deferred Revenue (Continued)

31.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI E

For The Year Ended 31 December 2011

The directors consider that, except for the subsidies mentioned in note
4 and note 30, there were no other forms of government assistance
from which the Group has directly benefited.

HE-_T—

30. JESEW 3 (48)

F+ZA=+—HIFE

EERA - BRMIEE4 KR 30 At #9 45 B
Sh REBEYEBREMTANBFEBF

HEEH -

Share Capital 31. iR
Note 2011 2010
Number Number
of shares of shares 2011 2010
FizE —B—-f —T-TF
RAEE BEE 2% —T-ZF
‘000 ‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TR Tk ARETR ARETT
Registered, issued and fully paid: AT BETRBRRA -
Domestic shares of RMBO0.10 each BREBARE0.10T
HRER (i) 1,252,000 1,252,000 125,200 125,200
H shares of RMBO0.10 each BREEARE.10T
FIHAR (ii) 426,000 426,000 42,600 42,600
1,678,000 1,678,000 167,800 167,800
Registered, issued and fully paid: AT BETRBRR -
At 1 January R—A—H 1,678,000 946,670 167,800 94,667
Placing and subscription of fic & KRR D
new shares (iii) - 189,330 - 18,933
Issue of new shares for acquisition RN B A R THRG
of subsidiaries (iv) - 542,000 - 54,200
At 31 December ®W+-A=+—~H 1,678,000 1,678,000 167,800 167,800

The owners of domestic shares and H shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote
per share at meetings of the Company. All domestic shares and H
shares rank equally with regard to the Company'’s residual assets.

RYIH B ERBFEEYRMBRHBRLDE

NE R K HI R TEA A B AR ERAY
e WEERARGIEE EAFRIR—
F - MBERNEREHBRERREHRTEES

BRISHER
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31. Share Capital (Continued) 31. B4 (48)

Notes: s -

i) The domestic shares are not currently listed on any stock exchange. i) BRI AR ERBHZ BT LT o

i) The H shares have been issued and listed on the Growth Enterprises i) HREEZZZTRFNABEITIEREBE
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since September ERGABRARIBIZER LT ©
2005.

i) On 18 October 2010, the Company entered into a placing agreement and i)y NZTE—ZTF+A+NB ' KAFGILE
agreed to place through the placing agent a maximum of 189,330,000 EE TREFSBRERBIZGIREES
new H shares at a price of HK$0.89 per placing share. %15 0.89/8 TRV B AR AL & £ % 189,330,000

ARETHAL

On 3 November 2010, the Company completed the issue and allotment of RZTE—ZTF+—HA=H ' ARFTKE
189,330,000 new H shares and received the net proceeds of approximately 17 X% BL 3% 189,330,000 #T H A% » 7 UKERFT 15
RMB 141,614,000. FIEFRELARE 141,614,0007T ©

i) On 8 December 2010, the Company issued 542,000,000 consideration vy RZT—ZTF+=-A/N\B ' ARFIXE
shares to Neptunus Bio-engineering at RMBO0.80 per consideration share BRERNDARKSOT(REKBEH =
(the fair value of the shares at the completion date on 14 December T—ZTHF+-_A+HMBE BROEBNAIAE
2010 was RMB0.82 per share) with a par value of RMBO0.10 each. The BEAESRARK082T) METEEWET
consideration shares were for the settlement of the consideration for the 542,000,000 R EE AERARE0.107TH)
acquisition of Neptunus Fuyao. The transaction was completed on 14 KRB - RED JH AR E )G T 18 2%
December 2010. The consideration shares were allotted to the immediate HKRERE ARFR_TE—ZTF+=A
parent company on 2 March 2011. THAZTK - MREROR=-F——F=

RA-_RAER#GEBE AT -

32. Reserves 32. &

a) The Group a) ZA£H
The Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current and AEERAFERBAFENFESER
prior year are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in 8 ERGAEEHRAZR -
equity.
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BTSRRI L

For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
BE—T—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

32. Reserves (Continued) 32. 4 (4)
b) The Company b) ZA&AF
Statutory
Share reserve Accumulated
premium fund losses Total
RamE EEAE REtER et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR®TR AR®TxR

At 1 January 2010 R-ZE—ZFF—H—H 41,923 3,330 (112,274) (67,021)
Placing and subscription Be s K RREFTHAR

of new shares 126,312 - - 126,312
Allotment of new shares g b NGITIE: $7E <)

for acquisition of subsidiaries 390,240 - - 390,240
Share issue expenses BTN E A (3,631) = = (3,631)
Loss for the year and total REEEE

comprehensive income MAFEEA

for the year Er et - - (17,750) (17,750)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-ZF+—A=+—H

and 1 January 2011 r=ZF——F—H—H 554,844 3,330 (130,024) 428,150
Profit for the year and total REZ A

comprehensive income RAFEEZE

for the year Was4asa - - 2,390 2,390
At 31 December 2011 R-E—F+=_A=+—H 554,844 33,3510 (127,634) 430,540
Under the laws and regulations of the PRC and the Company’s articles RIBERBOEERERARARAGHNEEE
of association, the Company has to provide for certain statutory funds, BHER - NRARERE TEAEESFIRE
namely, the statutory reserve fund which is appropriated from net B BBEERAE  FNEEBKRMERMERE
profit after tax but before dividend distribution. BB R AEFI A ES -

c) Share premium o RHEHE

Share premium arose from the issue of shares at prices in excess of REZETZROEENRO RERLE®
their par value less share issue expenses. BERBRERNDETER -
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2011

HE

32.
d)

e)

f)

9)

B+ -A=+—HIFE

Reserves (Continued)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between the total amount of
fair value of shares issued to the immediate holding company and the
value of the net assets acquired during the acquisition of Neptunus
Fuyao.

Statutory Reserve Fund

The Company is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit
according to its PRC audited financial statements to the statutory
reserve fund until the balance of such reserve has reached 50% of the
Company'’s issued share capital. Any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory reserve fund shall only be used for making up losses or
for capitalisation into share capital, provided that the remaining balance
is not less than 20% of the issued share capital after such capitalisation.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of a jointly controlled
entity. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 1(s).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2011, the Company had no distributable reserves,
while its accumulated losses, calculated in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association and relevant rules and regulations,
amounted to approximately RMB127,634,000 (2010: approximately
RMB130,024,000).
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d)

e)

f)

g)
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32. Reserves (Continued)
h)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an adjusted
net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined
as total debt (which includes interest-bearing bank borrowings and
entrusted loans from the immediate parent company) plus unaccrued
proposed dividends, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends
plus adjusted net debt.

During 2011, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2010, was to maintain a gearing ratio within 30% to 70%. In order
to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt. The
gearing ratio at 31 December 2011 and 2010 was as follows:
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32. Reserves (Continued)

.

32. fiéfe ()

h) Capital management (Continued) h) EXEE
Note 2011 2010
s —E——fF —T-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Total borrowings EEMEE
Interest-bearing financial assistance HESRRMEMEER
from immediate parent company - 91,155
Interest-bearing bank borrowings MERITEE 27 76,000 168,000
Entrusted loans from the BHE&AREER
immediate parent company 29 9,000 48,000
85,000 307,155
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRBSEEY 25 (226,675) (247,056)
Adjusted net debt KRB AGEFE (141,675) 60,099
Total equity R 486,276 455,868
Adjusted capital FEEELS= PN 344,601 515,967
Gearing ratio BRBELE - 12%
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the gearing ratio of the Group was RIBE——FR_E—ZFF+A=+—
nil and 12% respectively which has improved during the year. Neither CAEENERBEEEESRREM
the company nor its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed 12% @ MZLEEREREEERNE - X2
capital requirements. Al sk H T8 A B K FE A 4% 6 B 82 1 A
RE AR T BRI o
33. Contingent Liability 33. HARAE
At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the Company N2 WAL RE - A% E KA QR
had any significant contingent liability. BEMERIABE -
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Polices

The Group’s major financial instruments include pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, interest-bearing bank borrowings, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables and entrusted loans from
the immediate parent company. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risks. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

a)

Credit risk

i)

iii)

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial
loss from defaults.

In respect of trade and other receivables, in order to minimise risk,
the management has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial position and conditions
are performed on each and every major customer periodically.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer operates.
The Group does not require collateral in respect of its financial
assets. Debts are usually due within 90 days from the date of
billing.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group's exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and the location in
which customers operate also has an influence on credit risk. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant
concentrations of credit risk as no individual trade or other
receivable’s balance exceeds 10% of the total trade and other
receivables.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out
in note 23.
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34.

a)

b)

B+ -A=+—HIFE

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Polices (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
iv)  Deposits with financial institutions

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits
with financial institutions that meet the established credit rating
or other criteria. Given these high credit ratings, management
does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company has certain concentration
of credit risk as 65% (2010: 13%) of total cash and cash
equivalents were deposited with two financial institutions in PRC
with high credit ratings.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their
own cash management, including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to board approval. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term. The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquid fund. As at 31 December 2011, the Group has available un-
utilised banking facilities of approximately RMB1,135,000 (2010:
RMB29,000,000) details of which are disclosed in note 27.

The following liquidity and interest rate risk tables set out the weighted
average effective interest rate and the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and
the earliest date the Group and the Company are required to pay:
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 34. B RAKREE A ZERECK (8)
Polices (Continued)
b) Liquidity risk (Continued) b) REBELE (&)
i) The Group i) EEEH
01 2010
8-f i
Weighted More than  More than Total Weighted Morethan ~ More than Total
average  Within  Tyearbut 2yearshut contractual alerage Within 1 yearbut 2 years but contractual

cffective fyearoron  lessthan  lessthan Morethan undiscount  Camying effectve  fyearoron  lessthan  lessthan  Moethan undiscounted  Camying
interestrate  demand  2yeas  Syeas  Syears castfow  amount interestrate  demend  2yeas  Syeas  Syeas  shfow amount
¥ &l
nEH R-FAE BE-F BERE RS WERS R-FRR BEE BERF i
RAdE BEZRE EORWE EONRE @ERE  REMRE 0 BEE SRR RERM BONRE EJNDF  BERE MBEE REE
% RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000 % RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB'O00  RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARBTn ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Sevedshottem  HEBRERIER
bank loans g
Fived rates - - - - - - - 531% 5145 - - - 5145 5000
Seredbarkloans  BERHTER
Varable rates L 6.3% o - - - T T6000 ATSHG40% 08114 B8NS 37% - I3 16300
Amount e to EREESNTNE
mmediate parent
company - 18433 - - - 18433 18433 581% 140,676 - - - loeTe 135380
Entrusted loans fom ~~ EBSAF]
immedteparent  Z3EER
company 5% 9450 - - - 9450 9,000 5% 48625 - - - 48625 48000
Trade and other payables  EEHRERERTE - 113793 - - - B3I 11379 = 113467 = = - B3 11347
28748 - - R W BN S0
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Polices (Continued)

34. B EEIE B R R BUR (&)

b) Liquidity risk (Continued) b) RBELREME (&)
ii)  The Company i) ARE]
01 2010
2--f 2Ef
Weighted More than  More than Total Weighted More than ~ More than Total
average  Within 1yearbut 2years but contractual average Within -~ 1yearbut 2 years but contractual
effective 1yearoron lessthan lessthan Morethan undiscount Carrying effective Tyearoron lessthan  lessthan  More than undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate demand  2years  Syears  Syears castflow  amount interestrate demand  2yeas  Syes  Syeas  cashflow  amount
G af
AT R-FRY BE-F EEWE KBRS MET R-FAY BE-F  RERE ARe
ENHE BEEXE EORWE @ONRE BBRE REER RRE RRAE RERE EJIWE BONREF  @BRE RSEE  BEE
% RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 % RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMBOCO  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTT ARETL ARETL ARBTT ARETR ARETR
Secured barkloans  BHEARAER
Variable rates LS = - - - - - - 64% 8800 29205 3779 - %579 86000
Amount due EfEBEARNE
toimmedate
parent company - 5,103 - - - 5,103 5103 5381% 114,166 - - - 114766 108870
Entrusted loans EERAT
from mmediate Eithet
parent company 5% 9,450 - - - 9,450 9,000 5% 48,625 - - - 48625 48,000
Trade and other payables  [EREZREER3E - 8699 - - - 869 B - 10277 - = -0 m
B - - - BRI WS /5 3w - MK W
c) Interest rate risk ) A=EREp

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings
and entrusted loan from the immediate parent company which are at
variable interest rate.

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the Group’s profit/loss after
tax and accumulated losses by approximately RMB850,000 (2010:
RMB2,110,000).

AEBEHEBANETEHNTHEAR - £
BREASENHERTEEREBE AR
RHHOEBRETEGNZEEEEH -

RZB——F+_A=+—8 " f4FI=E
2HIA0, R A 100 - T ETE b B E ST
B2 AEEMNKRREBERZ S8 FE
1815, w4 AR 850,000 L (=&
—ZF : AR¥2,110,0007T) °
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34. Financial Risk Management Obijectives and

(9]

d)

Polices (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 100 basic points (2010: 100 basic points) increase or decrease in
interest rates is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2010.

Currency risk

Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the foreign
exchange exposure. The Group's functional currency is Renminbi as
substantially all the turnover and expenditure are in Renminbi. The
Group's transactional foreign exchange exposure was insignificant.

Proceeds from the issue of 189,330,000 new H shares were not fully
converted into RMB in accordance with national foreign exchange
regulations, of which approximately HK$31,559,000 was not converted
into in RMB as at 31 December 2011 and, as the consideration of the
Disposal was denominated in US dollars, approximately USD17,665,000
was not converted into in RMB as at 31 December 2011. As such, the
exchange rate fluctuation of Hong Kong dollars against RMB and US
dollars against RMB may adversely affect the Group’s profit for the
Year. In the event of significant fluctuation in the exchange rate of
Hong Kong dollars against RMB and US dollars against RMB in 2012, it
will produce certain effect on the Group’s profit. Currently, the Group
has not adopted any financial instrument for hedging purposes.

R ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 34. M REKREE B ERECR (8)
Polices (Continued)
d) Currency risk (Continued) d E¥Ek(E)
The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s exposure at TRARNEERARN AN 2 R4 R
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised HEHNBEEERNAEAEEZEN Y
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional Wiz B ABN 2 EERBETYEHF
currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes, 15 o DA 2 3R ER45 SR B 2 BN HADE R [ 5. 1% -
the amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi, converted into B EER 7 EUNARKES
using the spot rate at the year end date.
2011 2010
—=——F —ZT-EF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARBTFT
The Group AEE
Cash and cash equivalents Re kREEHEY
United States Dollars ET 111,357 16,440
Hong Kong Dollars BT 25,600 139,781
Net exposure arising from recognised EEBREEATEE
assets (N oF 136,957 156,221
2011 2010
—B——fF —TTHF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
The Company NG|
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEFEY
United States Dollars ETT 111,308 =
Hong Kong Dollars I 25,585 139,763
Net exposure arising from recognised HEBREEAZTEE
assets [ B R 136,893 139,763
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34. Financial Risk Management Obijectives and

d)

Polices (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaeous change in the Group's
profit after tax and accumulated loss that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all other
risk variables remained constant.

The Group

Increase/
(decrease)

.fﬂh

o
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fi\

.
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34. BRI EIE B R R BUR (&)

d) E¥EkE(E)
RERBERE BEHEMERZET
B AREEHEIEEXRAEELNAIE
L i 5| AL B R 1208 A N REH 18 BN IS
BE2HWT -
REH
2011 2010
Effect on Increase/ Effect on
profit after (decrease) loss after
tax and in foreign tax and

in foreign

exchange rates accumulated loss

exchange rates accumulated loss

SMNEEE HERBEREFR HNEEEXR HBRHBESER

#wiCRd) RetBENEE #wm(hd) REBENTE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREETTT ARETTT

Hong Kong Dollars BIT 5% 1,280 5% 6,989
(5%) (1,280) (5%) (6,989)

United States Dollars E7T 5% 5,568 5% 822
(5%) (5,568) (5%) (822)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group entities’
profit after tax and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, converted into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2010.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure at the end
of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.

R ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA
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BERRZBYAEEBAEL IR MBS
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Polices (Continued)

e) Fair values
The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of the immediate or short-
term maturity of these financial instruments. The carrying amounts
of interest-bearing bank borrowings and entrusted loans from the
immediate parent company approximate their fair values.

f)  Estimation of fair values
The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in
estimating the fair values of the following financial instruments.

i) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar
financial instruments.

34. M EREEBFEREEK (R)

e)

f)
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
During the year, the Group and the Company have the following
material transactions with related parties.

a) During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group entered
into certain continuing connected transactions.

b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year:

Related party transactions with the immediate parent company

For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
BE_ZT——F+-A=+—HItFE

35. EREERRS
REFER  FEBRAATERPES
ETTHIBARS -

a) MEBE_T——F+-_H=+—ALt
FE ARV ETHERERS

b) AKEERAFEANZEBEBEHETT
TNEARS :

HEBREARETNEENRS

Name
related parties Relationship Nature or transactions Note 201 2010
BERER B RHUE iif= —2--f T
RMB000 RMB'000
ARMTR ARETT
Neptunus Immediate parent Entrusted loans from immediate (i), (v), (v) 9,000 48,000
Bio-engineering company parent company
BTEN EESAT ERBRFZEAER
Accrued interest for the entrusted loan 1,758 3,706
ZRBTNETE
Interest-bearing financial assistance (i), (v), (v) - 91,155
MBI ER
Accrued interest for the 4,285 4,711
interest-bearing financial assistance
B2 B R TS
Acquisition of 75% equity (iil), (iv), (v) - 416,663
interest of Neptunus Fuyao

WA ST REEET5%iE
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
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35. Material Related Party Transactions 5. ERBEERRXS (&)
(Continued)
b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related b) AEERAFEANGHEMEFHETT
parties during the year: (Continued) HNERRS : (&)
Notes: B&E
Entrusted loans from the immediate parent company REEBBARINEZTEER
i) In April 2007, the Group obtained a RMB39,000,000 interest- ) RZTTELtFNA: AEEBAEE
bearing entrusted loan from Neptunus Bio-engineering. The FTEMESHEZZBRARE

entrusted loan was unsecured, bore interest at 5% per annum and
repayable on 5 April 2009.

On 13 December 2007, the Group obtained a RMB9,000,000
interest-bearing entrusted loan from Neptunus Bio-engineering. The
entrusted loan was unsecured, bore interest at 5% per annum and
repayable on 5 April 2009.

On 26 March 2008, the Group obtained a RMB30,000,000 interest-
bearing entrusted loan from Neptunus Bio-engineering. The
entrusted loan was unsecured, bore interest at 7.47% per annum
and repayable on 26 March 2009.

On 2 December 2008, the immediate parent company agreed to
extend the repayment date of the above three entrusted loans for at
least one year or no earlier than the date of the 15th working day
after the completion of the placing of new H shares by the Company
(whichever is earlier).

On 18 March 2010, the immediate parent company agreed that
the repayment dates of the entrusted loans in the amount of
RMB39,000,000, RMB9,000,000 and RMB30,000,000 were to
be extended to 5 April 2011, 5 April 2011 and 26 March 2011
respectively.

39,000,0007T ° ZFEiERAEER -
BEWBESERER-_TTNEFNA
FHEEE-

R-TTLF+-F+=8 £%&E
EETANEBHAERERAR
#9,000,000 7T ° Ith & 5E1E 5K A K
A BFEHBSE AR -TThF
mATAME -

RZTZENF=A=1+B ' £&E
BSTEVESHEZTEBRARE
30,000,000 7T ° ltté%{aw%ﬂﬁ
> BEWE747E  BR-_ZTTA
F=ZR=+/NHEE -

RZZTENF+=-A=H HEEAQ
AIRELER L = BEAEREES
RO —FRETERAEEERDA
FREHRTEAREE T RETIER (AR
BERAE) -

75’\: —EE=A+N\B BB
BARRAEERZAERARS
39,000,0007u AR #9,000,0007T

B A B # 30,000,000 7T & {& 38 H3 5
ME=ZT——FMWARRA - =F——

FOARBER-_ZE—F=ZA=t+KX
H o
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

b)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

i)

ii)

iii)

(Continued)

On 13 October 2010, the Company repaid the entrusted loans in the
amount of RMB30,000,000.

On 5 April 2011, the immediate parent company further agreed
to extend the repayment date of the entrusted loan in the amount
of RMB9,000,000 as Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to
the Company that it would not demand repayment of the above-
mentioned shareholder’s entrusted loan unless and until: (1) the
repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely
affect the operations of the Company and/or its business objectives
as set out in the prospectus published by the Company on 29
August 2005 (the “Prospectus”); and (2) each of the independent
non-executive directors was of the opinion that the repayment
of such shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely affect
the operations of the Company and/or the implementation of its
business objectives as set out in the Prospectus, and the Company
would make an announcement in respect of the decision of the
independent non-executive directors made under (2); and (3) the
Company had a positive cash flow and had retained profits in the
relevant financial year.

The interest of RMB450,000 attributable to the entrusted loan in the
amount of RMB9,000,000 was waived by Neptunus Bio-engineering.

On 25 November 2011, the Company repaid the entrusted loans in
the amount of RMB39,000,000.

The financial assistance was unsecured, bearing interest ranging
from 5.31% to 5.81%, and repayable on demand.

The Company repaid the financial assistance in the amount of
approximately RMB18,810,000 and approximately RMB72,345,000
on 15 June 2011 and 25 November 2011 respectively.

On 16 July 2010, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Neptunus Bio-engineering for the acquisition of
the 75% equity interest in Neptunus Fuyao for a consideration of
approximately RMB416,663,000, which was fully settled by the issue
and allotment of 508,125,000 consideration share to Neptunus Bio-
engineering at RMBO.8 per consideration shares (the fair value of the
shares at the completion date in 14 December 2010 was RMB 0.82
per share.)(Note 36)

R BERBFEEDRMBRHBERLDE

Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI oL

For The Year Ended 31 December 2011

(2T ——F+—A=1+—HItFE

5. EREERRS (1)

b)

AR BN A P BT T T

IIEBRRS : ()

S+ ()

) )
R-T-—TE+AT=A - AKEE

iii)

BEFERARY 30,000,000 7T °

F,T——Emﬂﬁa BEEEA
E ﬂiﬂ Lﬁ;‘zﬂa TJ\/\EM
9m0w0mm1§% TS RE
FEVEMARRER  HBETEE
i@%ttki;%@a BRIERE
F(NEEZBRRZRERET
EgﬁW$®7m,7,£¢Aﬂ
:+naﬂ%m%hiﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ
BODRARBEER SHEEEREZ
%%Kﬂ%% RQ)EEIERITE
EURBEEZREZTERETE
HENBRERNAARLER, K
HEBEREMNETEXNTHEE B
RAREHBIIERITEETRNEQ)E
FERERE AL RB)ARAR
HERAE B E AR S IE IR & 7 AR B
F o

ZEtE R AR # 9,000,000 7T K FE 5T
B AR 450,000 TTHEE T AW
%a

R-F——%+-A-+EA &
AABHNERBEREBARY
39,000,000 7T °

P EDREEF  BENT531%
E581% REZKTHEEN -

RZE——FA~A+RBER=F——
F+—HB=-+HA  AAFHHIEERE
MR LE /AR 18,810,0007T
172,345,000 7T

RZFB—ZFLA+XAH  KAAFH
ﬁzi%ﬁ%%ﬁ{ﬁﬁ%lm%m
RIEI L — D EE W% WERED
AE%M&%&mOimﬁﬂmﬁt
BRERDARE0.8T(REKBH
—E—ZTF+ A +MHENKRB AR
BEABRARK0.82T) AEEAE
#2517 & B 2 508,125,000 A% A & A%
BFAEELEE (HizE36) -
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35. Material Related Party Transactions 5. ERBEERRS (&)
(Continued)
b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related b) AEERAFENGHEMEFHETT
parties during the year: (Continued) TNEARS : (&)
Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries HERWBRARETHNEEIRS
Name
related parties Relationship Nature or transactions Note 2011 2010
BELER B RXHMHE i —B—-f —T-TF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFT
Neptunus Fellow Reimbursement of water,
Pharmaceutical subsidiary electricity and fuel costs (iv), (vii) 196 252
BEEE NG KB RIKR AR RTE
Management fees (iv), (viii) 10 10
ERER
Property management Fees (iv), (viii) 60 60
NEERER
R & D services income (iv), (ix) 2,000 2,000
RERBBA
Acquisition of 5% equity
interest of Neptunus Fuyao (iv), (xiii) - 27,777
Wit AR Eks o g
Acquisition of 20% equity interest
of Jiangsu Neptunus (iv), (xiv) 200 -
R TG £20% R
Purchase of raw materials (iv), (xi) 293 -
BERME
Shenzhen Fellow Rental of office and factory premises (v), (xii) - 268
Neptunus Tongai subsidiary PAERBEES
Pharmaceutical NG

Co. Ltd (“Tongai
Pharmaceutical”)
RIGTEE R
BRAA
([ZBE])

Shenzhen Neptunus Fellow Sales of goods (iv), (xi) 7,099 618
Changjian subsidiary HEEY
Pharmaceutical EELENG
Co., Ltd
FIEERE
BEFRAR
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
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35. Material Related Party Transactions 5. EREAERRS (&)
(Continued)
b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related b) AEERAFEANGERHETETT
parties during the year: (Continued) TNEARS : (&)
Name
related parties Relationship Nature or transactions Note 2011 2010
BEL AR B RHMHE MizE —E—-F —E-TF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT
Hangzhou Fellow Processing income (iv), (xi) 50 50
Neptunus Bio- subsidiary REBA
engineering Co., Ltd RZHERA Disposal of plant and (iv),(x) 50 -
MEEEN equipment
TERERAA T EBRE R
Zhejiang Neptunus Fellow Sales of goods (vi), (xi) 193 29
Pharmaceutical subsidiary HEEY
Co. ltd RZHBAR
AR £
BRAT
Shandong Fellow Sales of goods (i), (xi) 34 -
Neptunus Yihe subsidiary HEEY
Pharmaceutical RZAMEAR
Company Limited
WG R R
BBEAR
Notes: B E
iv)  The ultimate controlling parent company of these related parties iv) WEBESNRKERBARINAR

V)

Vi)

vii)

viii)

is also the ultimate controlling parent company of the Group. The
director of the subsidiary, Mr. Zhang Si Min, is also a director of
those related parties.

The ultimate controlling parent company of these related parties
is also the ultimate controlling parent company of the Group. The
director of the Company, Mr. Zhang Feng is also a director of these
related parties.

The ultimate controlling parent company of these related parties is
also the ultimate controlling parent company of the Group.

The reimbursement of water, electricity and fuel costs was based on

pre-agreed rates with reference to the Group’s production activities.

The management fees and property management fees were charged
at pre-agreed rates.

SEOREERTF AR - RTB AR
EERERAEENAMZMESNE
Ho

v) &t%%ﬁ@ﬁmrﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁzﬁ
KENREZERT AR - KRARES
?Efé?ﬁiﬁ%ﬁt%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ’ﬂ%% ©

vi)  MERETT RS
KE M FARIERBRA]

NCIDIVEES

vi)  RERRBKAZEFRTIZEARE
EWAEERDK - BREBHNER
EEE -

MEEEERREREMIDIZELD
A AR UCER o

viii)
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

ix)  The R & D services income was charged at pre-agreed rates.

X) During the year, the Company disposed of plant and equipment
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB73,000 to Hangzhou
Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd., at the consideration of
RMB50,000.

xi)  The purchases, sales and processing income received were
transacted in the normal course of business on the same terms as
those charged to and contracted with other third party suppliers and
customers respectively.

xii)  The rental of office and factory premises was charged at pre-agreed
rates with reference to market rates. On 1 January 2011, Tongai
Pharmaceutical leased office premises to the Company. The rental
of approximately RMB268,000 attributable to 2011 was waived by
Tongai Pharmaceutical.

xiii)  On 16 July 2010, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Neptunus Bio-engineering for the acquisition of
the 5% equity interest in Neptunus Fuyao for a consideration of
approximately RMB27,770,000, which was fully settled by the issue
and allotment of 33,875,000 consideration shares to Neptunus Bio-
engineering at RMBO0.8 per consideration share (the fair value of the
shares at the completion date on 14 December 2010 was RMB0.82
per share). (Note 36)

xiv)  On 8 June 2011, the Company entered into a sales and purchases
agreement with Neptunus Pharmaceutical for the acquisition of
the 20% equity interest in Jiangsu Neptunus for a consideration of
RMB200,000.

5. EREERRS (1)

b)

AEERAFENGEBEETETT
FIBRRZ S (&)

HREAMBRRETHRETRS
(&)

BiRE - (&)

ix) BRI A TYIRIRE R M E AR
HR °

X) REAFER ARRAEARBARE
50,000 TEEMMMBEEMTIRARA
A EREELN AR 73,000 THI R
B R a5 A o

x) BRENEE - HERERRATR
—RREBBIZD - REHME=TIH#
FER X & P PRl SLAUER & 5T 4948 )
B R FRETT -

xi) WAERBEHELEMER @ KA
L EAERKER - R=ZT——F—
A— av*x%uaezrwﬁaaﬁﬁ—ra
MANEYHE - ERFIERE T ——
ia’ﬁﬂﬁm/\ﬁﬁ% 268,000 7T °

xii) R=Z—ZFtA+,H ' A2
BEAEYTER wtuﬁzﬁﬁlizfﬁzﬁ%aﬁ
RIET — D EEWE - WERED
AEMN,WO,OOOEEU& BRR
Bl AR 0.5 70 (A5 A Bz —
T+ - A+HANRDBAARE
BEAEERARKS2T)AEELY
217 R E2# 33,875,000 KB 1D F
AEHAEH - (fizE36)

xiv) R=ZZ——F X XANAB » KARHEE
FEEITVEE RS - UWKETI&HE
F 20% & - RER AR 200,000

JT °
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

b)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with jointly controlled entity

5. ERBEELR S (&)

b)

AEBERNAFEANGRBEETETT
FIBRRZ S : (&)

RARZHERETRERS

Name
related parties Relationship Nature or transactions Note 2011 2010
HEL AR B& RHME i —E—-fF —2-TF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
GSK- Neptunus A jointly controlled entity R & D services income (xv) - 527
EzrRET HEAEHER RERBEA
Notes: BIsE
xv)  The R&D services income was charged at pre-agreed rates. Xv) RS RIS U A Ty T S 1) 2 B (B RS U
B o
Related party transactions with related party HERERETHBERS
Name
related parties Relationship Nature or transactions Note 2011 2010
HEL LR B& RHME i —E—-F —2-ZF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
GlaxoSmithKline Related company Management services fees (xvi) - 3,330
(China) Investment BEAT EEREE
Co., Ltd
("GSK China")
EREeR(hE)
REBRARA
(TGsk=E])
Shenzhen Nepstar Related company Sales of goods (xvii) 6,632 778
Pharmaceutical HEAR HERY
Co., Ltd
(“Nepstar Pharmaceutical”)
FIMEEER
BEBRAA
(TEREE])
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

b)

o}

The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Notes:

XVi)

XVii)

GSK China is a fellow subsidiary of the other venturer of the jointly
controlled entity. The management service fees were charged to
GSK-Neptunus at pre-agreed rates.

The director of a subsidiary, Mr. Zhang Si Min is also an authorised
representative of the related party. The income received were
transacted in the normal course of business on the same terms as
these charged to and contracted with other third party customers.

Guarantees

xviii) During the year 2011,

XiX)

Neptunus Bio-engineering provided a
corporate guarantee to the extent of RMB32,000,000 (2010:
RMB111,000,000) for the bank loan granted to the Group (Note
27).

In 2010, Neptunus Bio-engineering pledged its 639,000,000
domestic shares of the Company and Mr. Chai Xiang Dong,
an executive director of the Company, pledged his 47,671,000
domestic shares of the Company to secure the Group’s bank loans
of RMB86,000,000 (Note 27). Neptunus Bio-engineering and
Neptunus Group gave corporate guarantees for the above bank
loans. The pledge of shares and corporate guarantees were released
during the year 2011.

5. ERXBEERRS (8)
b) AEERAEERNLEEETETT
FIEAR S : (5B)
BifEE
xvi) GSKHE A H? HEREMEESR

XVii)

R

XViii)

XiX)

R RKB AR - ERREETHIRR
%Tﬁ%%%%ﬂ%%%iﬁif”&
HR °

AAREERBREEMABHELTH
EERE o BB HBATIN — /R
BiBiEd - mEEME = EFMA]
SZHYUER K2 7] K9 AE R B0 G FETT

R-E——F  BITEYRAEE
EEMNBRTEREEREARE
32,000,000 C(ZZF—FF : AR¥E
111,000,000 7T ) M H24t A B1HELR (B
F$£27) °

R-ZT—ZTF BIEUBEERDN
ZR/A 7] 639,000,000 A% A & R IE A -
MERELEE (RRARWMITES) T
HEBNARAT47,671,000 A E /K
- LB AR R ERARITER
AR ¥ 86,000,000 7t (M 5£27) ° /8
TAYMRETEER FMRITERIE
A RER o IR ARD KA RIE
R R ——ERE o
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1

35. Material Related Party Transactions 5. EREAERRS (&)
(Continued)
d)  Financing arrangements d) mERH
The Group The Company
358 Y|
Amounts due to Related interest Amounts due to Related interest
related parties expenses related parties expenses
EfBERLE HHERISHY ERBERLE HEASHY

21 2010 21 2010 211 2010 2011 2010
R 3TF C%-F 3%F S%-F 5%F S%-F 5 Ef
RMBOOD  RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0D  RWB00
ARMTR ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARRFR ARETR

Entrusted loans from the

immediate parent company BRBLAERER 9,000 48,000 1,758 3,706 9,000 48,000 1,758 3,706
Interest-bearing financial assistance ifan5E ] - 91,155 4,285 41 - 91,15 4,285 41
Details of the terms and conditions of the entrusted loans from BHESARZEE R IER BB
the immediate parent company are disclosed in note 29. TBERAMIFE29 R I EE -

The interest-bearing financial assistance is unsecured, bearing WEFBEABERE  BXAE
interest at 5.81% (2010: 5.31% to 5.81%) and repayable on 581% (ZZE—ZF : NF¥531% %
demand. 5.81%) BETEERTER

The immediate parent company of the Group agreed to provide AEBENEBE A ARRERASELR
two entrusted loans with a total amount of RMB48,000,000. H R IE A% A A K 48,000,000 7T
The entrusted loan with an amount of RMB39,000,000 has been MZE LS 3R ° :238 AR ® 39,000,000
repaid on 25 November 2011. TERBRERZTE—F+—A

“t+HAEE-
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35. Material Related Party Transactions 35. ERBBERRS (&)
(Continued)
e) Outstanding balances with related parties e) MABEMBEESER
The Group
F5EE
Amounts owed by Amounts owed to
related parties related parties
as at 31 December as at 31 December
PEW B 5 FIE e BRE 5 SR
BW+t=A=+—-A8 W+=B=+-8H
2011 2010 2011 2010
g & -T-TH& —®——& -T-TF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT ARBTT ARETT
Entrusted loans from the BB RAELER
immediate parent company - - 9,000 48,000
Amount due from/to the FEW Sk N BB &R RIRIE
immediate parent company 2,161 10,254 18,433 135,380
Amount due from/to fellow e/ PR ZHTB A RIEUE
subsidiaries:
Neptunus Pharmaceutical BEEEE 2,897 1,363 173 60
Tongai Pharmaceutical ERRE - - 536 536
Zhejiang Neptunus WML TEEGRAR
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 24 33 - -
Shenzhen Neptunus RBTREBERRAT
Changjian Pharmaceutical
Co., Limited 1,176 - - -
Shandong Neptunus Yihe R EEEEFRAR
Pharmaceutical Company
Limited - - 58 -
Hangzhou Neptunus NG EY ITRRAER AR
Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. - - 100 -
4,097 1,396 867 596
Amount due from a jointly FEM R E BT
controlled entity:
GSK-Neptunus ERELRET - 296 - -
Amount due from/to related e P BB A RIFIA
companies:
Nepstar Pharmaceutical ERBYE 3,107 546 - 458
GSK China GSKHE - - - 3,743
3,107 546 - 4,201
9,365 12,492 28,300 188,177
The balances with these related companies are unsecured, ZEMBEANRNGEKREEEE . £ 8
interest-free and repayable within one year. BER—FRNERE -
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e)  Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
BE—T—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

5. EREEERRS (1)

o) MANFENRE R (E)

The Company
NG

Amounts owed to
related parties
as at 31 December

Amounts owed by
related parties
as at 31 December

PEWBRE S TRIE FERTRAE T FIE
R+=-A=t—-H R+-A=t—H
2011 2010 2011 2010
2§ _"T-TF B _T-ITF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETr AR¥TR ARETT
Entrusted loans from the HBEHLAREEER
immediate parent company - - 9,000 48,000
Amount due to the immediate B BB ARIFIE
parent company:
Neptunus Bio-engineering BEEY - - 5,103 108,870
Amount due from/(to) a subsidiary:  FEUL/ FEA PR B A B IE
Ascendent Bio-technology SRR AR A A
Company Limited 47 13 - -
Jiangsu Neptunus IEET - 54 1,353 -
Neptunus Fuyao BEIEEE 12,000 - - -
12,047 67 1,353 =
Amount due from/to fellow fEd /e R A M A B FUR |
subsidiaries:
Neptunus Pharmaceutical BE R 2,897 1,363 - -
Tongai Pharmaceutical ERRE - - 536 536
2,897 1,363 536 536
Amount due from a jointly JELS L[R2 | B BE X
controlled entity:
GSK-Neptunus ERRLRET - 604 - =
14,944 2,034 15,992 157,406
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35. Material Related Party Transactions 5. ERBEERRS (&)
(Continued)
f)  Key management personnel emoluments fy FEEEEBAEHE
Emoluments for key management personnel, including amounts FEEREAENEBEINTFAA
paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain AIEEMSE(MHE7RHEE) kX
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8 are as NTrETFE=HMEESNESE (R E
follows: SHHEE) T ¢
Total emoluments are included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). wMeeRERIBIRA] (REE
5()) A e
2011 2010
—E2——5F —T-EF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBTFT
Salaries and other short-term o REMEHESER
employee benefits 2,809 3,122
Retirement scheme contributions 32 {R%& 3k 134 112
2,943 3,234
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36. Acquisition of Subsidiaries

Acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition of
subsidiaries

On 16 July 2010, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Neptunus Bio-engineering, the immediate parent
company of the Company and Neptunus Pharmaceutical, a fellow
subsidiary of the Company, for the acquisition of the 80% equity
interest in Neptunus Fuyao and its subsidiaries (“Neptunus Fuyao
Group”) for a consideration of RMB444,440,000, which was fully
settled by the issue and allotment of 542,000,000 consideration
shares to Neptunus Bio-engineering and Neptunus Pharmaceutical at
RMBO0.80 per consideration share (the fair value of the shares at the
completion date on 14 December 2010 was RMBO0.82 per share). The
Group takes the view that Neptunus Fuyao Group has a great potential
to develop in the medical industry under the current government
policy and market circumstances and the acquisition will provide the
Group with good business potential. The acquisition was completed
on 14 December 2010. For the half month ended 31 December
2010, the acquired subsidiary contributed net loss of approximately
RMB1,288,000 to the consolidated net loss of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2010. Had the acquisition been completed on
1 January 2010, total group revenue for the year would have been
increased to approximately RMB476,485,000 and the profit for the
year would have been increased to approximately RMB36,467,000.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2010, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results. Acquisition related costs amounting to approximately
RMB2,349,000 have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and have been recognised as an expenses in the 2010.

The allocation of acquisition consideration on the Neptunus Fuyao
Group as at the date of acquisition and the corresponding carrying
amounts immediately before the acquisition were as follows:

R ERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDA

1

H |

B

—

B H5 R MRt

For The Year Ended 31 December 2011
 E—E——F+ZA=1+—HIFE

36. WEBME A F

ERARBENBEARWBEERAR

RZZE—ZFLA+A ARAIEAR
ANEBSARESIAEYRARANER
MEBARETEXITVEE RS @ UWER
BARE 444,440,000 TWE S ERER
HMBAR(IBEIREEE]) 80% K
W NERBESRRERNOARK0.8T
(R BT —ZTF+_A+HBENK
BARBEABBRARE0S82TT) AEE
) I8 F S5 2 89T R Bt 3 542,000,000
BRAREBROBELEE - AEBERAETRE
BEBENEEEXAGEXNENAIREEA
MR BUR R TIBMRIETEE - WES
TREBAANEESRETNPEE -
ZEWRBEER-_ZE—ZF+-_At+HMAR
KeBE_T—ZT&E+_-_A=+—HIt¥
@A FTENBARALAEEHZ_Z
—ZE+-_A=+—RAULFENERLEFE
KEENFIEALOARKE 1,288,000 7T ° fHl
BER-Z—ZTF—A—H%K FREE

e ey AR 476,485,000 7T

BFE AL INELN AR 36,467,000
T WEZEEREEHARE AU RB
BRUEBEN - Z—ZTF—A—HTK
AEEF ] BERERD RS REEEE -
MTRIERARAREENTER - BHEHOAR
& 2,349,000 TTHI UL EE FERARK AR T B 828
REFRHR  THERARZ-ZZ—ZFENRN
IR ©

RUBEBRH  BIGRESELABEREND
R EZWEAAREREEDT
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36. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued) 36. WEEKME AT (&)

Carrying Fair value  acquisition
amount change consideration
A¥E W RE
BREE -1 bl
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®TR AR¥TxR
Property, plant and equipment Y - RE R 86,161 25,689 111,850
Prepaid land lease payments FEfT LT E TR 26,771 45,229 72,000
Intangible assets mEE 3,634 135,494 139,128
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 1,407 = 1,407
Inventories e 81,281 - 81,281
Trade and other receivables JRE MR AR R e EAth i s R IE 105,475 = 105,475
Pledged deposits BHEIFER 7,810 = 7,810
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEY 70,670 = 70,670
Trade and other payables FEAT AR R R EoAth A~ R IE (137,331) = (137,331)
Tax payable FEFAR 1A (5,870) - (5,870)
Deferred revenue IR (920) = (920)
Short-term bank borrowings 5 ERIRTTIER (90,000) - (90,000)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR A (2,578) = (2,578)
Deferred Tax liabilities BEHIBEAE - (40,296) (40,296)
146,510 166,116 312,626
Non-controlling interests FEFERR i A (62,525)
250,101
Total consideration BB 444,440
Deemed distribution BRIEDIK 194,339
Total consideration satisfied by: BREZFARN
Fair value of shares DA FE 444,440
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: U E AR SHRAFEE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired ERSHNRERIREEFED 78,480
Net cash and cash inflow of cash and ~ BRIWEHNBRAFIHRE &
cash equivalents in respect of ReERREBYNES
acquisition of subsidiaries MIR& R FE 78,480
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Acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition of

subsidiaries (Continued)
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36. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Acqu
subsi
Notes:

i)

iii)

isition of assets and liabilities through acquisition of
diaries (Continued)

The trade and other receivables in this transaction with a fair value of
approximately RMB105,475,000 had gross contractual amounts of
approximately RMB105,475,000.

The non-controlling interests recognised at the acquisition date were
measured by reference to the non-controlling interests proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The fair value of assets and liabilities acquired through the acquisition
were assessed by either of depreciated replacement cost approach, market
approach and income approach by reference to a valuation performed by
an independent professional valuer-Ascent Partners Transaction Service
Limited, who have among their staff, fellow members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and with experience in the valuation of similar assets
in the relevant industry.
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36. WHEFTE A =) (4&)
BRUENEATREEER S ()

fiiE

i) ZR S5 AFELHAREE105,475,0007TH)
FEREER R EMENZIBEREERE SR
BH AR 105,475,000 7T ©

i) BN B SRR R A DS
U 25 ) 4 1 2 S R A
pligst -

i) BRWERMEENEEREEHATE
BEAMEEERAZE  MHBERKA
E o WA 2 E BB B G E R Ascent
Partners Transaction Service Limited (E{&
BRBEAHHBITERUEELETHE
MBS IESMBSE RS E) EHD
(HEREITEIE o
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37. Disposal of a Jointly Controlled Entity 37. HE—EHEEZFIER
As mentioned in Note 13, the Group disposed of its jointly controlled A EE 13T - AREERBE T ——
entity during the year ended 31 December 2011. F+ZA=+—HIEFEHEHL LR EZEH
T
The net assets/(liabilities) at the date of the disposal were as follows: REERBRFEE (BB WOT :
Total
k]
RMB’000
ARETR
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB RRE 228,383
Prepaid land lease payments TEf - AE & FRIE 18,553
Inventories F& 2,242
Deposit for acquisition of property, WY - BE &
plant and equipment RIS 354
Other receivables H A FEUGRIE 8,368
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRE&EE 10,652
Other payables E At eI FRIE (25,496)
Short-term bank borrowings RHASRITE R (20,400)
222,656
Exchange reserve b 3 R 4,155
226,811
Total consideration BRE 247,841
Gain on disposal & — R E aS e
of a jointly controlled entity 21,030
Net cash inflow/(outflow) arising AHEEARRS
on disposal MA (i) 58
Cash consideration received WEEYER & KB 247,841
Cash and cash equivalent disposal of ~ HEMIRE MRS EHE (10,652)
Net inflow of cash and cash BRANE—MERIEFIEEY
equivalents in respect of disposal Re MESEEN
of jointly controlled entity WEMAFEE 237,189
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1

38. Commitments 38. A&E
a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2011 a) UTHRZ_ZE——F+_-_A=+—8%
authorised and not provided for in the financial statements were IR A B AN E D R R B TS 3R 1B
as follows: & :
The Group The Company
S 3] KAT

2011 2010 2011 2010

5% _—F-TF =B-—F _—T-2F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TRE ARETT AR%®TRE ARETRT

Property, plant and equipment ¥ BEKRE
Contracted for, but not provided for: & 5] 418 K B -

Property, plant and equipment M - BERE 13,101 21,556 = =
Land lease payments, net of deposits L ER (3IKRIZE) - 5,500 - 5,500
Others Hit - 160 1,820 160
13,101 27,216 1,820 5,660
Authorised, but not contracted for: B HbEBRFT4 :
Plant and equipment R 2 %4 63,836 45,000 = -
76,937 72,216 1,820 5,660
Intangible assets BYEE
Contracted for, but not provided for: 2 5] 418 K B -
Technical know-how, net of deposits ~ Z4& & {iT (FNBriEE) 1,300 8,927 1,300 8,927

78,237 81,143 3,120 14,587
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38. Commitments (Continued) 38. RIE (&)

b) At 31 December 2011, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

by R=F——F+-_A=+t—H" RE
AN AT AR 8 T 4D Y R SR SR R TR B 5K

MBEAAN ¢
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2E——F —E-TF ZB-—-—F "ZT-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT AREBTR ARBTET
Within 1 year R—FR 407 554 314 274
After 1 year but within 5 years —FHRERAFA - 93 - =
407 647 314 274
The Group as lessee leases office premises under operating lease AEBRBECEHELHERASE T
arrangements. Leases for the office premises are negotiated for NE - WAEMHENFHRLEHE A —
terms of one year. None of the leases includes contingent rental. FE=ZF - ZEHETTBESHAME
@ o
39. Immediate and Ultimate Controlling Parent 39. EBREAERE AT

Company

At 31 December 2011, the directors consider the immediate and
ultimate controlling parent company of the Group to be Shenzhen
Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Neptunus Group
Co., Ltd. respectively, which are incorporated in the PRC. Shenzhen
Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. produces consolidated financial
statements for public use.

W=F——&+=H=+-8 ﬁ%?‘
ARBEBSAARBLIERSATSH
BRYITEELNTRRAERA 7&m
YT EREROERAR - MAATS
B B AL - %Wﬁﬁzimlﬁ%
BERAALEREFARA
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40. Accounting Estimates and Judgements

a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimated uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.

i)

ii)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value
less cost to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset, which requires significant judgement relating to
the level of revenue and the amount of operating costs. The
Group uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and operating costs.
Changes in these estimates could have a significant impact on
the carrying amounts of the assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in future periods.
The carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments as at the end of the reporting period
are approximately RMB131,045,000 and RMB70,299,000
respectively.

Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains impairment allowance for doubtful debts
based on an evaluation of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables, where applicable, at the end of each reporting period.
The estimates are based on the ageing of the trade and other
receivables balances and the historical write-off experience, net
of recoveries. If the financial condition of the debtors were to
deteriorate, additional impairment allowance may be required.
The carrying amount as at the end of the reporting period is
approximately RMB73,035,000.
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40. EEGHAE K

a)  fiEHETEEE B R 0 = B AR
LA A3k 2 45 50 48 OB i 5 00 R B R
WARREMEEREFLETEER
® o AWBRTEEAEERRRY BEF
EHAEREEREEELEAAENE
RER - FmMT -

) F - BERREUARBNHENE

BEMAKEBSESE A FEREE
ERAMERAEBENRRE o f£ihET
FAEER - BB AKRRS R
FHEREE  FRAOTNEAT
REB MG N EERERZE
ERFTZRBEZHATINE  IFH
T U A KBRS &R A BRH
o AEBEFAMBHEABHNEREA
WEeBESENMGHE - BIEGEMN
Ti%%ﬁ“»&%kﬂmgﬁ$m
cHET SN I EHEEN
%ﬁ@?iikm . WA REE R
T2 7R PR HARE 5T 1R BB SMNAY R (B 18 2K sk
Bl EFHRMREIBX - 2RBLEE
B - MRS MR R BRE(E RTE
& H R4 E AR 131,045,000 7T
M AR 70,299,000 7T °

i) FER IR E
REERPAERE - AEERBERK
FRIA R B H U BIR B AT e
Kb #RRERERE(ME
) o BRAMET TR IZ e R TR R N &
i 8 AR I8 A R ) R e I B SE Y S RC
SEAMBR AWM E SRR E o HREAD
PRSARRNEIE - A aEZA EE LRI
BEFE ZRPLEEANKREED
R ARHE73,085,0007T °
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40. Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

a)

iii)

iv)

v)

Write-down of inventories

The Group determines the write-down for obsolescence of
inventories. Those estimates are made with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future saleability of
the goods and management experience and judgement. Based
on this review, a write-down of inventories will be made when
the carrying amounts of inventories decline below their estimated
net realisable value. Due to changes in market conditions, actual
saleability of goods may be different from estimation and profit or
loss could be affected by differences in the estimation.

Capitalised development expenditure

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate
future economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete
the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. In the development phase of an internal
project, the Group has to exercise judgement to identify an
intangible asset and demonstrate that the asset will generate
probable future economic benefits. To demonstrate how an
intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits,
the Group assesses the future economic benefits to be received
from the asset. If the asset will generate economic benefits only in
combination with other assets, the Group applies the concept of
cash-generating units.

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual test on whether there has been
an impairment of intangible assets in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 1j(ii). The recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units are determined based on value in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions made by management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates and other assumptions underlying
the value-in-use calculations. The carrying amount as at the end
of the reporting period is approximately RMB135,376,000.
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iv)
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40. Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

a)

b)

Vi)

Vii)

Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The determination of the useful lives
involves management’s estimation. The Group reassesses the
useful life of the intangible assets and if the expectation differs
from the original estimate, such a difference may impact the
amortisation in the year and the estimate will be changed in the
future period.

Estimate fair value of acquired intangible assets
Fair value of Anesthetic drug production and selling rights and
trade name is determined based on an income approach. These
calculations require the use of estimates about future cash flow
and discount rates. In the process of estimation, management
makes assumptions about future cash flow and cost.

Fair value of customers’ list is determined based on excess
earnings method. These calculations require the use of estimates
about future cash flows, discount rate, required returns on
contributory assets and duration of customers’ list. In the process
of estimation, management makes assumptions about future cash
flow, costs and duration of customers’ list.

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

In determining the carrying amounts of other assets and liabilities, the
Group makes assumptions for the effects of uncertain future events
on those assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period. These
estimates involve assumptions about such items as cash flows and
discount rates used. The Group's estimates and assumptions are based
on historical experience and expectations of future events and are
reviewed periodically. In addition to assumptions and estimations of
future events, judgements are also made during the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies.
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41. Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet Effective for the Year Ended 31 December
2011
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has

issued the following amendments, new standards and Interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2011.

The Group has not early applied any of the following new and revised

Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that have been issued but

are not yet effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets’

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised on 2011)

Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income®
Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlying Assets*

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

41.

.

B E——F+ZH=1+—
HIEFECEMEERERDN
1&5] ~ Fel B RZRENSBE
2

BEEAMBHRERAH  BEEHMAEE
BHEUNTREE_TE——F+A=+—
Etﬁrrﬁiﬁixﬁlﬁ’ﬂ HT *ﬁuT”ﬁH”&é
=

AEEY EEEREA THEAERMER
REMBFRT RIS FTER - (EFTHRE -

EREVBREER HE-SREED
F 75 BFTA) R
W eRMEENS
R E B E R E2
B REERIE
9 5% A 3 11l 1t A 3
ERYNEENE e
BERMBHREEL SHIAS
FE 9%
BEBMEREEL  HREMBIREK?
%1058
BBMBIRE LR BETHE?
F115%
BERMEWMEER HEREMEED
F125% e 2
ERMIEMELER QAFAEFE?
%B#
ER G AR Hibh2H K a=E B &Y
EE‘IﬂE({znTZK) %R 5
BB GEER FIERTE « #E
F1255 (1BFTA)  HEBE*
EFGENFE 19 EERFA?
W(ZT——F
fﬂm)
EE G ENE 27 EBHEHRRK?
ﬂﬁ_z——i
1&&1)
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41.

42.

Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet Effective for the Year Ended 31 December
2011 (Continued)

HKAS 28 (as revised on 2011)  Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine?

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group'’s results of
operations and financial position.

Comparative Figure

The Group disposed of certain operations which constituted
discontinued operation under HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations”. Therefore, the results derived from
such operations are presented as discontinued operation in the current
year. The comparative figures for the corresponding year have been
reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.
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Five Year Fmanaal Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements’ is set out below.

hEFEBERHE

Year ended 31 December

HE+-A=1t—-HILEE

TXHEINAEEBEREMRFENFEREE
HEERE - DREAEAMEERIFTRE -

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
=B——f _—T-ZTF TTNEF TIT\E "TTLHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETIT ARETIT AREFTT ARETIT
RESULTS Ed5

TURNOVER ] 474,652 38,256 3,696 16,310 16,160
Cost of sales SHERM A (309,811) (25,876) (2,719 (7,477) (5,103)
Gross profit EA 164,841 12,380 977 8,833 11,057
Other revenue TN 9,973 8,361 712 2,650 3,347
Other net income PN ] 22,853 28,859 6,344 = =
Selling and distribution costs HERDHFAZ (63,772) (7,232) (1,157) (3.,242) (3,897)
Administrative expenses GG (56,460) (37,200) (25,166) (13,047) (17,088)
Other operating expenses HAp @ &p Y (20,853) (20,350) (7,523) (20,234) (12,270)
Profit/(Loss) from operations mgRF/ (B518) 56,582 (15,182) (25,813) (25,040) (18,851)
Finance costs BRI R AR (14,084) (15,330) (11,663) (5,831) (2,541)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION B ARF (B518) 42,498 (30,512) (37,476) (30,871) (21,392)
Income Tax Fig®t (13,045) 131 = 276 225
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR RERRF,/(E518) 29,453 (30,381) (37,476) (30,595) (21,167)

ATTRIBUTABLE TO: AT
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY VA/NGIEZ =N 21,686 (30,104) (37,476) (30,595) (21,167)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEE R RS 7,767 (277) = = =
29,453 (30,381) (37,476) (30,595) (21,167)

178 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011



Five Year Financial Summary
HFMBHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t—-HLEFE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

—B2——F —T-TF —ETNE —ZTN\E ZZETE

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TE ARETT AR%®TR ARETR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHAE

TOTAL ASSETS HEE 761,317 985,700 343,426 299,128 325,794
TOTAL LIABILITIES Baf (275,041) (529,832) (310,075) (228,266) (224,337)
486,276 455,868 33,351 70,862 101,457

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the ETUHRSBEENMDEUNFTEAFENZ o
current year's presentation. Government grant related to an expense item TR S A AE A ATE T 251 - MR &EH 5

was presented in other revenue, and is reclassified and deducted directly
from related borrowing cost in order to provide more relevant information to

the users of the financial statements.

BYREREERANERR  SUBHERER
ERUEZAEBER -
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Group Property
e L LUES

PROPERTY IN PRC

Location Intended use
b HE A%
Kuiqgi Village, Industrial

Gushan Twon,

Jin"an District

Fuzhou City

Fujian Province

The PRC

hEIEZE M T I%
B R a0 L SRS

EREIR Y
Gross
Site area floor area
T EE EEER
(sq.m) (sq.m)
(FFHK) (FFHK)
166,109.5 58,434.74
166,109.5 58,434.74
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FEiarES
(%)
ADk
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